R MORPC

111 Liberty St., Suite 100
Columbus, Ohio 43215
WWW.MOrpc.org

NOTICE OF A MEETING

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
111 LIBERTY STREET, SUITE 100
COLUMBUS, OH 43215
BOARD ROOM

Thursday, June 6, 2024
1:30 p.m.

Remote Option
To join by video and see any screen sharing, click on “Join Microsoft Teams Meeting” below. You
do not need to have Microsoft Teams for the link to work.
Join Microsoft Teams Meeting
Meeting ID: 215 162 158 062
Passcode: 6¢cLotw

To participate by phone, use the conference call information below.
+1 614-362-3056 United States, Columbus
(888) 596-2819 United States (Toll-free)
Phone conference ID: 149 314 722#

AGENDA

1. Welcome — Michelle Crandall, Chair

2. Draft Audited Financial Statements Introduction — Shawn Hufstedler, Chief Operating
Officer; Kimberly Blake, Auditor of State Office, Senor Audit Manager Central Region; &
Kevin Robertson, Auditor of State Office, Audit Manager

e Executive Session — ORC Section 121.22 (D)(2) & (G)(5)

Purpose: audit conference conducted by Auditor of State with matters required to be
kept confidential by federal law or regulations or state statutes.

3. Consent Agenda
e Approval of May 2, 2024 minutes

William Murdock, AICP Chris Amorose Groomes Michelle Crandall Ben Kessler

Executive Director Chair Vice Chair Secretary

e



https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MjNmYzE3NDYtMTQzNi00YTI2LTk1MGUtYTczMzA5Yjk3M2Jm%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22d225c0aa-f4a0-4925-bc81-eaff87943970%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%2290194b29-9096-438a-9d8e-b061540a6761%22%7d
tel:+16143623056,,149314722
tel:8885962819,,149314722

Executive Committee Agenda
June 6, 2024
Page 2

10.

11.

12.

Executive Director’s Report — William Murdock, Executive Director
e LinkUS Update

Committee Updates

e Nominating Committee — Ben Kessler, Chair

¢ Regional Data Advisory Committee — Dave Dixon, Interim Senior Director of Planning
& Director of Data Analytics & Strategy

e Sustainability Advisory Committee — Dave Dixon, Interim Senior Director of Planning
& Director of Data Analytics & Strategy

¢ Regional Policy Roundtable — Joseph Garrity, Senior Director of Government Affairs
& Community Relations

e Transportation Policy Committee — Parag Agrawal, Chief Mobility & Infrastructure
Officer & Senior Director of Programming

Proposed Resolution 08-24: “Adopting a fee schedule for use in assessing members
in 2025” — Shawn Hufstedler, Chief Operating Officer

Proposed Resolution 09-24: “Authorizing the executive director to accept funding to
launch the Greenways Planning Studio and to perform technical support services” —
Dave Dixon, Interim Senior Director of Planning & Director of Data Analytics & Strategy

Proposed Resolution 10-24: “Authorizing the executive director to enter into an
agreement with a contractor to provide air quality modeling and technical services” —
Dave Dixon, Interim Senior Director of Planning & Director of Data Analytics & Strategy

Proposed Resolution 11-24: “Authorizing the executive director to enter into
agreements with, and receive funds from the U.S. Department of Transportation,

Ohio Department of Transportation, and local jurisdictions and procure consulting
services to execute the 2023 Safe Streets and Roads for All (SS4A) Funding Award” —
Parag Agrawal, Chief Mobility & Infrastructure Officer & Senior Director of Programming

Proposed Resolution 12-24: “Authorizing the executive director to enter into
agreements with the Ohio Department of Development (ODOD) for the 2024 Home
Weatherization Assistance Program (HWAP) and to enter into related subcontracts”
— Robert Williams, Senior Director of Residential Services

Draft Commission Agenda

Other Business

PLEASE NOTIFY SHARI SAUNDERS AT 614-233-4169 OR ssaunders@morpc.org
IF YOU REQUIRE SPECIAL ASSISTANCE.




Executive Committee Agenda
June 6, 2024
Page 3

The next Executive Committee Meeting is
Thursday, August 1, 2024 at 1:30 p.m.
111 Liberty Street, Suite 100
Columbus, Ohio 43215

PARKING AND TRANSIT: When parking in MORPC's parking lot, please be sure to park in a
MORPC visitor space or in a space marked with a yellow “M”. Handicapped parking is available
at the side of MORPC'’s building. Electric vehicle charging stations are available for MORPC
guests.

Indoor bike parking is available for MORPC guests.

MORPC is accessible by COTA BUS. The closest bus stop to MORPC is S. Front Street & W.
Blenkner St. Buses that accommodate this stop are the Number 61 - Grove City, the Number 5
- West 5th Ave. /Refugee, and the Number 8 - Karl/S. High/Parsons. MORPC is accessible by
COTA BUS. The closest bus stop to MORPC southbound is High Street & W. Blenkner Street.
Buses that accommodate this stop are the 5 - West 5th Ave./Refugee, and the 8 - Karl/S.
High/Parsons. The closest stop to MORPC northbound is High Street & E. Hoster Street. Buses
that accommodate this stop are the 5 - West 5th Avenue/Refugee and the 8 - Karl/S.
High/Parsons. Accessible from the Courthouse stop by a quick walk are COTA lines 1, 2, 4, and
CMAX.




COMN?EVHENSIVE
FINANCIAL REPORT

/
FISCA&‘(EAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

111 Liberty Street, Suite 100
uuuuuuuu , Ohio 43215
614.228.2663

\

ooooooooo




ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REE@
FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEM%%2023

Prepared b

Willi ck
Exew rector
@P. Hufstedler
QChie perating Officer

hio Regional Planning Commission
111 Liberty Street
Suite 100

Columbus, Ohio 43215
Q& Franklin County, Ohio



v
&

<<&

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT
December 31, 2023

Table of Contents

Introductory Section:

Letter of Transmittal

GFOA Certificate of Achievement

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission Organizational Chart
Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission Committees

Financial Section:
Independent Auditor’s Report O
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Basic Financial Statements:
Statement of Net Position
Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Ch i t Position
Statement of Cash Flows
Notes to Financial Statements
Required Supplementary Information:
Schedule of MORPC'’s Proportiondie Share of Net Pension Liability -
Ohio Public Employees Rejj tem Traditional Plan
Schedule of MORPC Contribjiti e Ohio Public Employees

Retirement System Trd@jitional
Schedule of MORPC’sgPrp0otitionate Share of Net OPEB Liability -

Ohio Public Empi@ etifement System
Schedule of MO OREB"Contributions to the Ohio Public

Details ost Allocation and Fringe Benefits Allocation
Schgtlule enues and Expenses for US Department
nsportation Funds
Schégule of Costs by Subcategory for US Department

of Transportation Funded Activities

Statistical Section:
Statistical Section Description

Financial Trends

Net Position by Component

Changes in Net Position — Revenue and Expense by Program
Changes in Net Position — Revenue by Source, Expense by Program

Revenue Capacity

Revenue Base and Revenue Rates

Source of Estimated Population by Member Jurisdiction Used for
Per Capita Membership Fees

Benefits of Membership — Flow of Funds

20
23

30

32

33

48

49

50

51

52
54

56

57

61
62
63
64

65



Demographic and Economic Information

Principal Revenue Payers 67
MORPC Membership Population, Columbus Metropolitan Statistical

Area Employment and Annual Average Unemployment Rates 68
Per Capita Income and Total Personal Income 69
Principal Employers in the Greater Columbus Area 70
Area in Square Miles by Member Jurisdiction
Operating Information O
Number of MORPC Employees by Function/Activity 72
Operating Indicators 73

Capital Assets 74
Schedule of Insurance Coverage O 75
Single Audit Section: \
Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control @al

Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matier. ed on an

Audit of Financial Statements Performed infdccordahce with

Government Auditing Standards 76

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compli r Bach Major Federal
Program and Report on Internal C@ntrol @ver Compliance
ards

Required by the Uniform Guid 78
Schedule of Expenditures of Fed€ra 80
Notes to Schedule of ExpendityreS of F@deral Awards 82
Schedule of Findings and x osts 83

O

&

v
&

(ii)






MORPC

111 Liberty St., Suite 100

Columbus, Ohio 43215
WWW.morpc.org
June XX, 2024 O

To the Residents of Central Ohio and
The Honorable Members of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission:
We are pleased to present the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (A Mid-Ohio Regional

Planning Commission (MORPC) for the year ended December 31, 2023 Thi ort has been prepared by
the MORPC Finance Team according to generally accepted accountm ciples (GAAP) applicable to
governmental entities. The management of MORPC is responS|bI rms the adequacy of the
agency’s internal accounting control and the completeness of the ri I presented in this report. The report

will be available on MORPC’s website at www.morpc.orq.

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) |mme s the independent auditor’s report and
provides a narrative introduction, overview and analysi§ of th basic financial statements. The MD&A

complements this letter of transmittal and should % njunction with it.

MORPC was created in 1969 as the successor
authority granted by Ohio Revised Code on
io ai

nklin County Regional Planning Commission under
.21. MORPC is a regional planning commission made up
50 serves as the planning agency for the region. In 2023,
ated in and around Delaware, Fairfield, Franklin, Hocking,
, Perry, Pickaway, Ross and Union Counties, Ohio. In addition,
gram with 8 participating regional organizations. MORPC is the
apning Organization (MPO) for the urbanized Columbus area.

of local governments in Central Ohio. MO
membership included 78 political subdivisi
Knox, Licking, Logan, Madison, M
MORPC has an associate memb
federally-designated Metrop

The member entities apgbint entatives (171 seats as of December 31, 2023) who make up the
Commission, which is licy-making body of the organization, and the oversight board. MORPC is a
political subdivision of Ohig and is also a non-profit organization exempt from federal income tax under
Section 501(c)(3) ofry Internal Revenue Code. MORPC employees are members of the Ohio Public
Employee Rejiremerft System.

nce With Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, The Financial
tity, Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units, an

ment of GASB Statement No. 14, MORPC is not considered a component unit of the Franklin County
al reporting entity because:

¢ MORPC is a separate legal entity, established under Section 713.21 of the Ohio
Revised Code (“ORC");
e Franklin County holds only 12 of 171 seats on MORPC’s governing board;

William Murdock, AICP Chris Amorose Groomes Michelle Crandall Ben Kessler
Executive Director Chair Vice Chair Secretary

e


http://www.morpc.org/

e MORPC is not fiscally dependent on Franklin County, and it does not provide a
financial benefit to, nor impose a financial burden on, the County; and
e MORPC provides services to members outside of Franklin County.

MISSION

At MORPC, our board members and staff work collectively to advance the organization’s mission
our aspirations. MORPC’s mission is to be the regional voice, trusted convener and catalyst, gi entral
Ohio communities together to collaborate on best practices and plan for the future growth a @ inability of
the region.

MORPC is a dynamic organization that must continually adapt to changing regional¢ tional and global

conditions. The need for our regional leadership has never been more importanjsgi ur current national
and local economic issues, development trends and changing demographics.

2023 ACCOMPLISHMENTS %\

Programming / Transportation Infrastructure & Development

Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) Summary — RP® serves as the federally designated MPO
for the Columbus urbanized area and provides continuing®™co ensive, and cooperative transportation
planning and programming. MORPC fulfilled this obliggtion bygdeveloping, maintaining, and reporting to the
tatg’ Fiscal Year (SFY) beginning July 1, 2022, and

community on its Planning Work Program (PWP) fi
t partment of Transportation certification of the MPO

ending June 30, 2023. The quadrennial United S
planning process was completed in 2022.

P is the primary product of the MPO. It outlines the
comprehensive transportation vision for theWP@ area including goals, objectives, performance measures,
and ultimately the strategies and r ransit,*bike, pedestrian, and intermodal projects to achieve the vision.
It is updated every four years wit ne completed in 2020. In 2023 the 2050 population and
employment projections weregap and candidate projects were identified and evaluation of them begin as
development of the 2024-20 2 cOntinued.

Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTF

Federal Highway Fundin e Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) allocates federal funding to
transportation projects in¥Qe region. In 2023, MORPC completed the TIP for state fiscal years (SFYs 2024-
2027) updated it through arftlendments and administrative modifications as necessary. The TIP includes
funding commitmentgfof nearly $2 billion for projects sponsored by the state, transit agencies, and local
partners th h MORPC. The MORPC funding includes approximately $50 million annually with completion
a cess to solicit and select projects to use MORPC-attributable funding completed in 2023.

of the bigpni
Trans%RPC receives Federal Transit Administration Section 5310 funding annually for projects that are
fo roviding public transit accessibility to seniors and individuals with disabilities. In 2023, MORPC
ted its project-selection round for sub-recipients. These funds are to assist local non-profit agencies in
rchigsing and maintaining accessible transit vehicles, and in providing transportation services to their

clients.




Transit Supportive Infrastructure (TSI) — In conjunction with the LinkUS initiative and LinkUS partners of
COTA, City of Columbus and Franklin County, MORPC in 2023 began development of a TSI program of
projects to utilize potential funding from an increase in COTA sales tax that will be on the ballot in November
2024. The process involved development of program structure, policies, identifying projects and organizin
several working groups of communities throughout COTA’s service area to guide the activity.

Regional Mobility Plan — The 2021-2026 Regional Mobility Plan — completed by MORPC for ODOT
Service Transportation Coordination Region 6 in 2021 — was developed with nine Central Ohio c
identifies local transportation needs of people with disabilities, older adults, and those with lo ormgs. The
plan is providing strategies for meeting those needs, as well as prioritizing transportation se %

projects for funding and implementation. In 2023, MORPC continued the steps to implement Yge PJan through
continued discussion with the stakeholders in the nine-county area.

Statewide Congestion Mitigation Air Quality (CMAQ) — In 2023, MORPC co
in establishing priorities for application procedures, statewide record keeping,

o play an integral role
irftg the Ohio Statewide

Urban CMAQ Committee

Transportation Review Advisory Council (TRAC) - MORPC aSSISt \s with providing project
status updates, funding requests, and public involvement. Eleven our transportation-planning
area (Ten from MPO & one from CORPO) were submitted to TR e 2023 application period.
MORPC evaluated projects as part of its prioritization process. mment period was held during the
summer, and a resolution with MORPC’s prioritization of thgproj
September.

Competitive Advantage Projects (CAP) — In eve
advance strategic infrastructure investments acr
worked with economic development leaders t e fuhding opportunities for the CAP list of prioritized
infrastructure projects for road, water, fiber i anning projects seeking capital funds.

Gohio Commute — MORPC'’s regional ridé
customized transportation services S
carpooling, and vanpooling. In 20 JORPC continued to maintain the development and deployment of
software and a ride- matching >
Gohio brand umbrella with R0
collaboration with the ot

through the Ohio Association of Regional Councils (OARC) and ODOT.

Ohio Public Works Co ission (OPWC) District 3 Integrating Committee — Administered by MORPC,
the committee awarded ov@és $28 million for infrastructure projects. In addition, $3 million from the Clean Ohio
Conservation Fund V\’s awarded to preserve or restore green space in Franklin County.

Franklin Transportation Improvement District — The Franklin County Transportation Improvement
lebrated four years of service in 2023. The FCTID is a government body intended to fund
on projects under its own bonding authority. The MORPC team serves as administration for the

members hosted monthly meetings for the district.

backer Area Study — MORPC partnered with multiple stakeholders in the Rickenbacker International
area on a community-driven study to provide a strategy to help Central Ohio better position the area
s a successful international logistics hub. This plan was completed in 2019. In 2023, MORPC team members




continued to meet with stakeholders to implement strategies and projects from the plan, such as the
groundbreaking for COTA’s Rickenbacker Mobility Center and Alum Creek Drive project development.

Downtown C-PASS - Starting in 2018 MORPC partnered with the Central Ohio Transit Authority (COTA)
and Capital Crossroads Special Improvement District (CCSID) property owners to create a program for

eligible downtown Columbus workers to obtain a special transit pass (C-PASS) for unlimited use any,
time, on any COTA bus route — at no cost to the employee. It continues to use the Gohio system and
from MORPC team members for tracking riders.

Central Ohio Rural Planning Organization — MORPC worked to advance transportation pl&
adjacent or contiguous counties (Fairfield, Knox, Madison, Marion, Morrow, Pickaway and U
Central Ohio Rural Planning Organization (CORPO). MORPC, on behalf of CORPO, anfually develops,
maintains and reports to the community on the required CORPO-specific Planning
2023, CORPO completed the 2023-2050 CORPO Transportation Plan, the first ug ince the original plan
was completed in 2028. CORPO also selected three projects to use almost $1 in'CORPO dedicated

funding made available through the biennial ODOT transportation budget.

evelopment of the region’s
ne Columbus, the region’s
ic developers, workforce
development stakeholders, transportation officials, higher educatio sentatives, and many others for a
set of key conversations about Central Ohio’s economic de trengths and opportunities. In 2022,
MORPC submitted the application with the U.S. Econo ent Administration for Economic
Development District (EDD) designation for the central {Ohio . In 2023 MORPC was designated as an
EDD by the US EDA and continued meeting with vagi stakeholders on setting up the EDD.

Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy — MORPC recen
Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) in partn i

planning assistance to four communities wi area. The next cycle began with an update to the
policies and a call for projects occurred i ref 2023. Two communities were selected for the next
round of technical assistance.

Technical Assistance Program (TAP) — In Z\e vious TAP cycle concluded providing technical
iQ t

Safety Planning — MORPC conti
continued its collaboration wit
Regional Councils (OARC),
and safety awareness.

diefforts to support safety improvements throughout the region. MORPC

Active Transportation n — The 2020-2050 Active Transportation Plan (ATP) was adopted by Commission
at its December 2021 meeting. Throughout 2023, the resources, including the Bicycle Level of Traffic Stress
analysis and a,compa#tion story map was promoted throughout the region. The ATP advances the regional
priorities of Metropolitan Transportation Plan and helps communities within the Metropolitan Planning
Organizaii a to plan for and implement projects that include pedestrian, bicycle, and transit infrastructure
in the rg@iop.

ssenger Rail — In 2023, MORPC worked with the City of Fort Wayne Indiana to submit the

rt Wayne-Columbus-Pittsburgh corridor for the federal Corridor Identification and Development
rogram. We also provided support to the Ohio Rail Development Commission’s application for the
and-Columbus-Dayton-Cincinnati (3C&D) corridor. In 2023, both corridors were selected to begin

roject development activities. MORPC also worked with the Federal Railroad Administration (FRA) and other




regional stakeholders to provide input on the FRA’s ongoing Long-Distance Service Study, which included
multiple potential passenger rail corridors through Central Ohio for further development.

Planning & Sustainability

Central Ohio Greenways (COG) Board —- MORPC and the COG Board continued to host and coordi
trail-related educational outreach to promote land preservation, recreation, and stewardship alon
the region’s waterways. Together, we added an urban Trail Town Framework Report and negsffegmgleted a
regional trail wayfinding study. In partnership with Experience Columbus, the Outdoor Trails % pntinued
to reach new users. MORPC also engaged state and local stakeholders to work towards design rivers in
Franklin County as designated waterways through our Blueways program. Finally, MORRC continue to
provide staff support to RAPID 5, a non-profit focused on creating the largest interc park system in
the country by becoming a land trust.

actions of the Regional Housing Strategy, particularly for housing-supp ates to comprehensive plans
imination. To assist
erg/updated communications and
housing of all types and prices to

Regional Housing Support & Outreach — MORPC and its members cont ance the priority
i d
S

and zoning codes, and policies that protect residents from source-of-in€o
members with implementing these and other actions, MORPC tea e
outreach with storytelling and workshops focused on the imperati

meet the needs of our diverse and growing communities.

Community-Based Planning Assistance Program — layhched a new program that supports
communities’ efforts to envision and plan for their futurd. It pr@vides a one-stop shop for MORPC member
ou

a wide-range of assistance programs,
d land use as well as connecting communities to

communities to help them with their community ne
including providing direct planning services arounfl z
consultant services.

Air Quality Awareness — MORPC contipé Oyprovide air quality forecasts for the region and raised
awareness about air pollution and air-frien@ afsportation choices through a variety of strategies, including
press releases, social media, mediagmterview®, and community presentations. With the Canadian wildfires
last year, we had to issue signifi Air Quality Alerts in 2023 than in previous year. MORPC also
continued to partner with Frankli nty Public Health to analyze mobile air quality monitors in select
locations to better understa rtionate impacts across neighborhoods. Finally, the team continued to
move forward a new US unded project to significantly expand the neighborhood air monitoring
work in Franklin Coun

Energy Planning - MORP® continued to serve as a regional expert when it comes to energy planning. We
were able to provide gésources, technical assistance, and support to MORPC members in advancing energy
efficiency and’clean energy solutions. This work was done through hosting open conversations, applying for
several | le grant opportunities (e.g. CFl and CPRG), and by advancing key projects, such as the
Regio ity Energy Strategy (ReCES) which would add solar to public and residential buildings.

G olse Gas Inventory — MORPC worked again with the City of Columbus Department of Public Utilities
0 d update greenhouse gas emissions data and created the final analysis and report.

Resources — MORPC continued to lead the Sustaining Scioto Board and support its Ag & Rural
ommunities Outreach Team. Through this board’s effort, the Ohio EPA is now spearheading a regional
water study that will look at water supply & demand now and in the future. MORPC will be a key partner




during the study, esp. around data & stakeholder engagement. MORPC also continued to support Ohio EPA’s
208 planning work, which included the development of an interactive online map and updates to the Licking
and Delaware county plans. Finally, MORPC again celebrated Riverfest through a week of virtual messaging
focused on engaging diverse populations in water conservation and recreation and partnered with RAPID

and Metro Parks to offer canoeing and kayaking opportunities at the Greater Columbus Arts Festival in June.

Sustainability Advisory Committee (SAC) — MORPC continued to host regular meetings with a div
group of stakeholders to guide the region’s sustainability initiatives. With SAC input, staff support
Summit on Sustainability and break-out sessions, attracting the highest attendance ever, wit
people.

Sustainable2050 — MORPC continued to host quarterly Sustainable2050 member me s to provide a
forum for sharing best practices. The team also partnered again with OSU’s City a al Planning
program and Sustainability Institute to support members with technical assistan ts through planning

studios and capstone courses.
N and move important
e team also updated the

round data and its outcomes
ecision-makers. It resulted in new

Regional Data Advisory Committee (RDAC) — This Committee contin
projects forward, including hosting the first (sold-out) Data Day in Mar
Regional Data Agenda to be a document that reflects the needs of r
can not only be measured but also are useful to data professiona
working groups around Al and cyber security and more.

Leaders Listen Surveys — Over the past year, MORPC edZ new public surveys, one around
transportation and one around sustainability, that attragfed ovgr2,000 responses and helped inform decision-

makers on how their constituents think about these i .

Online Data Information — MORPC continue o%in and improve our Population Resource Hub
(https://www.morpc.org/popdata) and also baga g on implementing an online insights platform which
will be a web application whose purpose j %s e access to a curated set of data and analyses from

MORPC, and eventually from our partners: latform will include data on a variety of topics summarized at
the regional, county, and communit els.

Residential Services

MORPC provided homgfe iciency services for approximately 400 income-eligible households in the
region through the Colufm@ia Gas of Ohio’s WarmChoice Program and the federally funded Home
Weatherization Assistance¥rogram (HWAP). MORPC also assisted individuals at 80 percent or below of the
median income guidefines with multiple home repair programs. In 2023, this included:

lin County Urgent Home Repair

Ohio Community Improvement Corporation (COCIC)

ounty Public Health-Ohio Department of Health Lead-Safe Home Fund

Ithy Homes Program
ffordable Housing Trust

major highlights for Residential Services for 2023:
e Continued COVID-19 protocols to keep employees and clients safe
e Creation of Home Repair Program for the City of Westerville




e Creation of Universal General Contractor application in Spanish
e Continued creation of funding pool to expedite General Contractor payments
¢ Implemented new phone system to streamline intake process for weatherization
e Created ASHRAE fan installation process to produce a revenue stream for
Residential Services V
Operations

Annual Salary and Fringe Benefit Survey — MORPC continued its tradition of collaboratin @ cal
governments in the region to compile the annual salary and fringe benefits survey. Forty menthg

governments provided a variety of compensation and benefit data that was compiled fortge use of our
members. The survey is a valuable tool for use in determining how compensation s ompare across
different organizations.

across Central Ohio and throughout the state. As part of this effort, MO vened the Mid-Ohio Finance

Administrators (MOFA) to discuss current topics of interest and share i ithother local governments in
of the Ohio Association of

Central Ohio. Similarly, MORPC convened the finance directors fr e
Regional Councils (OARC) to discuss topics of interest and share JOARC members include MORPC
g

Convening Finance Directors — In 2023, MORPC collaborated with other& ns’ finance directors
C

and other regional councils and regional transportation plannin jzétions.

Government Affairs & Community Relations

Government Affairs — In January, a group of MQRP@mstaft leaders and Executive Officers traveled to
Washington D.C. for the National Association iongl Councils annual National Conference of Regions.
This group of MORPC leaders shared criticaimgp on Amtrak, Infrastructure, Competitive Advantage
Projects and more with Congressional d members and staff.

2023 also marked the beginning of gress and Ohio General Assembly, during which Ohio’s state
lawmakers passed transportatio ting budgets for fiscal years 2024 and 2025. MORPC advocated
on both bills, including for sevgrafp
thresholds, funding for regio portation planning organizations, a state low-income housing tax credit, a
new round of sewer and yfat ds, rail safety funding, and a renewal of the Brownfield Remediation and
Demolition Programs). hio"Senate also created a Select Committee on Housing, at which several
MORPC communities a artner organizations offered testimony. As a result of MORPC advocacy, the
committee’s final report inclfdded a recommendation to create a housing technical assistance grant for locally
led zoning code refogf.

a first-gf-itsgki mmit in July with leaders in the Rickenbacker area to discuss opportunities for cooperation
ration. Community members discussed joint procurement opportunities, energy, and workforce
laid groundwork for service agreements.

th&@federal level, in collaboration with the Columbus Region Coalition (CRC), MORPC successfully
ated for more than $10.4 million in Congressionally Directed Spending and Community Project Funding
r eight local projects in federal fiscal year 2024.




Build Value for Our Members — In 2023, MORPC had four new communities join as members: Marion
County, City of Newark, Village of South Bloomfield, and Village of West Jefferson. Staff also convened five
Regional Collaborations, and four Rural Forums on Mobility, Housing, Sustainable Community Development
and Trails and Tourism Economy. Our members services team visited 85 member governments.

This past year, MORPC convened five pre-Commission luncheons with critical regional leaders:
e Ohio University President Hugh Sherman
o Rail Safety Forum with Senator Bill Reinke and staff from Senator Brown and

Senator Vance’s offices
e Districted Driving Primary Offense
¢ Holiday Board Recognition Luncheon
e Brookings Institute Luncheon with Tracy Hadden-Loh ?

Drive Investment —
Monday Mondays: With historical federal funding available for our communities @ vernment Affairs &

Community Relations team proactively created Money Mondays. The sessi ke gesigned to add
investment value for our members, by discussing relevant topics relate ourfpembers’ community needs.
We hosted 40 Money Monday sessions in 2023. Funding opportunities to the topics were also
presented. For example, topics ranged from mobility/transportatio storigggfeservation, affordable housing,
utilizing A.l. to enhance grant applications, and federal public saf g

To strengthen MORPC'’s drive investment approach MOR taff Were assertive in advocating for strategic
investment in the region. MORPC leads a group called 0 s Region Coalition which is a coalition of
16 partners that advocates collectively for investment ifi the r&gion. Last year the Columbus Region Coalition
endorsed 18 community projects for congression ending. Of those 18 projects, 11 were funded,
two of which were Competitive Advantage Projec(g, d year end federal omnibus budget bill totaling over
$26 million in investment. Earlier, in the year, R ff worked closely with the Central Ohio General

Assembly Delegation and regional partner; e the State Capital Budget bill maximizes economic and
sustainable development opportunities f ion.

In November of 2023, MORPC ap for the"Electric Vehicle Charger Reliability and Accessibility
Accelerator grant through FHWA! as awarded two million dollars to repair and/or replace hundreds
of EV charging stations withins@™h§-Cunty area. This is a prime example of federal discretionary grant dollars
making tangible changes to O i0’s transportation infrastructure and driving investments into our
region.

Pay it Forward - MOR taff led the Local Government Summer Intern Program and placed 51 interns at
local government members?These experiences help shape the next generation of public servants in Central
Ohio. Staff coptinuedfto promote our partnerships with universities, building value for our members. Among
the most p ar is the partnership with Franklin University which experienced the highest enrollment from
MORPCgnembegs since we began our partnership, with 38 local government employees participating.

Co

tions & Engagement

ting & Outreach - In 2023, MORPC communicated and promoted its initiatives, programs, and
services to the communities it serves through traditional media outreach efforts including print and radio.
ditionally, staff participated in community panels and presentations to committees, in addition to virtual
engagement opportunities. This effort included execution of a brand awareness campaign for the Gohio




Program, which utilized the following platforms for advertising the program: local radio advertising, Google
ads and social media.

MORPC continued to promote a variety of public engagement opportunities throughout the year through
social media and the monthly Regional eSource Newsletter. In addition to the promotion of public involvement
and engagement opportunities (see below), the department highlights various topics through social med
throughout the year, including: air quality awareness week, infrastructure week, bike safety week, sma
business week, National Lead Prevention Week, Pedestrian Safety Month, Firewood Awareness
local government summer internship program, weatherization, Sustainable 2050, LinkUS, angs¥
direct service programs (Home repair & weatherization programs, Gohio Commute & Gohio (i
Quality).

Enhancing Community Involvement in Transportation Planning - MORPC’s Comm
(CAC) is comprised of volunteer residents with an interest in transportation plangiag programming areas.
The purpose of the CAC is to provide community participation in transportationfp gypriorities, funding,
processes, and programs. In 2023, CAC was comprised of 21 members, a sportation-related
resolutions were brought forward and adopted. r\

Diversity, Equity, & Inclusion (DE&I) - This past year, MORPC ¢
equity, and inclusion efforts within the agency and beyond. MOR
partnership with YWCA of Columbus; the training was related t
focused on how historic planning efforts and institutionalized raci
redlining, and how it affects the community to this day.

commitment to diversity,

d staff diversity training in
Undesign the Redline exhibit, which
to the discriminatory practice of

In 2023, a new Minority Business Enterprise (MBE
and procurement to attract and retain minority-o
a 5% annual spend with minority-owned busin
Connect, the world’s largest pool of Histori
the agency’s outreach to local and natio
expanded to provide a new member bene
through a new career portal, which
positions to HBCU Connect’s job

gy was launched, with a focus on supplier diversity
siffesses and meet the agency’s MBE goals, which is

ollege University graduates and students, to facilitate
and graduates of HBCUs. In 2023, the partnership was
expand MORPC'’s own recruitment of minority applicants

oards at no additional cost to our members per posting.
The Communications & Eng@gemant ¥eam organized and hosted the inaugural Supplier Diversity &
Procurement Fair, which ) d/small and minority-owned businesses with procurement professionals
from across the regiong9 ggencies, local governments, community organizations, and private sector
companies participated more than 50 people in attendance. MORPC hosted a number of meetings and
events that amplified the a@ency’s DE&I efforts, including Conference of Minority Transportation Officials
(COMTO) meetings w Community Organizations DE&I Leaders Forum. MORPC team members also

anklin County Board of Commissioners Office of Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion’s emerging small
iness procurement event
DOT Division of Opportunity, Diversity & Inclusion MBE and Diverse Business Opportunity Expo

offfimunications & Engagement hosted various public information campaigns and events throughout 2023,
cluding lunch & learns and panel discussions for recognitions such as Celebrate Diversity Month, National




Hispanic Heritage Month, Black History Month, Women’s History Month, and Asian American and Pacific
Islander Month.

The internal DE&I committee, chaired by diversity, inclusion & engagement officer Ralonda Hampton, hel

meetings in 2023. Additionally, senior director Niel Jurist leads the National Association of Regional Councils’
(NARC) national DE&I committee; she also was a panelist for a community discussion hosted by the
Ohio American Heart Association, centered around neighborhood quality and heart health.

Central Ohio community to strengthen inclusivity in its outreach and engagement efforts. Ev
opportunity for staff to engage with community members, share information about the agency&g prggrams and
services, recruit potential employees and interns, and promote public engagement oppotunities. In 2023,
MORPC participated in 24 events (vs. 14 events in 2022, a 171% increase in com i agement),
including:
e 614 Day: MORPC was a featured agency at this event that drew ove @ atteéndees with 40 local

vendors.
Affordable Housing Fair \
Advancing Diversity and Fostering a Culturally Inclusive Wori%a el

Asian American & Pacific Islander Heritage Month Celeb n
Capitol Square Power Up Career Expo

Public Involvement & Engagement - MORPC is constantly striving to advance the agency’s |:I

Classic for Columbus Resource Fair
The Crane Group x MBK Community & Career FafRHBCW Classic

Franklin County Auditor’s Fall Affordable Housj a

Franklin County DE&I Conference

Franklin County Engineer’s Office Touc%@

Franklin County Faith Leaders Forum,a rce fair, hosted by the Franklin County
Commissioners \

Hilliard City Schools Career Day, B Panel

e King Arts Complex’s 2023 MLK
National African American Male Wellgless Agency’s 20th annual African American Male Wellness

Walk (MORPC was a s and participant of this year’s walk, which drew over 35,000 attendees)
National County Govern n House

Riverfest at the CBlumbus Arts Festival, hosted annually by MORPC and partners

Senigr Comyfiunity Resource Fair

S and Emerging Business Enterprise Mixer
ate @f Ohio MBE Expo

YWCA Columbus Activists and Agitators

Th public participation opportunities were promoted in 2023 via social media, the monthly Regional
o@fCe newsletter, and via print/digital media:
5310 applications
e Attributable Funds projects
e Central Ohio Rural Transportation Planning Organization (CORPO) draft Transportation Plan
Climate Pollution Reduction Grant (CPRG) public comment period and survey




Columbus Climate Action Plan

Leaders Listen Survey Series

MORPC Messaging Survey

MTP Draft Regional Transportation Plan Objectives and Performance Measures

PRO Housing Grant Application Draft Proposal
Promoting Infrastructure Survey V
Regional Investment Survey

RFPs and RFQs

Technical Assistance Program
TRAC projects

MORPC hosted three open houses and public meetings in 2023, including:
e CORPO Public Meeting

e PRO Housing Grant Application Open House
e Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) Open House

Events — In addition to the events already mentioned, MORPC held s@ egional and signature

events.

MORPC held its annual State of the Region, Powering Our Regi
featured keynote speaker Deputy Assistant Secretary Charlgs S
Transportation, with nearly 1,000 local leaders and chan
innovative holographic experience displaying the futur
of the inaugural Leaders Listen survey, which was the figst in
experiences and desires for transportation in the @entr,

rd, on March 31, 2023. The event
‘WInited States Department of
attendance. The event featured an
ation in Central Ohio, and unveiled results
series, and explored local residents’
region.

The MORPC Annual Social Media Summit was el ugust 1, bringing municipal communications
professionals together for presentations r% s8¢ on best practices around social media, including Al and
9

Chat GPT, by presenters from the Marke stitute, Hunter Marketing, and the Village of Somerset.

The Regional Transportation Saf um took place on September 21, 2023. The event provides an
opportunity for MORPC members I nal partners to discuss safety priorities and hear from experts on
their experiences working toj AdxeWpadway safety throughout Central Ohio. Keynote speaker Councilor
John Barth, City of Indiangp¢ @ ed his remarks with a fireside chat, and the program featured a panel of
faculty members from . ate University.

On October 26, MORPC ted the annual Summit on Sustainability - Collaborate. Innovate. Inspire. -
MORPC'’s signature ?vironmental conference. The event drew nearly 600 attendees, and featured keynote
speaker Tod@/Brady, Chief Sustainability Officer and Vice President of Global Public Affairs for Intel

Corporatiosf; Who discussed Intel’s global sustainability initiatives, including climate, energy, water, green
buildingg? and cifgular economy. The conference featured breakout sessions, speakers throughout the day,
includi cha Kucha style presentations by local community leaders and lunch speaker Mitchell Silver, and
theppres tion of the Regional Sustainability Awards.

eglal Projects -

ice40 - On January 27, 2021, Presidential Executive Order (E.O. 14008) — Tackling the Climate Crisis at
ome and Abroad was issued. E.O. 14008, known as Justice40, mandates at least 40 percent of the overall
enefits of certain Federal investments must go to disadvantaged communities that are marginalized,

underserved, and overburdened by pollution. In 2023 MORPC, along with partners COTA and the Columbus




Partnership, initiated efforts to prioritize the Justice40 initiative to ensure that Central Ohio is not only
competitive in its pursuits of federal dollars, but ensures that the region is planning for a more equitable
future. MORPC worked with consultant Cityfi to develop training for MORPC staff and local business, higher
education, corporate, and nonprofit leaders to educate them on the history and implications of the Justice
initiative, as well as how they can ensure that efforts to obtain federal grants meet Justice40 requirements.
The initial efforts will be bolstered by planned expanded work throughout 2024.

Brand Messaging - MORPC partnered with consultants to develop a new, fresh messaging frameW

the agency to further refine the new messaging. This work resulted in updated agency mjssion and vision, as
well as a new tagline and the who, what, and why of MORPC.

Website Refresh - In summer 2023, MORPC’s website update was rolled out @ e a new, fresh look and

format, as well as more advanced editing functionality. The new website desi a-driven and features a
more responsive, and modern user experience.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The economy in Central Ohio is anchored by the City of Colgmbu ich is the only major city in the
northeast quadrant of the country to have grown continugusyAgincg’1970. Columbus is the 14th largest city in
the United States, according to a 2020 U.S. Census Buyfeau ate (the most recent available), with
905,748 residents in the city proper and over 2.1 millio\in thg/Metropolitan Statistical Area. This places

Columbus just behind Fort Worth, Texas and just dianapolis, Indiana in the national rankings by

population.

Population growth in Columbus since theg0 s through 2020 is 15 percent, which is a greater rate of
growth than any other city in the Northeast\g

more. According to 2020 decennial pagional sus results, which were released by the U.S. Census Bureau
in August 2021, state-level aggreg, indicates that Ohio’s population has grown only 2.3% from 2010 to
2020, to 11,799,448, and OhighasW@st a seat in the U.S. House of Representatives. The City of Columbus is
one of the largest cities in th € ates with an AAA bond rating from Standard & Poor’s Corporation and
an Aaa rating from Moodys g ars Services, Inc. Franklin County also enjoys these high bond ratings.
Unemployment rates for¥ffe last five years were as follows:

P 4 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Unitedg8tates 3.5% 6.7% 3.9% 3.5% 3.7%
Ohj 4.1% 5.6% 4.5% 4.1% 3.6%
ugbus MSA 3.2% 4.4% 2.9% 3.1% 2.7%

bus is one of the few metropolitan areas in the Midwest that has consistently performed well

ically in the last decade. Comparing Columbus to the nation and State of Ohio, unemployment rate,
ecent job growth, and projected future job growth regularly exceeds the corresponding averages. The region
bouncing back from the negative economic impacts of the COVID pandemic. The Central Ohio region is

well-positioned to take advantage of future economic growth opportunities. This has most recently included




the announcements of billions of dollars in investment in the region by the following private corporations: Intel,
Hyperion, and Honda.

Interest in joining MORPC as a member continues to be expressed by other governments, including counti
townships and municipalities, enhancing MORPC’s prospects for further growth within its geographic region.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION V

DISCUSSION OF CONTROLS: MORPC adopts its annual appropriated budget in Decembe % following
year and makes a mid-year revision if needed. Budgetary control is maintained using the follGying

appropriation accounts:

Salaries

Benefits

Services and charges, and materials

Board Member Reimbursements \

Grants to Non-Profit Organizations and Governments

Capital expenditures

A more detailed level within each appropriation is accounted fo %rted internally and at the Executive

Committee. The budget and appropriations are adopted by fgsolutig@n of the MORPC Commission. The
Commission has delegated to the Finance Director Iim@ i/ to transfer amounts among the

appropriation accounts within the total appropriated.

MORPC operates like a consulting business, wit f its revenue received under actual cost
reimbursement contracts or from programs like%he fi rice home weatherization contracts. As a result of
this funding structure, MORPC accounts f opetations as a single enterprise fund, following generally

Q
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) d @ crual basis. The budget is also developed on the GAAP
basis and is detailed in six-month periods byaeaéh contract or other source of funds and includes only those
amounts estimated to be earned d the budget period. MORPC'’s financial information system performs
budgetary control and activity-ba counting in order to manage the financially critical task of staying
within budget for each contragteehacClyvity. GAAP financial statements and comprehensive budget-to-actual
performance reports, with en of major variances, are prepared monthly and presented to the

Executive Committee qugifte

The Executive Committe8yauthorizes each individual contract in excess of $75,000 if the expense is included
in the current budget. VarioUs financial status reports are periodically submitted to grantors according to their
requirements gl'he Fﬁklin County Auditor also ensures that all expenditures are within amounts appropriated
by MORP

Numergus accounting and administrative controls exist to assure compliance with federal and state laws,
applicab¥ regulations such as the U.S. Office of Management & Budget's Uniform Administrative
Re ts, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (“OMB Uniform Requirements”),
e s and conditions of the many contracts, as well as the Commission's own adopted policies and
ceglures, which are periodically reviewed and updated. Because the cost of internal control should not
exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the
ancial statements are free of any material misstatements. The accountants' report on internal control




appears at the beginning of the Single Audit Section of this report and discloses no condition considered to be
a material weakness.

PROPRIETARY OPERATIONS: As discussed above, MORPC is an association of local governments
comprised of counties, cities, villages and townships and other regional governments with governmental and
non-profit status. It operates similar to a consulting business and is treated as a single enterprise for
accounting, budgetary and financial presentation purposes.

It is MORPC'’s policy to charge user fees to organizations and individuals who contract for or yegug
services and products of MORPC staff. The user fees are established and calculated on a 1 ent actual
cost recovery basis, including capital costs, in conformance with MORPC's activity-based, feBgra

negotiated, organization-wide cost allocation plan.

ards Board (GASB)
lysis — for State and

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of the Commission. This discusgi
Accountants’ Report, providing an assessment of the Commission finafic

Members participate in the funding of MORPC on a per-capita bagis determined by the MORPC
Commission each year. Other revenues flow from contracts for§pecific gervices to be rendered on an actual
s are allocated in accordance with

cost basis with no provision for profit or based on completed units?
policies and procedures specified by OMB Uniform Requi
allocation plan for which the U.S. Department of Trans
$9,062,347 or 59.9% of its 2023 operating revenue
federal government, or indirectly under contracts

of Ohio and Franklin County.

The following is a summary of comparati operations, and the 2024 budget:

ing a single organization-wide cost
he oversight agency. MORPC received

| sources under contracts directly with the
rties for federal programs, principally the State

2022 Actual 2023 Actual 2024 Budget
Revenues
Federal grants and co $8,590,996 $9,062,347 $15,210,779
State grants and ¢ n@ 746,617 985,476 $1,492,087
Members' per-cafitafe 1,400,304 1,492,125 $1,576,319
Utility contracts 1,810,054 1,722,742 $2,095,620
Local contracts and Gther 2,182,229 1,709,190 $3,125,841
Foun 'ons/&porate contributions 116,135 158,396 $128,772
& Total Revenues $14,846,335 $15,130,276 $23,629,418
Exp€nsgs
ries and benefits $ 7,105,711 $7,954,952  $10,983,466
ion and other
Wemployment
< 3. benefits (1,485,539) 1,062,327 1,083,211
Consultants and subcontracts 2,941,707 2,998,916 6,996,347
Q Amortization and Depreciation 760,151 866,416 687,528




Other expenses 3,514,243 3,155,632 3,878,866
Total Expenses $12,836,273 $16,038,243 $23,629,418
Operating income (loss) 2,010,062 (907,966)
Interest income 20,014 93,710
Interest expense on leases and SBITAs
(117,632) (116,409)
Change in net position
$1,912,444 $(930,665)
Capital expenditures $132,046 $473,69

Members' per-capita fees of $1,492,125 were leveraged by a factor of over 10
operating revenues of $15,130,276. Total federal revenues increased as co
increased as travel demand rebounded from 2020 reductions related to CO
and weatherization programs rebounded (production was hampered in

e housing rehabilitation
to COVID), and as MORPC

implemented new federally-funded programs/activities. Local contracts% decreased to the level

observed in pre-pandemic years. MORPC received a large influx

Ohio Transit Authority (COTA) for its local funds in lieu of Fede

Transit Database funding as a result of additional FTA apportion

revenue decreased due to a reduction in weatherization wo

Overall, operating revenue increased in 2023 by $283,

3.3% or $142,359.

r in 2020-2021 from the Central
I si Administration (FTA) National

ceived by COTA. Utility contract

1 (19%) to $15,130,276. Most of the 2023 increase

was due to an increase in federal revenues of 5.5% 1. The increase in federal revenues was
partially offset by a decrease in nonfederal reven ciated with various grants, which decreased by

The following program and activity reven % > under budget by $100,000 or more in 2023:

Q
v

FTA Segtio esignated Recipient
ElectrigVghicle Climate Change
Ohio Department of Health Lead Remediation

Growth & Major Economic Development
HUv-IeaIthy Homes Production Program
Columbia Gas Warm Choice
Planning Grant NUC

palachian/Thriving Communities Grant NUC
HWAP BIL
Brownfield NUC

$ Amount

Under Budget

1,797,709
1,000,000
656,108
515,068
361,614
353,016
350,000
250,000
196,530
166,846




Available amounts for most of the above programs and activities were under contract with funders and were
available to be earned in 2023, some at lower-than-expected amounts. Some were anticipated but not funded
in 2023. The largest under budget item for FTA Section 5310 is the result of significant backlog in availability
of vehicles to enhance the mobility of seniors and individuals with disabilities.

BUILDING LEASE: MORPC leases approximately 26,849 square feet of office space to house the PC
office staff and public meeting areas. The lease commenced on November 1, 2017, was amended e i
November 1, 2019, and has an expiration date, including probable extensions, of October 31, 20

information regarding this lease can be found in notes 3,4, and 9 to the financial statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT: The financial statements are presented annually for independent a ccordance
with Ohio Revised Code Section 115.56 and OMB Uniform Requirements. The report of¢he Ohio Auditor of
State is included in the financial section of this report and is unmodified.

he Government
rtificate of

CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT FOR EXCELLENCE IN FINANCIAL REP® :
Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (“GFOA”) awgrde G
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Mid-Ohio Regi \'& g Commission for its
comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended Dece 22. MORPC has received a
Certificate of Achievement for the last thirty-five consecutive years gige Certificate of Achievement is a
prestigious national award recognizing conformance with the highgs rds for preparation of state and

local government financial reports.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a rfgentunit must publish an easily readable and

efficiently organized annual comprehensive financial r@n eport must satisfy both generally accepted
t

accounting principles and applicable legal require

comprehensive financial report continues togme ertificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a periNne ar only. We believe our current annual
we are submitting it to the GFOA to dete elgibility for another certificate.

cooperation and dedicated servi 5taff members of MORPC and the Ohio Auditor of State, our
independent auditors. We would,likéfto express sincere appreciation to all those who assisted and contributed
to its preparation. Appreciati % extended to the MORPC Executive Committee and officers for their

Ao (

interest and support in pl conducting the financial operations of MORPC in a responsible and
professional manner.

Respectfully submitted,

Execu irector

& ‘
WiIIiar@joc
: P. Hufstedler, CPA, CGFM
Q hief Operating Officer




® -

Government Finance Officers Association O E
Certificate of %

Achievement O
for Excellence \
1n Financi
Reporfa

@to

Mid-Ohio ional Planning Commission

Financial Report
For the Fiscal Year Ended

Q& ’ December 31, 2022
QQ_?” Clelopfu P Hornitt

Q@)r its Annual Comprehensive

Executive Director/CEO

17



Organizational Chart—Mana efn&pt Staff

<

MORPC

h As of December 31f

MORPC Governing
Board Officers

Chair: Chris Amorose Groomes
Vice-Chair: Michelle Crandall
Secretary: Ben Kessler \

Programming Operations

Shawn Hufstedler
Chief Operating Officer

Nick Gill
Interim Senior Director of
Programming &
Transportation Study Director

Planning Communications &
_ William Murdock Engagement
Kerstin Carr xecutive Director ] ,
Niel Jurist

Chief Regional Strategy
Officer & Senior Director of
Planning

Senior Director

Government Affairs & Residential Services

Community Relath Robert Williams

Senior Director

Joseph Gary
Senior Dire

V—
&

18



b

MORPC

Chair:

OFFICERS

Chris Amorose Groomes
Vice-Chair: Michelle Crandall
Secretary: Ben Kessler

Committees as of Decemb .

2023

CENTRAL OHIO RURAL
PLANNING ORGANIZATION
Chair: Mark Forrest

PURPOSE: Conduct rural
transportation planning in
coordination with local stake-

TRANSPORTATION

POLICY COMMITTEE

Chair: Chris Amorose
Groomes

PURPOSE: Direct, admin-
ister, and coordinate the

NOMINATING COMMITTEE
Chair: Ben Kessler

PURPOSE: Nominate candi-
dates for membership on the
Executive Committee and
nominate Commission

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
Chair: Michelle Crandall

PURPOSE: Report to the
Commission on personnel
matters, contracts, financial
positions, goals and objec-

oration, education, and
of best practices.

REGIONAL POLICY
ROUNDTABLE
Chair: David Scheffler

PURPOSE: Review key
federal and state legisla-
tion, sponsor legislation to
be submitted to the
General Assembly.

SUSTAINABILITY ADVISORY
COMMITTEE
Chair: Ben Kessler

PURPOSE: Evaluate and
advise on matters of regional
importance pertaining to envi-
ronmental sustainability, con-
servation, and relevant
MORPC programs.

holders, MPO’s and ODOT. transportation process in officers. tives, facility, etc.
Central Ohio.
COMMUNITY ADVISORY TRANSPORTATION BENEFITS &
COMMITTEE ADVISORY COMPENSATION OMMITTEE
Chair: LaGrieta Acheampong COMMITTEE COMMITTEE Nancy White

PURPOSE: Provide the
public an opportunity to
participate in and review and
comment on the formulation
of transportation plans,
policies and projects.

Chair: James Young

PURPOSE: Provide
technical advice to the
Transportation Policy
committee.

Chair: Joe Stefanov

C’s investments and
financial reserve strategies.

CENTRAL OHIO
GREENWAYS BOARD
Chair: Mike Andrako

PURPOSE: Provide econom-
ic, quality of life, and health
benefits to Central Ohioans
by increasing the number of
people using trails through
strategic partnership and
collaboration.

SUSTAINING SCIOTO
BOARD
Chair: Glenn Marzluf

PURPOSE: Guides the
Sustaining Scioto Imple-
mentation Plan to help the
region adapt to climate
change and ensure access
to clean and abundant
water for a growing region.

ENERGY & AIR QUALITY
WORKING GROUP
Chair: Matt Stephens-Rich

PURPOSE: Support and
advise the Sustainability
Advisory Committee and
MORPC Staff on matters
of regional importance
pertaining to air quality and
energy.

ATTRIBUTABLE FUNDS
COMMITTEE
Chair: James Young

PURPOSE: Provide advice
on the development and
execution of the processes
used to allocate MORPC-
attributable federal funds to
projects and project spon-
Sors.

ACTIVE TRANSPORTATI District 3 Natural Mid-Ohio
COMMITT os & Public Works Resources Assistance Finance
‘eoples . . . o
bey Trimble Integrating Committee Council AdT,\IAn(IDS;f;orS

transportation

19












MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Unaudited)

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) provides an overview of the Mid-Ohio

Regional Planning Commission’s (MORPC) financial performance and introduces the financial statements

for the year ended December 31, 2023. The information contained in the MD&A should be considered in
conjunction with the information presented in MORPC'’s financial statements and corresponding notes

the financial statements. V

Financial Highlights
e Net position decreased by $930,665 in 2023. This decrease was due mostly to: 1) né

$853,157 associated with the spending of local revenues received from the Central OF ransit
Authority (COTA) in lieu of Federal Transit Administration (FTA) National Tr

MORPC'’s calculations of the year-end 2023 net pension liability and ng iability; 3)
operating deficits totaling $182,213 from residential weatherization )

depreciation related to leasehold improvements. The losses are pa
$257,340 of unused member dues in 2023, which will be used
$100,165 gain in miscellaneous local programs: 3) $93,710 in

e In 2023, MORPC adopted GASB 96, Subscription-Bas rmation Technology Arrangements
(SBITA). GASB 96 requires reporting lease assets and liaRilitie€ for most subscription-based
information technology arrangements on the statemagt of Met Position. In this statement of Net
Position, the impact on GASB 96 can be seen jf the n e items “Capital assets — net of
accumulated amortization,” “Current Liability —Right 8 Use Leases and Subscriptions,” and

“Noncurrent liabilities — Right to Use Lea n criptions.” These changes reflect the
recognition of SBITA assets and SBIT& €9 on the statement of Net Position for the first
time.

e Operating revenue increased in @ $283,941 (1.9%) to $15,130,276. Most of the 2023
increase was due to an increase in f@géral revenues of 5.5% or $471,351. The increase in federal
revenues was partially o a decrease in nonfederal revenues associated with various
grants, which decreased .3%%0r $142,358.

e The operating expe @ eased by 24.9% or $3,201,969 from $12,836,273 in 2022 to
$16,038,242 i . Whigfincrease was primarily driven by 1) an increase in pension and OPEB
expenses, whichyificreased by $2,547,866 from negative expense ($1,485,539) in 2022 to a
positive $1,062,32%in 2023; 2) an increase in salaries and benefits expenses of 12% or
$849,241, 3){!1 increase in consultants and subcontractors’ expenses by 1.9% or $57,209 and 4)
an ingfease in amortization expense of 18% or $103,764. These increases in expense were
p offset by 5) decreases in other expenses by 10.2% or $358,612 from $3,514,243 in 2022

$3,15§,631 in 2023.

h and cash equivalents at December 31, 2023 were $2,726,246 consistent with prior year,
wing only a slight increase from the 2022 ending balance of $2,627,206

MORPC reported an operating loss of $907,966 in 2023. The 2023 loss was primarily attributable
to the same factors that decreased the net position as discussed above.

23



Overview of the Financial Statements

MORPC'’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). MORPC is structured as a
single enterprise (proprietary) fund with revenues recognized when earned and expenses when incurred.
Capital assets are capitalized and are depreciated over their useful lives. See the notes to the financial
statements for a summary of MORPC'’s significant accounting policies.

Following this MD&A are the basic financial statements of MORPC together with notes, whiclfare
essential to a full understanding of the data contained in these statements. Included in the fi @
statements for MORPC are the following:

Statement of Net Position — This statement presents information on all MORPC'’s 1 nd deferred
outflows of resources, and 2) liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with t i nce between the
two reported as net position.

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position — This Nmeasures the success
of operations and can be used to determine whether MORPC success red all of its costs

I
through federal, State of Ohio, local government, and utility comp oniraglS, members’ per capita
fees, and other contributions and revenues. %

Statement of Cash Flows — This statement reports cash recgipts, Ggsh disbursements, and net changes
in cash resulting from operating activities, investing actiyjties, @pd gapital and related financing activities.
This statement provides answers to such questions asfifrom where the cash came, for what was cash
used, and what was the net change in cash for ea f reporting periods. Reconciliation of operating
income with net cash is also provided.

Net Financial Position
The following represents MORPC’s net p@s of the years ended December 31, 2023, and 2022:
C Statement of Net Position
2023 2022
ASSETS
Current assets $ 6,521,793 $ 6,440,926
Capital assets, net of aggcumulated 6,669,421 7,062,140

depreciation
sset ,

Net OPE 0 1,088,535
Total A $ 13,191,214 $ 14,591,601

DEF D OUTFLOWS OF

SO ES
and OPEB $ 4.635.594 $ 1,451,923
ABILITIES
Current liabilities $ 2.758.193 $ 1,888,808
Net pension and OPEB liability 9.943,599 3,089,268
Other noncurrent liabilities 5.191.567 5.632.349
Total Liabilities $ 17,893,359 $ 10,610,425

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension and OPEB $ 352,136 $ 4,921,120

24



NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets $ 1,380,411 $ 1,448,135
Restricted 2,373,198 3,226,073
Unrestricted (4,172,296) (4,162,230)

Total Net Position $ (418,687) $ 511,978 V

The net pension liability and lease liability on December 31, 2022, and 2023 are the most sig@
liabilities reported.

Subscription based information technology arrangements (SBITA) are reported p nt to GASB
Statement No. 96, SBITA. Statement No. 96 requires the recognition of certai aSsets and
liabilities for SBITA that were previously classified as software subscription ensejand recognizes an
inflow or outflow of resources based on the payment provisions of the s jorrcontract. This standard
establishes one model for SBITA accounting based on the principle that a e subscription is a
financing of the right to use an underlying asset. The software userdsyrequiregl to recognize a SBITA
liability and an intangible right-to-use SBITA asset.

Leases are reported pursuant to GASB Statement No. 87, ement No. 87 requires the
recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leasgssthaiwege previously classified as operating
leases and recognizes an inflow or outflow of resourceg bas the payment provisions of the contract.
This standard establishes one model for lease accountiyg baged on the principle that a lease is a
financing of the right to use an underlying asset. % s required to recognize a lease liability and

an intangible right-to-use lease asset.

8 e No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for

7, and OPEB are reported as per the similar-in-concept
GASB Statement No. 75 Accounting ial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions (OPEB, i.e. retiree heal} benefits). For reasons discussed below, many end users of this
financial statement will gain a @ understanding of MORPC'’s actual financial condition by adding
deferred inflows related to pé 3¢
and then subtracting net @P set and deferred outflows related to pension and OPEB.

Pensions are reported pursuant to GASB
Pensions—an Amendment of GASB State

GASB standards are nafighal and apply to all government financial reports prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accourtting principles. When accounting for pension costs prior to 2015, the now-
superseded GASB Sigtement No. 27 focused on a funding approach. This approach limited pension
costs to co utions annually required by law, which may or may not be sufficient to fully fund each
plan’s net,fersjon liability. GASB Statements Nos. 68 and 75 take an earnings approach to pension and

¢ however, the nature of Ohio’s statewide pension system — the Ohio Public Employees’
System (OPERS) — and state law governing the system, requires additional explanation in
erly understand the information presented in these statements.

the standards required by GASB Statements Nos. 68 and 75, the net pension and net OPEB
ity equal MORPC’s proportionate share of OPERS’ collective present value of estimated future
ension and OPEB benefits attributable to active and inactive employees’ past service; minus plan assets
available to pay these benefits.

GASB notes that pension and OPEB obligations, whether funded or unfunded, are part of the
“employment exchange” — that is, the employee is trading his or her labor in exchange for wages,
benefits, and the promise of a future pension and OPEB. GASB noted that the unfunded portion of this
promise is a present obligation of the government, part of a bargained-for benefit to the employee and

25



should accordingly be reported by the government as a liability since they received the benefit of the
exchange. However, MORPC is not responsible for certain key factors affecting the balance of this
liability. In Ohio, the employee shares the obligation of funding pension benefits with the employer. Both
employer and employee contribution rates are capped by state statute. A change in these caps requires
action of both houses of the General Assembly and approval of the Governor. Benefit provisions are also
determined by state statute. Furthermore, OPEB are not mandated by state law and could be rescinded
in a similar manner. An employee enters the employment exchange with the knowledge that the
employer’s promise is limited not by contract but by law. The employer enters the exchange also knowi
that there is a specific, legal limit to its contribution to the pension system. In Ohio, there is currently n
legal means to enforce the unfunded liability of the pension system against the public employer.
operates to mitigate or lessen the moral obligation of the public employer to the employee, bg€atige
parties enter the employment exchange with notice as to the law. OPERS is responsible for Q
administration of the plan.

Most long-term liabilities have set repayment schedules or, in the case of compens nces (i.e.
sick and vacation leave), are satisfied through paid time-off or termination pay ere Is no
repayment schedule for the net pension and net OPEB liability. As explained a @ ges in pension
benefits, contribution rates, and return on investments affect the balance of pghsion and net

S

OPEB liabilities but are outside the control of MORPC. If contributions, i ntreturns, and other
changes are insufficient to keep up with required pension payments, st@t does not assign/identify
the responsible party for the unfunded portion. Due to the unique e of hgw the net pension and net
OPERB liability is satisfied, these liabilities are separately identifiediwi long-term liability section of
the statement of net position. In accordance with GASB State ts Nog? 68 and 75, MORPC'’s
statements include an annual pension and OPEB expense fgr its Pgoportionate share of OPERS’ change

in net pension and net OPEB liabilities not accounted fo inflows or deferred outflows. Also, in
accordance with GASB Statements Nos. 68 and 75, M@

eporting a net pension liability, a net
OPEB asset, and deferred inflows and outflows of ragoMgces selated to pension and OPEB on the accrual
basis of accounting.

Current assets increased by $80,868 (1.3
increases in cash balance $99,040 and s
($38,788).

om 2022. This can mostly be attributed to slight
eceivables $22,869 and decrease in prepaid expenses

Capital assets, net of accumulz Q preciation and amortization, decreased by $392,719 as
depreciation for fix assets outwaig

replacement of furniture and @

the additions during 202

Deferred outflows of régources are described more fully in note 6 to the financial statements. Changes
in the 2023 GASB Statement No. 68- and GASB Statement No. 75-mandated deferred outflows of
resources for ensiow and OPEB are mostly comprised of 1) MORPC’s contractually required pension
PERS made subsequent to the plan measurement date ($830,406 in 2023 compared to

ahd 2) amortization for Right to Use Assets and SBITAs outweighed

$742,797,f 2
arisin changes in actuarial assumptions ($301,517 in 2023 vs. $386,309 in 2022); and 3) the

xper€nce (323,530 in 2023 vs. 157,487 in 2022).

nt liabilities increased by $869,385 (46.0%) in 2023 from 2022. This can essentially be attributed
the fact that SBITA are now reported pursuant to GASB Statement No. 96, SBITA and an increase in
accounts payable.

Net pension liability is described more fully in note 6 to the financial statements. GASB Statement No.
68-mandated net pension liability is MORPC’s proportionate share of OPERS’ total collective actuarial
present value of projected benefit payments attributable to past periods of service, net of the plan’s
fiduciary net position. The 2023 proportionate share was calculated from OPERS’ total net unfunded

26



pension liability as of December 31, 2022, plan measurement date (the most recent). Changes in the
2023 liability resulted primarily from the GASB Statement No. 68-calculated pension expense of
$513,316, plus $233,799 due to differences in experience, plus the difference in changes in contributions
subsequent to measurement date of $87,609, plus $6,450,851 in the difference between projected and
actual investment earnings, less a $283,410 difference due to changes in assumptions, and less
MORPC'’s $351,184 decrease in its OPERS proportionate share (from 0.033% in 2022 to 0.036% in
2023).

Net OPEB liability increased ($203,351 in 2023 vs. negative ($1,088,535) in 2022), which is describ
more fully in note 6 to the financial statements. GASB Statement No. 75-mandated net OPEB lia
MORPC'’s proportionate share of OPERS’ total collective actuarial present value of projectedJZPRB
payments attributable to past periods of service, net of the plan’s fiduciary net position. The @
proportionate share was calculated from OPERS'’ total net unfunded OPEB asset as of the Degemfer 31,
2022, plan measurement date (the most recent). In 2022, OPERS reported a change frog a net OPEB

asset of $1.8 billion to a net liability of $630 million. Changes in the 2023 asset res it 1) changes
in assumptions, 2) differences between projected and actual investment earningsmgiffé@gences in
experience, and 3) change in MORPC’s OPERS proportionate share (from 0.0 022 10 0.032% in

2023).

Deferred inflows of resources are described more fully in note 6 to the fi Il statements. Changes
in GASB Statements No. 68- and GASB Statement No. 75-manda eferred inflows of resources for
pension and OPEB resulted from MORPC’s total unamortized ch proportionate share of the
pension and OPEB liability ($281,289 in 2023 compared to $5 in 2022), the proportionate share of
cumulative unamortized differences between expected and@ctualexperience ($50,724 in 2023 as
against $232,869 in 2022), change in assumptions ($16 028 vs. 440,626 in 2022), and the
proportionate share of cumulative unamortized differen€es begweéen projected and actual earnings
($3,780 in 2023 compared to $4,193,513 in 2022).

in 2023 due to: (1) $47,751 - minimal activity in

een lease liability and lease asset.

Net investment in capital assets decreased
purchasing new assets, and (2) $19,971 - vasig

2 resoufCes, specifying the purposes for which the net position may
be used (restricted for regional trafispgtiation-related programs). In 2021, additional restricted local

revenue was received from CQ Jieu of FTA NTD monies, as additional NTD funds were made
available to COTA under th CARES Act of 2020 as well as the federal CRSSA and ARPA Acts of
2021.

Unrestricted net positiofl is the part of net position that can be used to finance day-to-day operations
without such external constiaints, and decreased by $10,066 from 2022 to 2023, primarily due to 1) the
results of operating wvities in 2023, 2) the GASB Statement No. 68-mandated net pension expense,
and 3) the GASB Statement No. 75-mandated net OPEB expense previously discussed.

The follwigg repfesents MORPC'’s revenues, expenses, and changes in net position for the years ended
Decembef 31, 2023, and 2022:

ndensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

OPERATING REVENUES 2023 2022
Federal $9,062,347 $8,590,996
Nonfederal 4,186,791 4,329,150
Foundations and corporations 158,396 116,135
Utility company 1,722,742 1,810,054

Total Operating Revenues 15,130,276 14,846,335

27



OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits 7,954,952 7,105,711
Pension and OPEB 1,062,327 (1,485,539)
Consultants and subcontractors 2,998,916 2,941,707
Depreciation and Amortization 866,416 760,151
Other expenses 3,155,631 3,514,243
Total Operating Expenses 16,038,242 12,836,273
OPERATING GAIN/(LOSS) (907,966) 2,010,062
Interest expense (116,409) (117,632)
Interest Income 93,710 20,014
CHANGE IN NET POSITION (930,665)
Net Position, Beginning of Year 511,978
Net Position, End of Year $(418,687)

Operating revenues increased by $283,941 (1.9%) in 2023 com 2. Local revenues
decreased by $142,359 in 2023 as they returned to more stan elg/following a large influx of local
revenues received from the Central Ohio Transit Authority (COT of Federal Transit
Administration (FTA) National Transit Database (NTD) fundifg duriiig 2020-2021. Utility funding also
decreased by $87,312 in 2023 as the level of weatherizétion eclined. Partially offsetting these
decreases, federal revenues increased by $471,351 dlg to néw grant programs and increases to existing

programs, and foundation revenue increased by

Operating expenses increased by $3,201 ,QGN in 2023. The change can be attributed to 1)
a $2,547,866 increase in pension and OPEB eXgelses due to the increase in the GASB Statement
Nos. 68- and 75-mandated proportional sRg OPERS’ unfunded actuarial liabilities. 2) Salaries
and benefits also increased by $849,241 as fafroll expenses increased; 3) consultants and
subcontractors increased by $57, e to increased home repair work; 4) other expenses
decreased by $358,612, and 5) d n and amortization increased by $106,265 due to the
purchase of new assets in prj nd adoption of GASB 96, SBITA.

Capital Assets

Capital assets of MORPCWgtaled $6,669,421and $7,062,140 as of December 31, 2023, and 2022,

respectively (net of ?umulated depreciation) and decreased by $392,719 in 2023 as depreciation
expense of e
capital as

6,416 exceeded new asset additions of $473,697 in 2023. Additional information on
n be found in note 4 to the financial statements.

Liabilities

hio Revised Code, MORPC does not have authority to incur long-term debt; however,
ORPC may enter into leases. For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, MORPC implemented the
isions of GASB Statement No. 96, SBITA, which requires reporting of certain software subscription
iabilities not previously reported. The standard is based on the foundational principle that software
ubscriptions are financing the right to use an underlying asset. The software-based information
technology agreement requires MORPC to make payments over a specific period of time. The present
value of the SBITA payments has been recorded as a liability on the balance sheet as of December 31,
2023. MORPC has complied with all applicable GASB 96 requirements in recognizing and disclosing this
SBITA in the financial statements. Additional information on Long-Term Debt related to SBITA can be
found in notes 3 and 9 to the financial statements.

28



Economic Conditions

MORPC relies heavily on federal, state and local grants and contracts and utility company contracts along

with members’ dues to fund its many programs. At present these revenue sources appear to be secure in

the short term; however, legislative action and national and state economic conditions can affect each of

these revenue streams in both the short term and the long term. V

Transportation grants have historically been, and remain, the largest funding sources of MORPC. The
primary source for these funds is the Highway Trust Fund (HTF), which is included with legislatio
authorizing federal transportation programs. The most recent transportation authorization la :
Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IlJA), also known as the Bipartisan Infrastructure La @
which was signed into law by President Biden on November 15, 2021. The BIL authorizgs $1.2usiiffon for
transportation and infrastructure spending with $550 billion of that figure going toward “néy” investments

and programs. The BIL provides a massive increase in funding for transportation an
including energy and power infrastructure, access to broadband internet, wate ure, and more.

Current funding for the HTF, primarily from fuel taxes, is not sufficient to pro t levels of funding
for the authorized BIL programs, thus requiring subsidies from the gen un ongress last raised the
federal gasoline tax to its current level of $0.183 per gallon in 1993. AdWifonally, in 2020 slackening sales
of gasoline due to COVID-19 pandemic-driven travel reductions pgt additi downward pressure on
gasoline tax collections. This left a structural deficit in the fund e dax only covering about $36
billion of the $45 billion the federal government was authorized t on roads annually in each of the
six federal fiscal years 2016-2021. Transfers from the ge ndjhave taken place in most federal fiscal
years since 2008; the BIL continued transfer of funds tdfthe

The transportation funds received by MORPC arefe upon the amount of federal funding
received by Ohio. For state fiscal year (SFY) 2 portionments of highway program funds were
higher than that of the previous fiscal year. BIL funding levels continued for SFY 2024 & SFY
2025. Additionally, for SFY 2025, the res the 2020 U. S. Census was incorporated into formulas
used to distribute these funds throughout ORio. Pue to Central Ohio’s growth outpacing other parts of the
state, MORPC received an increasg nding

be the base level moving throug amipder of the BIL.
Local and state funding is re, ofwarious other transportation initiatives or federal grant matching. In

2019, MORPC renewed a»five ontract with the Central Ohio Transit Authority to receive local funds

$6 million since 2015 (thi&includes local funds received in lieu of federal COVID-related funding),
including $480,967 in 2023®MORPC is in the process of again renewing the contract with COTA to extend
it through 20309. Dueﬁ updates in the data used in the FTA formula, the 2024 amount is expected to dip
and will gr lly increase over the next few years is anticipated to begin gradually increasing in 2025

and beygfid.
Cc ing MORPC

i ancial report is designed to provide our members, grantors, federal and state oversight agencies
and the citizens of Central Ohio with a general overview of MORPC'’s finances and to show MORPC’s

countability for the money it receives. Additional financial information can be obtained by contacting the
Chief Operating Officer, Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission, 111 Liberty Street, Suite 100,

Columbus, Ohio, 43215 or on the internet at www.morpc.org.

29


http://www.morpc.org/

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2023

2023
ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Assets:
Current assets -
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,726,173
Cash — board designated for building repairs and replacements 73
Accounts receivable 3,656,095
Other prepaid expenses 139,452
Mortgage notes receivable
Total current assets 6,521,79

Noncurrent assets -
Capital assets — net of accumulated depreciation and
amortization

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Pension and OPEB 4,635,594
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $ 17,826,808

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, NET POSITION:
Liabilities:
Current liabilities -
Accounts payable $ 1,207,438
Accrued payroll and fringe benefits 319,168
Accrued PTO and sick leave 100,000
Right to Use Leases and Subscgiptions 636,928
Unearned revenue 494,659
Total current liabilities 2,758,193
Noncurrent liabilities -

Accrued PTO and Kl 539,487
Right to Use Lease d Subscriptions 4,652,080
Net pension liability 9,943,599
Total n nCUﬂ’It liabilities 15,135,166
17,893,359

352,136

estment in capital assets 1,380,411

stricted for regional transportation programs 2,373,198
nrestricted (4,172,296)

Total net position (418,687)

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position $ 17,826,808

See notes to financial statements.

30



MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

2023
OPERATING REVENUES:
Governmental:
Federal grants $ 9,06 ?N
Nonfederal:
Members’ per capita fees 125
State grants and contracts 5,476
Local contracts and other 9,190
Total nonfederal 4,186,791

Foundations/corporate contributions 158,396

Utility company contracts 1,722,742

Total operating revenues 6\ 15,130,276
&

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Salaries and benefits, excluding pensions and other postemployme 7,954,952
Pensions and other postemployment benefits 1,062,327
Consultants and subcontractors 2,998,916
Other services 1,897,935
Grant pass-through costs to subrecipients 436,651
Conferences and events 231,467
Materials and supplies 139,914
Advertising 110,122
Insurance and bonding 85,040
Travel 72,684
Utilities 41,656
Depreciation and amortizgitio 866,416
Other 140,162
Total operating expefges 16,038,242
OPERATING{LOSS (907,966)
NON- TINGREVENUES(EXPENSES):
I est ense (116,409)
In come 93,710
Total non-operating revenues(expenses): (22,699)
HANGE IN NET POSITION (930,665)
NET POSITION — Beginning of year 511,978
NET POSITION — End of year $ (418,687)

See notes to financial statements.

31



MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

2023
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Received from federal operating grants $ 8,925,170
Received from state, local, utility company operating grants, contracts, and other 6,148,612
Received from fiduciary activities 0
Payments for salaries and benefits (8,793,193)

Payments for consultants and subcontractors
Payments for fiduciary activities
Other payments

Net cash used by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest received

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 6

Additions to property and equipment (190,381)
Interest on leases and SBITAs % (116,409)
Principal paid on leases and SBITAs (608,312)
Net cash used by capital and related financing activities : (915,102)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING C\ IES: 0
INCREASE IN CASH DEPOSITS 99,040
CASH DEPOSITS — Beginning of y cluding $193,977
in cash, board designated for buildin airs'and replacement
at January 1, 2023) $ 2,627,206
CASH DEPOSITS — Endgof uding $4,534
in cash, board designated¥or building repairs and replacement
at December 31, 2023) $ 2,726,246
RECONCILIA{ION OF OPERATING LOSS TO
NET C U BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES —
Operating gain/(l0ss) $ (907,966)
Adijust ts to reconcile to cash used by operating activities:
iaffon and amortization 866,416
nges in assets and liabilities:
counts receivable (22,872)
Other prepaid expenses 38,785
Mortgage notes receivable 2,255
Accounts payable 753,347
Accrued liabilities 33,875
Unearned revenue (33,619)
Pension and OPEB 190,211
Total adjustments 1,828,398
Net cash used by operating activities $ 920,432

32
See notes to financial statements.



MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Organization — The Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (“MORPC”) was created in 1969 as the
successor to the Franklin County Regional Planning Commission under authority granted by state
statute. MORPC is a regional planning agency composed of representatives from political subdiviSi
in and around Franklin County, Ohio. These representatives gain membership in MORPC b
certain eligibility and conditional requirements. MORPC serves communities in Central @ 3
supervising, monitoring, and performing planning activities affecting the present and fut
environmental, social, economic, and government characteristics of the region. M@RPC i
to federal or state income taxes.
In accordance with Government Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) StatemeRt No. 14, The
Financial Reporting Entity, GASB Statement No. 39, Determining Whethe in Organizations are
Component Units, an amendment of GASB Statement No. 14, Statemx

o]

amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34, and Statem . Blending Requirements
for Certain Component Units-an amendment of GASB Statement Ne* MORPC is not considered
part of the Franklin County (the “County”) financial reporting esult of the following:

o MORPC is a separate legal entity, established under tIof 713.21 of the Ohio Revised Code
(“ORC").

. The County holds only 12 of 171 seats o PC!s governing Board.

impose a financial burden on, theg&g

. MORPC is not fiscally dependent ON oupty, and it does not provide a financial benefit to, nor

o MORPC provides services to melgbess outside of the County.

g

Basis of Accounting — In
States of America for goye
operations since they
The intent of MOR

dapce with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
tal entities such as MORPC, a proprietary fund is used to account for

and all other contracting organizations. The proprietary fund is accounted for
f accounting, using a flow of economic resources measurement focus. Revenue
iod earned and expenses are recognized in the period incurred.

Reve Recognition — Revenue is derived from federal, state, county, and local funding, as well as
corporations, and utility company contracts. MORPC members are charged an annual

g and Urban Development, the U.S. Department of Commerce, the U.S. Environmental
otection Agency, the U.S. Department of the Treasury, the Federal Transit Administration, the
ederal Highway Administration (in conjunction with the Ohio Department of Transportation), the U.S.
epartment of Energy and the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (both in conjunction
with the Ohio Department of Development).

Revenues are recognized in the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position when
earned. Cash received, for which all revenue recognition eligibility requirements have not been met as
defined in GASB Statement No. 33, are recorded as unearned grant and contract revenue in the
statement of net position.

33



Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues from non-operating revenues. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. MORPC receives revenue from
those who directly benefit from the services of MORPC and receives revenue from other governments
restricted to a specific program or programs. Revenue from these sources has been classified as

the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets ranging from four to ten y
Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lesser of the useful life of the asset or term_of th
lease. Donated property and equipment are recorded at acquisition value on the date of don

Upon sale or disposition of property and equipment, the cost and related depreciation ag€ reigoved
from the accounts and any gain or loss is recognized. MORPC is reporting an intangib @ 0 use

assets related to leased building and equipment. These intangible assets are being amotiized in a
systematic and rational manner over the shorter of the lease term or the useful Iife?the underlying

operating revenue.
Property and Equipment — MORPC capitalizes at cost all purchased property and equipment 4
costing $5,000 and greater and with a useful life greater than one year. Depreciation is provided %

b

asset.

Leases — MORPC is a party to several contracts as a lessee for noncand % eases of building and
equipment. GASB Statement No. 87 requires a lessee to recognize a abifity and an intangible
right-to-use asset (lease asset).

At lease commencement, MORPC initially measures the lea bili the present value of
payments expected to be made during the lease term. Subs , the lease liability is reduced by
the principal portion of lease payments made. The lease aSget ig#itially measured at the initial
amount of the lease liability, adjusted for lease paymefigs made at or before the lease commencement
date, plus certain initial direct costs. Subsequently, I sset is amortized on a straight-line
basis over its useful life. Key estimates and judgniients rélated to leases include how the MORPC
determines (1) the discount rate it uses to di n pected lease payments to present value, (2)
lease term, and (3) lease payments.

When the interest rate charged by thg is not provided, MORPC generally uses its estimated
[(Wate for leases. The lease term includes the non-

r ents included in the measurement of the lease liability are
urchase option price that MORPC is reasonably certain to
in circumstances that would require a remeasurement of its
e asset and liability if certain changes occur that are expected to
e lease liability.

composed of fixed payments
exercise. MORPC monitors

lease and will remeasurg |
significantly affect the ¢ @ 0

Subscription-Basée@,Information Technology Arrangements — MORPC is committed under various
subscription-based information technology arrangements (SBITAs). As of December 31, 2023,
MORPCgnas twé qualifying SBITAs under GASB 96 in which it is the end user. Under GASB 96,
MORBGyinitially measures the SBITA liability at the present value of payments expected to be made
dugig theNgase term. Subsequently, the SBITA liability is reduced by the principal portion of SBITA

ts made. The SBITA asset is initially measured at the initial amount of the SBITA liability,

ted for SBITA payments made at or before the lease commencement date, plus capitalizable
plementation costs. Subsequently, the SBITA asset is amortized on a straight-line basis over
e shorter of the subscription term or the useful life of the underlying IT asset.

When the interest rate charged by the SBITA vendor is not provided, MORPC generally uses its
estimated incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate for the SBITA. The SBITA term includes the
non-cancelable period of the SBITA. MORPC monitors changes in circumstances that would require a
remeasurement of the SBITA asset and liability if those changes are expected to significantly affect
the amount of the lease liability.

Cash Deposits and Cash Equivalents — As required by ORC Section 713.21, MORPC must

deposit all receipts in the Franklin County Treasury. The County Treasurer maintains a cash and
investment pool used for all County Treasury activities.

34



Pursuant to ORC Section 135.181, the County’s deposits are covered by collateral held by third-party
trustees in collateral pools securing all public funds on deposits with specific depository institutions.
There is no regulatory oversight for the pool. A portion of the deposits is held in the County’s name in
non-interest-bearing demand deposit accounts in institutions with branches in Franklin County. A
portion of the deposits is in time certificates of deposit registered in the County’s name and is held by
the County.

During 2023, Franklin County held investments on behalf of MORPC in the State Treasury Asset
Reserve of Ohio (STAR Ohio). STAR Ohio is an investment pool managed by the State Treasurer’s
Office which allows governments within the state to pool their funds for investment purposes. S V
Ohio is not registered with the federal Securities and Exchange Commission as an investment
company, but has adopted GASB Statement No. 79, Accounting and Financial Reporting fo

External Investment Pools and Pool Participants, which establishes accounting and finafiCiakgepgrting
standards for qualifying external investment pools, and for the state and local governm @ t
participate in them, that elect to measure their investments at amortized cost. STAR OF eported
is that provides a
ere were no
eriods, liquidity

at the net asset value (NAV) per share, which is calculated on an amortized cost b
NAYV per share that approximates fair value. For the year ended December 3
limitations or restrictions on any participant withdrawals due to redemptio
fees, or redemption gates.

MORPC'’s deposits with Franklin County have carrying amounts o N% at December 31, 2023
and bank balances of $2,726,246 at December 31, 2023. Include@i e’bank balances are $73 at
December 31,2023, which is designated by the MORPC Bo r building repairs and replacements.
Franklin County’s deposits of MORPC funds are held by thir rustees, pursuant to ORC Section
135.181, in collateral pools securing all public monies on ositwith specific depository institutions.
The fair value of the position in this external investmer§pool 1§ the same as the value of the pool
shares.

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk t nt of bank failure, MORPC will not be able to
recover deposits or collateral securities that@rgg#he possession of an outside party. At fiscal year-
end, none of the cash deposits and cash @guivalegis was exposed to custodial credit risk because it

was uninsured and collateralized wit rifies held by the pledging financial institution.

Investments — The ORC does not p MORPC the power to make or hold investments other
than the non-interest-bearin sits in"the Franklin County Treasury explained above. By written
agreement with Franklin Co roceeds from the 2007 sale of the former MORPC office
building were invested b g Cgunty on behalf of MORPC with all the proceeds from the investments
flowing to MORPC. At @

per 31, 2023, these proceeds were invested in a separate account in
STAR Ohio. In totalftheNipvegtment balance was $1,658,454 at December 31, 2023. The STAR Ohio
account is consid§edfto be a cash equivalent and the balance is included in the cash balances
carried by Franklin @@unty as noted above.

ate ifsk— Investments held by Franklin County on behalf of MORPC are required to
ithin five years unless matched to a specific obligation of the agency. To the extent possible,
ill attempt to match its investments with anticipated cash flow requirements.

hio maintain the highest rating provided by at least one nationally recognized standard rating
ervice. For funds invested by Franklin County on behalf of MORPC, safety of principal is the foremost
bjective of the investment program. Investments of the agency shall be undertaken in a manner that
ensures the preservation of capital in the overall portfolio. At no time will the safety of the portfolio’s
principal be impaired or jeopardized. Safety is defined as the certainty of receiving interest, plus full
par value at the security’s legal final maturity.

Debt — The ORC does not provide MORPC the power to incur debt other than for leases for the
purchase of equipment or property and buildings for housing commission operations.

35



Cash Equivalents — For purposes of the statements of cash flows, MORPC considers all cash
deposits held by the Franklin County Treasurer and investments on behalf of MORPC in STAR Ohio
to be cash equivalents since they are available to MORPC upon demand.

Compensated Absences — MORPC employees are granted annual leave (Paid Time Off or PTO)
and, prior to 2016, sick leave in varying amounts. In the event of termination, an employee is
reimbursed for accumulated annual leave and a percentage of accumulated sick leave.

Accounting for Compensated Absences. An accrual for earned sick leave is reduced to the max
amount allowed as a termination payment. The liability is based on the probability that individual
employees will become eligible to receive termination payments.

Sick leave benefits are accrued using the vesting method in accordance with GASB Statement N%

MORPC allows employees to annually convert unused PTO and sick leave hours to c@
compensation with various quantity and usage restrictions. The amount employeegs con in 2023
was approximately $108,251, reducing MORPC'’s liability.

deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and pension expense, i @ jon about the
fiduciary net position of the Ohio Public Employees Retirement SystenWORER®&) pension plan and

additions to/deductions from OPERS’ fiduciary net position have determined on the same basis
a r

Pensions — For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred f resources and

as they are reported by OPERS. OPERS uses the economic res easurement focus and the
full accrual basis of accounting. Contribution revenue is reco ibutions are due, pursuant to
legal requirements. Benefit payments (including refunds g contributions) are recognized

when due and payable in accordance with the benefit term$ O S reports investments at fair value.

(OPEB) liability/asset deferred outflows of resour: deferred inflows of resources related to
OPEB, and OPEB expense, information abo ry net position of the OPERS OPEB plan and
additions to/deductions from OPERS’ fIdUCI osition have been determined on the same basis
as they are reported by OPERS. OPER economic resources measurement focus and the
full accrual basis of accounting. For t e, OPERS recognizes benefit payments when due and
payable in accordance with the ben s. Investments are reported at fair value.

Deferred Outflows of Reso — In addition to assets, the statement of net position reports a
separate section for deferre of resources. This separate financial statement element,
deferred outflows of re “l as epresents a consumption of net assets that applies to a future period

Other Postemployment Benefits — For purpos Q g the net other postemployment benefit
s an

and so will not be reco as an outflow of resources (expense/ expenditure) until then. MORPC
reports deferred ouflo ources for certain pension-related and OPEB-related amounts, such as
change in expec d actual experience, changes in assumptions, and certain contributions made
to the plan subsequégt to the measurement date. More detailed information can be found in note 6.

sepa ection for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred

Deferre Inflm/s of Resources — In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position reports a
inflgWs o

ources, represents an acquisition of net assets that applies to a future period and so will
bg’recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. MORPC reports deferred inflows
of résources for certain pension-related and OPEB-related amounts, such as the difference between
ed and actual earnings of the plan’s investments. More detailed information can be found in
ote 6.

Net position — Net position reflects the accumulated difference between the costs of providing
services and the revenues generated from those services, plus general revenues. Net position is
comprised of the following:

Net investment in capital assets, consisting of capital assets net of accumulated depreciation, as
well as the variance between lease asset and lease liability as of the end of the current fiscal year.

36



Restricted, consisting of net position for which the use is limited to specific purposes by the external
party providing the resources. When both restricted and unrestricted amounts are available for use,
MORPC'’s policy is to use restricted net position first, then unrestricted.

Unrestricted, consisting of net position that does not meet the definition of net investment in capital
assets or restricted.

Use of Estimates — The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of continge V
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenuestgn
expenses during the reported period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncements — As of December 31, 2023, the GA @ ed the
following statements implemented by MORPC:

Accounting for SBITAs— During the current fiscal year, MORPC adopted GA ent No. 96,
Software Based Information Technology Arrangements (SBITAs). This Stat€gn®{1) defines a SBITA;
(2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use subscription asset % gible asset—and a
corresponding subscription liability; (3) provides the capitalization crite oyffays other than
subscription payments, including implementation costs of a SBIT d requires note disclosures
regarding a SBITA.

As a result, MORPC now includes liability for the present a%yments expected to be made and
di

software right-to-use asset. SBITA activity is further descri tes 3, 4, and 9.

Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships availability payment arrangements — During
the current fiscal year, MORPC adopted GASB Sfatemeht No. 94 Public-Private and Public-Public
Partnerships and availability payment arran primary objective of this Statement is to
improve financial reporting by addressing is ted to public-private and public-public partnership
arrangements (PPPs) whereas a govern tc cts with an operator (public or private entity) to

provide public services by conveying g8®golNf the right to use a nonfinancial asset, such as
infrastructure or other capital asse @ iod of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction.
Statement 94 was evaluated for implefegtation by MORPC for the year ended December 31, 2023.
MORPC has not entered into PPs; therefore, adoption of this statement does not have an impact
on MORPC's financial state

Future Pronounceme e GASB has issued the following statements:

Statement No. 9 IBUS 2022.” The requirements related to leases, PPPs, and SBITAs are
effective for fiscal yeags beginning after June 15, 2022, and all reporting periods thereafter. The
requirements r;:‘I?ted to financial guarantees and the classification and reporting of derivative
instrumefits witflin the scope of Statement 53 are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15,
2023 all reporting periods thereafter.

tgghent No. 100 “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections-An Amendment of GASB Statement
NO®2”. The requirements of this Statement are effective for accounting changes and error corrections
n fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2023, and all reporting periods thereafter.

tatement No. 101 “Compensated absences”. The requirements of this Statement are effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023, and all reporting periods thereafter.

Statement No. 102 “Certain Risk Disclosures”. The requirements of this Statement are effective for
fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2024, and all reporting periods thereafter.

Earlier application of these statements is encouraged. All these statements will be implemented at the

required time. Management has not yet determined the impact any of these statements will have on its
financial statements.

37



2. CASH DESIGNATED FOR REPLACEMENTS

During 2023, MORPC held monies with the Franklin County Treasurer, which are designated to be
used for major replacements, repairs and maintenance of its office facility, which totaled $73 as of
December 31, 2023.

3. LEASES AND SUBSCRIPTION-BASED INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY ARRANGEMENTS
(SBITAs)

GASB Statement No. 87 requires a lessee to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-t N
asset. For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, MORPC implemented the provisions of GA
Statement No. 96, SBITA, which requires reporting of certain SBITA liabilities not previousl|

right to use an underlying asset. The present value of future lease and SBITA payment
entirety of the lease term, which includes extension periods if it is probable the extensio
exercised, are reported as lease assets and lease liabilities. For Leases starting at' 2022, MORPC
uses a 2% rate for discounting payments to their present value. For Leases a started in
2023, MORPC uses a 5% rate for discounting payments to their present

and public meeting areas. Additionally, MORPC has agreements eases and one vehicle.

MORPC leases approximately 26,849 square feet of office space to h% ORPC office staff
o] |
The lease costs incurred in 2023 were $614,721. They included payments of $506,244 and

interest payments of $108,477.

Future principal and interest payments, by year, under all [8gs as follows:
Year Ending December 2023 Principal rest Total
2024 $ 529,63 $ 100,629 $ 630,268
2025 54 5 89,268 637,833
2026 5 77,510 642,591
2027 . 65,652 642,281
2028 53,908 638,991
2029-2032 6,721 92,941 2,469,662
Total Future Lease and
SBITA Payments $ 181,718 $ 479,908 $ 5.661,626

MORPC has two SBIT % nts, one for Geographic Information System license (ArcGIS) and
one for RideAmigogfReBionallicense, personally branded, mobile-responsive web interface that
integrates transp i6n program data, multimodal trip planning, trip logging, map layers, and
information into a sigle platform.

The SBI cos(incurred in 2023 were $110,000. They included principal payments of $102,068 and
interegfgayments of $7,932.

Fulde principal and interest payments, by year, under all SBITA are as follows:

Principal Interest Total
EYear Ending December 2023

2024 $ 107,290 $ 2,710 $ 110,000
2025 0 0 0
2026 0 0 0
2027 0 0 0
2028 0 0 0
2029-2032 0 0 0
Total Future Lease and

SBITA Payments $ 107,290 $ 2,710 $ 110,000

38



4. CAPITAL ASSETS

The following schedule reflects changes in capital assets during the year ended December 31, 2023

Capital assets, being depreciated and
amortized:

Leasehold improvements
Furniture and equipment
Automobiles and light trucks
Right to use asset - leases

Right to use asset - SBITA

Total depreciable and amortized capital
assets

Less accumulated depreciation and
amortization:

Leasehold improvements
Furniture and equipment
Automobiles and light trucks
Right to use asset - leases

Right to use asset - SBITA

Total accumulated depreciation and
amortization

Total depreciable and amortized capi
assets - net

Balance
December 31,

Balance
December 31,

2022 Additions Deletions 2023
$ 861,240 $ 31,400 $ $ 92,640
1,346,675 106,673 > ,348
181,387 - 181,387
6,105,266 73,958 6,179,224
- 261,666 261,666
8,494,568 473,697 8,968,265
253,619
621,715
166,089
1,151,771
105,650
2,298,844
,062,140 $ (392,719) $ - $ 6,669,421

39

\%



5. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

A schedule of MORPC'’s accounts receivable as of December 31, 2023, is as follows:

2023
Federal grants $ 2,653,273
State and local grants and contracts 899,382 V
Utility company contracts 103,440

Total $ 3,656,095

6. EMPLOYEE PENSION AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN$

a. Net Pension Liability and Net OPEB Asset

In 2023, OEPRS reported increased Pension liability and net OPEB liabiity®* also resulted in an
decrease in deferred inflows of resources. The net pension liability and t et other postemployment
benefits (OPEB) asset, reported on the statement of net position saits a liability/asset to

employees for pension and OPEB benefits provided throughghe Qhi blic Employees Retirement
System (OPERS). Pensions and OPEB are a component gf ange transactions — between an
employer and its employees — of salaries and benefits for efypl services. Pensions and OPEB are
provided to an employee — on a deferred-payment basi§— as Part of the total compensation package
offered by an employer for employee services eacif finan eriod. The obligation to sacrifice
resources for pensions is a present obligation becguse iwas created as a result of employment
exchanges that already have occurred. %

The net pension liability and net OPEB ass&t r ent MORPC’s proportionate share of OPERS’
collective actuarial present value of pybjetie nefit payments attributable to past periods of service,
net of OPERS'’ fiduciary net position. t pension liability and OPEB asset calculation is
dependent on critical long-term variabl&g dhcluding estimated average life expectancies, earnings on
investments, cost of living adj ents, salary increases, health care cost trends and others. While

these estimates use the bes jon available, unknowable future events require adjusting this
estimate annually.

Ohio Revised Cod m@PC’S obligation for this liability to annually required payments. MORPC
cannot control bengfiffterms or the manner in which pensions are financed; however, MORPC does
receive the benefit oRgmployees’ services in exchange for compensation including pensions.

beca 1) they benefit from employee services; and (2) State statute requires all funding to come
S ployers. All contributions to date have come solely from these employers (which also
s costs paid in the form of withholdings from employees). State statute requires OPERS to
ize unfunded liabilities within 30 years. If the amortization period exceeds 30 years, OPERS’
ust propose corrective action to the State legislature. Any resulting legislative change to
enefits or funding could significantly affect the net pension liability. Resulting adjustments to the net
nsion liability would be effective when the changes are legally enforceable.

GASB teme(s Nos. 68 and 75 assume the liability is solely the obligation of the employer,
he

b. Plan Description — Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS)

The proportionate share of OPERS’ unfunded benefits is presented as a long-term net pension liability
and a net OPEB asset on the accrual basis of accounting. Any liability for the contractually-required
pension and OPEB contribution outstanding at the end of the year is included as a payable on the
accrual basis of accounting.

40



Plan Description - MORPC employees, through Franklin County, participate in the Ohio Public
Employees Retirement System (OPERS). OPERS administers three separate pension plans. The
traditional pension plan is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. The
member-directed plan is a defined contribution plan and the combined plan is a cost-sharing, multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan with defined contribution features. OPERS also provides
postemployment health care benefits (OPEB), including Medicare B premiums, to members who elect
to receive them. While members (e.g. MORPC employees) may elect the member-directed plan and
the combined plan, substantially all employee members are in OPERS’ traditional plan; therefore, th

following disclosures focus on the traditional pension plan only.
OPERS provides retirement, disability, survivor and death benefits, and annual cost of living V
adjustments to members of the traditional plan. Authority to establish and amend benefits is

by Chapter 145 of the Ohio Revised Code. OPERS issues a stand-alone financial repogfihcat des
financial statements, required supplementary information and detailed information abo @ S’
fiduciary net position that may be obtained by visiting https://www.opers.org/financjal/repagtseShtmi, by
mbus, Ohio

writing to the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System, 277 East Town Street,
43215-4642, or by calling 800-222-7377.

Senate Bill (SB) 343 was enacted into law with an effective date of Janua @ 13" In the legislation,
members were categorized into three groups with varying provisions A\la pplicable to each
group. The following table provides age and service requirements c%\ent and the retirement

formula applied to final average salary (FAS) for the three memb nder the traditional plan as

per the reduced benefits adopted by SB 343 (see OPERS’ A@f reficed above for additional

information). 0

Group A
r Group C
Eligible to retire prior to 20 yegrsWefsefyice credit prior Members not in other Groups
January 7, 2013 or five years  to J 13 or eligible to  and members hired on or after
after January 7, 2013 ars after January 7, January 7, 2013
2013
State and Local State and Local State and Local
Age and Service Age and Service Age and Service
Requirement Requirements: Requirements:
Age 60 with 60gmo Age 60 with 60 months of Age 57 with 25 years of service
service credit o 5 with 25  service credit or Age 55 with 25  credit or Age 62 with 5 years of
years of serviég credit years of service credit service credit.
Fogfiula: Formula: Formula:
of FAS multiplied by 2.2% of FAS multiplied by 2.2% of FAS multiplied by
ervice for the first 30  years of service for the first 30  years of service for the first 35
2.5% for service years and 2.5% for service years and 2.5% for service
ears in excess of 30 years in excess of 30 years in excess of 35

inal average salary (FAS) represents the average of the three highest years of earnings over a
ember’s career for Groups A and B. Group C is based on the average of the five highest years of
earnings over a member’s career. Members who retire before meeting the age and years of service
credit requirement for unreduced benefits receive a percentage reduction in the benefit amount.

When a benéefit recipient has received benefits for 12 months, an annual cost of living adjustment
(COLA) is provided. This COLA is calculated on the base retirement benefit at the date of retirement
and is not compounded. For those retiring prior to January 7, 2013, the COLA will continue to be a 3
percent simple annual COLA. For those retiring subsequent to January 7, 2013, beginning in calendar
year 2019, the COLA will be based on the average percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index,
capped at 3 percent.

41


https://www.opers.org/financial/reports.shtml

Funding Policy - The Ohio Revised Code (ORC) provides statutory authority for local government
members and employer contributions to OPERS as follows:

2023 Statutory Maximum Contribution Rates:
Employer 14.0%
Employee 10.0%

2023 Actual Contribution Rates:

Employer: V
Pension 14.0%
OPEB 0.0% O

Total Employer 14.0%

Employee 10.0%

2023 Actual Contribution Rates for Combined Plan:

Employer:

Pension

OPEB 0%
Total Employer 14.0%
Employee O 10.0%

%

Employer contribution rates are actu@é rmined using the entry age normal cost method and
are expressed as a percentage of cove ayroll. MORPC’s actuarially and statutorily required
contribution was $830,406 for ions afd $-0- for OPEB in 2023, of which $-0- is reported as
payable at December 31, 2

C.

The net pension liability for OPERS was measured as of December 31, 2022, and the total pension
liability used to wlculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that

pefiod, MORPC’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on MORPC'’s share of contributions
to pension plan relative to the contributions of all participating entities. Following is information
tag to MORPC’s proportionate share and pension expense:

OPERS
Proportionate share of the net
pension liability $9,740,248
Proportion of the net pension liability 0.03297303%
Pension expense $513,316

At December 31, 2023, MORPC reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:

42



OPERS
Deferred outflows of resources:

Differences between expected and actual experience $323,530

Net differences between expected and actual earning $2,776,277

Change in assumptions 102,899

MORPC contributions subsequent to the 830,406
measurement date

Total deferred outflows of resources $4,033,112

Deferred inflows of resources:
Change in proportionate share 281,289

Total deferred inflows of resources $ 281,28

contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recogni @lction of the net
pension liability in the year ending December 31, 2023. Other amg@un ed as deferred outflows
of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensi bejffecognized in pension
expense as follows:

$830,406 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensio from MORPC
a

PERS

Year Ending December 31:

2024 O 182,051
2025 6 562,158
2026 \ 817,195
2027 1,360,013
Total $2,921,417

d. Net OPEB Liabilities
Inflows of Resour

ense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred

The net OPEB liabijfty f RS was measured as of December 31, 2022, and the total OPEB
liability used to ¢ e the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of
December 31, 2021, %hich was rolled forward to December 31, 2022. MORPC'’s proportion of the net
OPERB liability was based on MORPC’s share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the
contribugions of€ll participating entities. The OPEB liability exceeded the Plan Fiduciary Net Position
resultigfohin a net OPEB liability this year, which is a change from the previous year in which the Plan
FiduCiary Net Position Exceeded the OPEB liability resulting in an OPEB asset. Following is
ifforpg@tion related to MORPC's proportionate share and OPEB expense:

OPERS
roportionate share of the net
OPEB Liability $203,351
Proportion of the net OPEB liability 0.03225137%
OPEB expense ($323,105)

At December 31, 2023, MORPC reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB from the following sources:
OPERS

Deferred outflows of resources:

43



Difference between projected and actual earnings $ 403,864

Change in assumptions 198,618
Difference between expected and actual experience 0
Total deferred outflows of resources $ 602,482

Deferred inflows of resources:

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 50,724
Change in proportionate share 3,780 V
Change in assumptions 16,343

Total deferred inflows of resources $ 70,847
Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources @to

OPEB will be recognized as OPEB expense in future years as follows:

OoP
Year Ending December 31: \

2024 3,505
2025 147,002
2026 % 125.939
2027 195.099

Total $ 531,635
e. Actuarial Assumptions - OPERS O

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan in& jmates of the values of reported amounts and

efge of events far into the future. Examples include
ality, and cost trends. Actuarially determined amounts are

understood by the emp plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the
time of each valuati | pension liability in the December 31, 2022 actuarial valuation was
determined using llowing actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement:

Actuaiid] Cost Method Individual Entry Age

Iny@stm Rate of Return 6.90

u Salary Increases, including 2.75 percent to 10.75 percent

ion

Through 2023, then 2.05 simple

age Inflation 2.75 percent
Cost of Living Adjustments Pre 1/7/2013 Retirees:3.00 percent, simple
Q Post 1/7/2013 Retirees:3.00 percent, simple

Pre-retirement mortality rates are based on 130% of the Pub-2010 General Employee Mortality tables
(males and females) for State and Local Government divisions and 170% of the Pub-2010 Safety
Employee Mortality tables (males and females) for the Public Safety and Law Enforcement divisions.
Post-retirement mortality rates are based on 115% of the PubG-2010 Retiree Mortality Tables (males

44



and females) for all divisions. Post-retirement mortality rates for disabled retirees are based on the
PubNS-2010 Disabled Retiree Mortality Tables (males and females) for all divisions. For all of the
previously described tables, the base year is 2010 and mortality rates for a particular calendar year
are determined by applying the MP-2020 mortality improvement scales (males and females) to all of
the above tables.

The most recent experience study was completed for the five year period ended December 31, 2020.
The long term expected rate of return on defined benefit investment assets was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return are
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term ex d
real rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allpcati
percentage, adjusted for inflation.
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a p@ildiyg-hlock
approach and assumes a time horizon, as defined in the OP&F’s Statement of Investment P &
forecasted rate of inflation serves as the baseline for the return expectation. Various real retufia,pge€miums
over the baseline inflation rate have been established for each asset class. The long-terfyexpected
nominal rate of return has been determined by calculating a weighted average of th d real return
premiums for each asset class, adding the projected inflation rate and adding t ed return from

> 8
rebalancing uncorrelated asset classes. A summary of best estimates of the lo @ expected geometric
real rates of return for each major asset class as of December 31,2022 (m gemepit date) are

summarized as follows: %
'g;ted Average

Long-Term
xpected Real Rate

@ of Return
Asset Class | ion (Arithmetic)
2.90%

Fixed Income 2.62%

Domestic Equitie \2.00 4.60

Real Estate Q 13.00 3.27

Private Equi 15.00 7.53

Internatio ities 21.00 5.51
2.00 4.37
5.00 3.27

100.00%

projeetioRg of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan
m those of the contributing employers are made at the contractually required rates, as
a ally determined. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was
ojegied to be available to make all projected future benefits payments of current plan members.
ore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all
eriods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Discc&faje-’A discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.90 percent. The
bers

Sensitivity of MORPC’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate - The following table presents MORPC’s proportionate share of OPERS’ net pension
liability calculated using the current period discount rate assumption of 6.9 percent, as well as what
MORPC'’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is one-percentage-point lower (5.9 percent) or one-percentage-point higher (7.9
percent) than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

45



QO

5.9% 6.9% 7.9%

MORPC'’s proportionate share of
the net pension liability $14,590,566 $9,740,248 $5,705,653

Sensitivity of MORPC’s Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Asset to Changes in the Discount
Rate - The following table presents MORPC's proportionate share of OPERS’ net OPEB liability
calculated using the current period discount rate assumption of 6 percent, as well as what MORPC’s
proportionate share of the net OPEB asset would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is

one-percentage-point lower (5 percent) or one-percentage-point higher (7 percent) than the curgen
rate:
Current ;
1% Decrease Discount Rate @ rease
4.22% 5.22% 6£22%
MORPC'’s proportionate share of the
net OPEB liability $692,114 $203,351 ($199,958)

Sensitivity of MORPC’s Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB No Changes in the
Healthcare Cost Trend Rate - The following table presents MO oportionate share of OPERS’

net OPEB liability calculated using the current healthcare co nd of 5.22 percent, as well as
what MORPC'’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liabilit e if it were calculated using a
r

trend rate that is one-percentage-point lower (4.22 percen ercentage-point higher (6.22

percent) than the current rate:
Current
19 a Trend Rate 1% Increase

o 5.5% 6.5%

MORPC'’s proportionate share of the
net OPEB liability ,606 $203,351 $217,697

CONTINGENCIES

Federal, state and local and utility contracts are subject to review and audit by the grantor

agencies or their desig % ch audits could lead to requests for reimbursement to the grantor
agency for expensg€ diSallowed under terms of the grant. There are no such claims pending and no
known situations ould lead to such a claim. In addition, based upon prior experience and audit
results, managemeRfgbelieves that such disallowances, if any, would be immaterial.

In the ngpmal cﬁrse of its business activities, MORPC may become subject to claims and litigation
relati contract, employment or other matters. In the opinion of management, the resolution of any
sucglt clai ending would not likely have a material impact on MORPC'’s financial position.
RISK MANAGEMENT

WPC is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts, theft or damage to, and destruction of
ssets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees and natural disasters.

MORPC self-insures its workers’ compensation costs by participating in the Franklin County Workers’
Compensation self-insurance program. The County establishes rates for its member agencies based
on an independent actuarial evaluation, and those charges are intended to cover administrative costs
and maintain a sufficient reserve. The reserve is intended to cover costs in excess of $100,000 per
claim; MORPC is liable to cover any individual claim costs up to $100,000 per occurrence. MORPC's
related rate charge liability to the County as of December 31, 2023, was approximately $110 and was
included in the balance of accrued liabilities - payroll and fringe benefits.

46



MORPC has insurance for both general liability and automobile claims and hospitalization and medical
benefit coverage to all of its full-time employees. There were no significant changes in the above
policies during 2023. During 2023, insurance coverage, after meeting any applicable deductibles, was
sufficient to cover all losses.

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES !
In compliance with GASB Statement No. 87 and GASB Statement No. 96, MORPC has reported

obligations for leases and SBITAs payable in the schedule below. For the current SBITAs, MO
does not have non-current liabilities payable.

The changes in MORPC’s noncurrent liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2023 OWS:

Beginning Current
Balance nce Portion
December 31, cember 31, December 31,
2022 Additions i 2023 2023
Paid Time Off (PTO) $ 584,931 $ 606,860 $ 612,089 $ 90,000
Sick leave 35,102 18,729 27,398 10,000
Accrued PTO and sick leave 620,033 625,589 639,487 100,000
Lease Liability 5,614,005 (506,244) 5,181,719 529,639
SBITA Liability 0 9,357 (102,068) 107,289 107,289
31

Net pension and Net OPEB
liability 3,089,268 5:@ 3 - 9943599 ——m——

Total noncurrent liabilities @ 7763235 §  (1,214447) § 15,872,094 $ 736,928

47



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFOR

&
M%OQ



MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION V
SCHEDULE OF MORPC'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY

OHIO PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

LAST EIGHT YEARS (1)

2022 2021 (6) 2020 (5) 2019 (4) 2018 2017 2016 (2) 2015

MORPC's proportion of the net pension liability: 0.03297303% 0.03550718% 0.03589335% O. 03335500%@ 71% 0.03290582% 0.03163505% 0.03127997%

MORPC's proportionate share of the

net pension liability: $9,740,248  $3,089,268 $5,315,024  $6,59 10 419,950 $5,162,285  $7,183,782 $5,418,085
MORPC's covered payroll: $5,305,693  $5,007,979 $5,033,357 . $4,501,479  $4,193,685  $4,031,617 $3,896,043
MORPC's proportionate share of the net pension

liability as a % of covered payroll: 183.58% 61.69% 102. 9.69% 231.48% 123.10% 178.19% 139.07%
Plan fiduciary net position

as a % of the total pension liability: 75.74% 92.62% @% 82.17% 74.70% 84.66% 77.39% 81.08%
Notes: \
(1) Amounts are calculated as of the OPERS measurement date, which is December 31 calendar year shown. MORPC's corresponding net pension liability is as of December 31 of the succeeding

year. Data prior to 2013 is not available.

(2) In 2016, OPERS revised actuarial assumptions which impacted the net pensi valuation. The most significant changes in assumptions were: wage inflation was reduced from 3.75%
0

to 3.25%; the range of projected salary increases was revised from 4.25¢6710. 0g8.25% - 10.75%; the actuarial rate of return on investments was reduced from 8.00% to 7.50%; and the RP-2014

Healthy Annuitant mortality tables replaced the RP-2000 mortality table d in previous years.
(3) In 2018, OPERS revised actuarial assumptions which impacted the?t pension liability valuation. The actuarial rate of return on investments and the discount rate were reduced from 7.50% to 7.20%.

(4) In 2019, OPERS revised actuarial assumptions which i ted the net pension liability valuation. The cost-of-living adjustments for post-1/7/2013 retirees was reduced from 3.00% prior to 2018 and
2.15% afterwards, to 1.40% prior to 2020 and 2.15%¢étterwar

(5) In 2020, OPERS revised actuarial assumptions wh pacted the net pension liability valuation. The cost-of-living adjustments for post-1/7/2013 retirees was reduced from 1.40% prior to 2019 and
2.15% afterwards, to 0.5% prior to 2021 and i me 2.15% afterwards.

(6) In 2021, OPERS revised actuarial ass

ion ich impacted the net pension liability valuation. The cost-of-living adjustments for post-1/7/2013 retirees was increased from 0.5% prior to 2020 and
2.15% afterwards, to 3.0% prior to 2Q @

ecr@ased to 2.05% afterwards. Investment rate of return decreased from 7.2% down to 6.9%. Wage inflation decreased from 3.25% down to 2.75%.

48



MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION k

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION V
SCHEDULE OF MORPC PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE

OHIO PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

LAST EIGHT YEARS

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

Statutory required contribution $ 830406 $ 742,797 $ 701,117 $ 704,670 @ 630,207 $ 545179 $ 483,794
Contributions in relation to the \

statutory required contribution $ (830,406) $ (742,797) $ (701,117) $ (704, (711,707) $ (630,207) $ (545,179) $ (483,794)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - $ $ - $ - $ -
MORPC covered payroll $ 5931471 $ 5305693 $ 5 @ 5,033,357 $ 5,083,621 $ 4,847,746 $ 4,543,158 §$ 3,895,282
Contributions as a percentage of

covered payroll 14.00% 14.0 .00% 14.00% 14.00% 13.00% 12.00% 12.42%

O
&
Q
v

49



MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF MORPC'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET OPEB LIABILITY (ASSET)
OHIO PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

LAST FIVE YEARS (1) !

2022 2021 (4) 2020 (3) 2019 (2) 01

MORPC's proportion of the net OPEB liability (asset): 0.03225137% 0.03475358% 0.03512965% 0.03367 0.03730121%

MORPC's proportionate share of the

net OPEB liability (asset): $ 203,351 § (1,088,535) $§ (625,8 51,263 $4,863,198
MORPC's covered payroll: $ 5,305,693 $ 5,007,979 $ %\ $5,083,621 $4,501,479
MORPC's proportionate share of the net OPEB

liability (asset): as a % of covered payroll: 3.83% -21.74% -12.43% 91.50% 108.04%
Plan fiduciary net position

as a % of the total OPEB liability (asset): 94.79% @ 115.57% 47.80% 46.33%

Notes:

N

(1) In 2018, OPERS revised several actuarial assumptio hich acted the net OPEB liability valuation.

The most significant changes in assumptions were: h care cost trend rate was reduced from an
initial rate of 10.00% down to 7.50%, then decljyfgto 5% through 2029; the actuarial rate of return
on investments was reduced from 6.50% tos6. @ d the discount rate was increased from 3.85%

to 3.96%.

(2) In 2019, OPERS revised several actuayl assumptions which impacted the net OPEB liability valuation.
The most significant changes jff assumptions were: the health care cost trend rate was increased from an
initial rate of 10.00% to 10
was decreased from 3.96% 16 3.16%.

(3) In 2020, OPERS
in a large incrg

0 hange from a net OPEB liability of $13.8 billion to a net asset of $1.8 billion. This also resulted
deferred inflows.

(4) In 2021,
The most
initial rate of 3

> révised several actuarial assumptions which impacted the net OPEB liability valuation.

cant change in assumptions was: the health care cost trend rate was reduced from an
.5% down to 5.50%, then 3.50% through 2034.

(5) In 2022, the net OPEB liability for OPERS was measured as of December 31, 2022 and the total OPEB liability

used to calculated the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2021, which was rolled

forward to December 31, 2022. The OPEB liability exceeded the Plan Fiduciary Net Position resulting in a net OPEB liability this year, which is
a change from the pervious year in which the Plan Fiduciary Net Position Exceeded the OPEB liability resulting in an OPEB asset.

50



MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF MORPC OPEB CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE !

OHIO PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

LAST FIVE YEARS
2023 2022 2021 020 2019

statutory required contribution $ - $ - $ - $ -
- $

Contributions in relation to the
statutory required contribution $ - $ -

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - $ - $ -

MORPC covered payroll $ 5,931, \%)5,693 $ 5007979 $ 5033357 $§ 5,083,621

Contributions as a percentage of
covered payroll 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

O
=
&

51






MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

iy

yariance
Budget O

Actual over / (under)

Revenue

Planning, Mapping & Transportation $ 8,038,910 52 (6,453,542)

Residential Services 4,972,098 6/,381 (1,595,783)

Services to Members & Development 1,213,038 221,486 (8,448)

Other 906,230 934,380 (28,150)
Total operating revenues 15,130,276 % 23,216,198 (8,085,922)
Expenses %

Salaries and benefits 8 9,919,582 (1,092,514)

Materials and Supplies 4 201,977 (62,063)

Consultants, services and other 6,204,844 12,921,924 (6,717,080)

Depreciation and Amortization % 66,416 188,231 678,185
Total operating expenses \ 16,038,242 23,231,714 (7,193,472)
Operating gain/(loss) : (907,966) (15,516) (892,450)
Interest income 93,710 15,516 78,194
Interest expense on leases Q (116,409) (116,409)
Decrease in net position P 4 $ (930,665) - (930,665)

Q
v

52




MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION

BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

The accounting principles employed by MORPC in its budgetary accounting and reporting V
same as those used to present financial statements in accordance with generally acceptge
accounting principles. Outlined below are the annual procedures MORPC follows to e @

expense budget data.

By December of the preceding year, the Finance Director develops a compre jveyoperating and
capital budget for the following calendar year with detailed estimated revenue expenses by
source for each half calendar year. Detailed direct and indirect cost allocs ant are

ive Committee of

and supplies, services and charges, capital expenditures, d i®&7and interfund transfer. The
Executive Committee can approve transfers among the a latign accounts within the total
appropriated by MORPC, which is the legal spending limit.

Each spring the federal transportation planning w
applications for federal planning funds for the ne
allocation plan is submitted for negotiation i

If necessary during the year, MORPC’ Nj
Finance Director, reviewed by the

is submitted along with contract
rough June fiscal year. The indirect cost
r or autumn, for the following calendar year.

ear budget and appropriations are revised by the
mmittee and adopted by the full Commission.

Appropriations lapse at year-egey Encumidrance accounting, under which purchase orders,
contracts, and other commity 8 for the expenditures of monies are recorded in order to reserve
that portion of the applicable agpropriation, is employed in conjunction with the Franklin County
Auditor as an extensio ofgnabbudgetary control.

Interim financial ege omparing budget to actual in the same level of detail as the budget are
prepared monthly he accrual basis. These statements, along with narrative variance analyses,
are reviewed four tim&s during the year by the Executive Committee.

53



MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION

Details of Indirect Cost Allocation and Fringe Benefits Allocation

Year-to-date as of December 31, 2023

Difference
Estimated Actual (Over Bdgt.)
CY 2023 CY 2023 Under Bdgt.
Wages paid for time worked:
Direct Labor $ 4,284,207 $ 3,972,898 $ 311,309
Indirect Labor $ 1,657,089 $ 1,543,997 $ 113,092
Total Labor - base for fringe allocation $ 5,941,296 $ 5,516,895 $ 424,401
Fringe Benefits
PTO leave $ 347,295 $ 367,140 $ (19,845)
Holidays, funeral, jury, other leave $ 305,839 $ 270,551 $ 35,288
Sick Leave $ 18,150 $ 21,756 $ (3,606)
Retirement PTO/Sick Leave $ 5,500 $ (3,027) $ 8,52
PTO/Sick Carryover $ 226,410 $ 239,720 $ (13,
Subtotal Fringe Benefit Wages $ 903,194 $ 896,140 $
Other Fringe Benefits
OPERS $ 990,866 $ 872,116 $ 750
Workers Comp $ 88,376 $ 58,224 30,152
Unemployment Compensation $ 17,100 $ 12,447 4,653
Medicare $ 102,106 $ 87,478 $ 14,678
Group Medical Insurance $ 1,276,873 $ 1172, @ $ 104,867
Group EAP Insurance $ 57,350 $ $ (2,986)
Group Life Insurance $ 3,835 $ $ 277
Group Optical Insurance $ 10,633 12 $ 821
Group Dental Insurance $ 58,919 % 4.086 $ 4,833
Group Prescription Insurance $ 267,577 $ 245,576 $ 22,001
Benefits Administrative Fee $ 67,984 62,942 $ 5,042
Employee Health Incentive $ 5, - $ 5,000
Employee Group Insurance Cost Sharing $ (371,%20) $ (326,151) $ (45,569)
ST/LT Disability Insurance $ $ 57,887 $ (7,887)
Benefit Consulltant for Alternatives $ - $ -
Estimated Employee Turnover d \ ,283) $ - $ (223,283)
Prior Year Rate Adjustment (use only with fixed rate) Q 111,435 $ 111,435 $ -
Subtotal Other Fringe Benefits b ,513,051 $ 2,481,702 $ 31,348
TOTAL FRINGE BENEFITS 3,416,245 $ 3,377,842 $ 38,402
Indirect Costs
Salaries - Indirect Only $ 1,657,089 $ 1,543,997 $ 113,092
Fringe Benefits for Indirect Salaries $ 952,826 $ 945,356 $ 7,470
Materials & Supplies $ 140,460 $ 106,685 $ 33,775
Services & Charges 4 $ 857,303 $ 959,832 $ (102,529)
Rent & Utilites & $ 435,850 $ 512,957 $ (77,107)
Other General Overhea $ 32,803 $ 26,299 $ 6,504
Prior Year Rate Adjustment fyge only with fixed rate) $ 140,936 $ 140,936 $ 0
TOTAL INDIRECT CO $ 4,217,267 $ 4,236,061 $ (18,794)
Direct Labor Co artment
Transportatjgrelgffastructure & Development $ 3,350,042 $ 2,729,932 $ 620,110
Residentis @ es $ 891,563 $ 872,203 $ 19,360
Member Due $ 336,489 $ 337,745 $ (1,256)
Other Grants/Programs $ 24,004 $ 33,018 $ (9,014)
Less Estimated Turnover $ (317,891) $ - $ (317,891)
TOTAL DIRECT LABOR COSTS $ 4,284,207 $ 3,972,898 $ 311,309

54




MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
Details of Indirect Cost Allocation and Fringe Benefits Allocation
Year-to-date as of December 31, 2023

Difference
Estimated Actual (Over Bdgt.)
CY 2023 CY 2023 Under Bdgt.
Calculated Direct vs. Indirect Fringe Benefits Costs
Direct Labor Fringe Benefits $ 2,463,419 $ 2,432,486 $ 30,933
Indirect Labor Fringe Benefits $ 952,827 $ 945,356 $ 7,472
TOTAL FRINGE BENEFITS $ 3,416,245 $ 3,377,842 $ 38,402
Fringe Benefit Cost Rate Computation
TOTAL Fringe Benefit Costs / $ 3,416,245 $ 3,377,842
TOTAL Labor Costs (Direct & Indirect) $ 5,941,296 $ 5,516,895
= Fringe Benefit Cost Rate 57.50% 61.23%
Estimated Fringe Benefit Cost Recovery Comparison (Direct Labor Portion Only) V
Should have recovered in fiscal year $ 2,432,486 23% of Direct Labor
Amount actually recovered in fiscal year $ 2,284,416 Y of Direct Labor
Prior Year Net (Over) / Under Recovery $ 111,435
Prior Year (Over) / Under Recovery Posted to Cost Pool $ 111,435
Total - (Over)/Under Recovery of Fringe Benefits $ 148,070 under

Indirect Cost Rate Computation

TOTAL Indirect Costs / $ 4,217,267

DIRECT Labor + Direct Labor Fringe Benefits $
= Indirect Cost Rate

6,747,626

Estimated Indirect Cost Recovery Comparison (All Indirect Costs, Indire

O

62.50% % 13%

abadr & Indirect Labor Fringe Benefits)

Should have recovered in fiscal year of Direct Labor +
((Actual Direct Labor + Actual Direct Labor Fringe Direct Labor Fringe
Benefits) $ 4,236,061 66.13% Benefits
Amount actually recovered in fiscal year of Direct Labor +
((Actual Direct Labor + Direct Labor Fringe \ Direct Labor Fringe
Benefits) $ 3,910,822 62.50% Benefits
Prior Year Net (Over) / Under Recovery $ 140,936
Prior Year (Over) / Under Recovery Posted to C I $ 140,936
Total - (Over)/Under Recovery of Indirect Costs $ 325,239 B (over)/under
Estimated
Fringe Benefit Cost (Over)/Under Rec $ 148,070 A (over)/under
Indirect Cost (Over)/Under Recovery $ 325,239 B (over)/under
Net (Over)/Under Recovery Vs $ 473,309
& CY 2023 CY 2023
Estimated Actual
Summary
Fringe Benefit Rate 57.50% 61.23%
Indirect Cost R 62.50% 66.13%
Total Overhead 120.00% 127.36%

55




MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMISSION
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES FOR U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
For Year Ended December 31, 2023 O

Federal Highway Federal Highway al Highway
Administration/Ohio Administration/Ohio ( mmistration/Ohio
Department of Transportation Department of Transportation S ent of Transportation

Federal Highway
Administration/Ohio
Department of Transportation

116044 118130 114263
Consolidated Planning Grant Consolidated Planning Gr. ntral Ohio Rural Planning Central Ohio Rural Planning
SFY23 SFY24 Organization SFY23 Organization SFY24
Revenues:
Federal $ 1,589,373 83,758 90,352
State 198,673 10,470 11,294
Local 198,701 9 928 10,469 11,293
TOTAL REVENUES $ 1,986,747 1,699,862 104,697 112,939
Expenditures:
Salaries and benefits $ 1,189,175 1,002,502 63,786 69,020
Consultants 25,237 42,607 381 -
28,189 664 781
626,564 39,866 43,138
04,697 112,939

Other Direct 29,10
Indirect Costs 743,2
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 1,9%,7: 1,699,862 1

56



MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMISSION
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES FOR U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
For Year Ended December 31, 2023 O

Federal Highway
Administration/Ohio
Department of Transportation
105638

Federal Highway
Administration/Ohio
Department of Transportation Depae
110232 105645

Rideshare Program SFY@ ::upplemental Planning SFY23

al Highway
nistration/Ohio

Rideshare Program SFY23

Federal Highway
Administration/Ohio
Department of Transportation
110234

Supplemental Planning SFY24

Revenues:
Federal $ 317,318 ,687 185,594 207,096
State - - - -
Local - - - -
TOTAL REVENUES $ 317,318 374,667 185,594 207,096
Expenditures:
Salaries and benefits $ 153,479 185,715 106,720 117,898
Consultants 61,942 59,349 12,143 15,492
Other Direct 5,97 13,531 31 20
Indirect Costs 95,9 116,072 66,700 73,686
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 374,667 185,594 207,096

57



MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMISSION

For Year Ended December 31, 2023

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES FOR U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION O

Revenues:
Federal
State
Local

TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures:
Salaries and benefits
Consultants
Other Direct
Indirect Costs

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Federal Highway
Administration/Ohio
Department of Transportation
105649

Air Quality Awareness SFY23

Federal Highway
Administration/Ohio
Department of Transportation
110225

Air Quality Awareness SF

al Highway
ministration/Ohio

110240
Insight2050 Technical
Assistance SFY23

ent of Transportation

Federal Highway
Administration/Ohio
Department of Transportation
110241
Insight2050 Technical
Assistance SFY24

O

273,430 128,872 138,401
273,430 274,163 128,872 138,401
132,097 142,482 78,942 84,518
55,606 40,937 - 188
3,16 1,693 591 871
82,5 89,051 49,339 52,824
274,163 128,872 138,401

58



MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMISSION

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES FOR U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

For Year Ended December 31, 2023

Revenues:
Federal
State
Local

TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures:
Salaries and benefits
Consultants
Other Direct
Indirect Costs

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Federal Highway
Administration/Ohio
Department of Transportation
117035
Central Ohio Greenways
Wayfinding Strategy

Federal Highway
Administration/Ohio
Department of Transportation
115208

Planning SF23

>

LinkUS Regional Corrido%%

194,562

1

131,955

5

81,169
; 55
50,731

131,955

59



601

602

605

610

625

665

667

697

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
SCHEDULE OF COSTS BY SUBCATEGORY FOR

US DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FUNDED ACTIVITIES
AS DEPICTED IN THE SFY 23 AND SFY 24 PLANNING WORK PROGRAMS

Year Ended December 31, 2023

SUBCATEGORIES FHWA OoDOT MORPC STP TOTAL
80.00% 10.00% 10.009 0.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Short Range Planning SFY 23 $ 160,905 $ 20,113 $ 20,11 - $ - $ 201,131
Short Range Planning SFY 24 $ 154,171 $ 19,258 $ 19R59 - $ - $ 192,688
Short Range Planning - CORPO SFY 23 $ 20,201 % 2525 % . $ - $ - $ 25,251
Short Range Planning - CORPO SFY 24 $ 14,086 $ 1,761 61 $ - $ - $ 17,608
Transportation Improvement Program SFY 23 $ 134,460 $ 16,80 6,808 $ - $ - $ 168,076
Transportation Improvement Program SFY 24 $ 135470 $ 16 16,920 $ - $ - $ 169,310
Transportation Improvement Program CORPO SFY 23 $ 18,687 $ ; 2336 $ - $ - $ 23,359
Transportation Improvement Program CORPO SFY 24 $ 19,546 $ $ 2,443 $ - $ - $ 24,432
Continuing Planning - Surveillance SFY 23 $ 645015_.9% 027 $ 80,606 $ - $ - $ 806,248
Continuing Planning - Surveillance SFY 24 $ 5874 73,389 $ 73,387 $ - $ - $ 734,216
Continuing Planning - Surveillance CORPO SFY 23 $ 5,930 741 $ 741 $ - $ - $ 7,412
Continuing Planning - Surveillance CORPO SFY 24 $ . 2680 $ 2679 $ - $ - $ 26,795
Long Range Planning SFY 23 $ 787 9% 66,599 $ 66,650 $ - $ - $ 666,036
Long Range Planning SFY 24 \ 643 $ 33,980 $ 33,980 $ - $ - $ 339,803
Long Range Planning CORPO SFY 23 Q 8,940 $ 4868 $ 4867 $ - $ - $ 48,675
Long Range Planning CORPO SFY 24 ‘ 35,284 $ 4411 $ 4,409 $ - $ - $ 44,104
Service SFY 23 $ 94133 $ 11,767 $ 11,765 $ - $ - $ 117,665
Service SFY 24 $ 176,091 $ 22011 $ 22,010 $ - $ - $ 220,112
Special Studies - O
LinkUS 2022 $ 131,955 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 131,955
Insight2050 - Technical Assistance SFY 23 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 128,872 $ 128,872
Insight2050 - Technical Assistance SFY 24, $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 138,401 $ 138,401
Regional Supplemental Planning SB¥ 23 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 185594 §$§ 185,594
Regional Supplemental Plannin 4 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 207,096 $§ 207,096
COG Wayfinding Strategy SF $ - $ 194,562 $ 194,562
Gohio Activities SFY 23 $ - $ - $ - $ 317,318  $ - $ 317,318
Gohio Activities SFY 24 $ - $ - $ - $ 374,667 $ - $ 374,667
Air Quality SFY 23 $ - $ - $ - $ 273,430 $ - $ 273,430
Air Quality SFY 24 $ - $ - $ - $ 274163 $ - $ 274,163
) -
Program Admini @ Y 23 $ 22,073 % 2,759 §$ 2,759 § - $ - $ 27,591
Program Administratigfl SFY 24 $ 34,987 $ 4,373 $ 4,373 $ - $ - $ 43,733
Total $ 3,255,440 $ 390,369 $ 390,391 $ 1,239,578 $ 854,525 $ 6,130,303

60






This part of MORPC's annual comprehensive financial report presents detailed information as 3
context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, £
required supplementary information says about MORPC'’s overall financial health. The
presented in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) &tate

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission

Statistical
Section

Economic Condition Reporting: The Statistical Section.

Source
co

Contents

Financial Trends O 1-3
These schedules contain trend information to help

understand how MORPC's financial performance and
wellbeing have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity % 4-5
These schedules contain information to help accegs
MORPC's most significant local revenue so s

MORPC does not have the authority to as§ess plpperty taxes.

Debt Capacity N/A

The Ohio Revised Code does not Pgovi ORPC the power
to incur debt.

Demographic and Economic Info on 6-10
These schedules off ographic and economic indicators
to help the reader un e environment within which
MORPC's financi jvitigs take place.
Operating Infoghat 11-14
These sche contain service and infrastructure data to help

the reader un tand how the information in MORPC's financial
report relat;s to the services MORPC provides and the activities

Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the annual
ive financial reports for the relevant year.




Table 1

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission
Net Position by Component
Last Ten Years
(accrual basis of accounting)
2013 2014 (1) 2015 2016 2017 (2) 2018 2 2020 2021 2022
Net investment in
capital assets $ 220167 $ 218,275 $ 203,061 $ 127,540 $ 84,438 $ 131,338 § 113,458 $ 1,024,304 $ 1,584,979 §$ 1,448,135
Restricted for community
development projects 73,049 255,750 - - - - - -
Restricted for regional \
transportation programs - - - - 154,586 193,592 1,371,773 $ 3,696,639 $ 3,226,073
Unrestricted 4,598,325 653,274 468,671 68,161 (3,841,545 ,906,790) (8,139,267) (10,957,333) (6,682,084) (4,162,230)
Total net position $ 4891541 $ 1,127,299 § 671,732 $ 195,701 $ (30 (4,617,866) $ (7,832,217) $(8,561,256) $ (1,400,466) $§ 511,978

(1) Includes a $3,633,652 reduction of unrestricted net position due to a change in acce %rmmple In 2015, MORPC implemented the provisions of

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68, Accountj inancial Reporting for Pensions, and restated 2014 unrestricted
net position due to the recognition of the pension-related deferred outfloY sources and pension liability, in accordance with GASB Statement
No. 68. Information does not exist to restate any other prior yearsgmgt position.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. deounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions [OPEB],
and restated 2017 unrestricted net position due to the géco of the OPEB-related deferred outflow of resources and net OPEB liability, in accordance with
GASB Statement No. 75. Information does not exist to RgState any other prior years' net position.

(2) Includes a $3,198,774 reduction of unrestricted net position due t e in accounting principle. In 2018, MORPC implemented the provisions of

61



Revenue
Transportation (1)
Transportation Infrastructure & Development,

Planning & Sustainability, Data & Mapping (1)

Center for Energy and Environment (1)
Energy & Air Quality (1)
Residential Services - Weatherization (1)
Residential Services - Housing Rehabilitation
All Other

Total Operating Revenues

Expenses
Transportation (1)
Transportation Infrastructure & Development,

Planning & Sustainability, Data & Mapping (1)

Center for Energy and Environment (1)
Energy & Air Quality (1)
Residential Services - Weatherization (1)
Residential Services - Housing Rehabilitation
All Other

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

Interest Income

Interest expense on leases

Federal SBA Paycheck Protection Program Loan
Capital Contributions

Increase (Decrease) in net position
Net Postion - beginning of year

Change in Accounting Principle

Net Position - end of year

(1) MORPC reorganized several departments in 2014 and 2019 as

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission
Changes in Net Position - Revenue and Expense by Program
Last Ten Years

(accrual basis of accounting)

Table 2

2014 (2) 2015 2016 2017 (3) 2018 2021 2022 2023

$ : -3 . -3 -3 O -3 -3 -3 - % .
5,193,972 5,103,694 5,616,497 6,565,020 6,870,247, 7,398,240 6,606,985 7,385,643 8,419,221 8,038,910
2,997,302 3,888,322 3,428,978 3,863,710 4,58 . . ; ; ;

- - - - 3,312,042 2,719,687 3,046,061 3,171,315 3,188,849
2,665,982 1,294,752 1,072,460 761,578 " 7N07 1 909,541 457,523 644,957 1,645,919 1,783,249
992,318 613,352 171,563 1,376,128 598,518 1,535,060 1,990,121 4,315,949 1,609,880 2,119,268

$ 11,849,574 10,900,120 $ 10,289,498 $ 12,566,43 @ 58,062 $ 13,154,883 $ 11,774,316 $ 15392610 $ 14,846,335 $ 15,130,276
$ - - $ - $ $ - $ - $ - 9 -3 - % -
5,179,295 5,116,383 5,582,701 @; 82 6,866,645 7,397,208 6,606,739 7,324,918 8,451,417 8,613,838
3,230,208 3,877,695 3,795, \4,141,726 4,768,357 - - - - -

- - S - - 4,069,916 3,000,858 3,237,359 3,171,856 3,482,299
2,493,046 1,655,871 1 762,223 1,173,160 909,615 457 523 644,924 1,626,418 1,783,249
1,079,474 708,157 1 1,972,250 2,070,727 4,066,779 2,459,177 (2,490,085) (413,419) 2,158,856

$ 11,982,023 11,358,106 339 $ 13355481 $ 14,878,889 $ 16443518 $ 12524297 $ 8717116 $ 12836273 $ 16,038,242
$  (132,449) (457,9 489,841) $  (789,045) $  (920,827) $ (3,288,635) $  (749,981) $ 6,675494 $ 2,010,062 $ (907,966)
1,859 2,4 13,810 35,011 60,068 74,284 20,942 23,610 20,014 93,710
- - - - - - - - (117,632) (116,409)

- / - - - - - 461,686 - -
$  (130,590) %m,%?) $  (476,031) $  (754,034) $  (860,759) $ (3,214,351) $  (729,039) $ 7,160,790 $ 1,912,444 $ (930,665)
$ 4,891, 1,127,299 $ 671,732 $ 195,701 $ (3,757,107) $ (4,617,866) $ (7,832,217) $ (8,561,256) $ (1,400,466) $ 511,978
- - (3,198,774) - - - - - -
209 $ 671,732 $ 195,701 (3,757,107) $ (4,617,866) $ (7,832,217) $ (8,561,256) $ (1,400,466) $ 511,978 $ (418,687)

(2) MORPC implemented the provisions of GASB Statement No. 68 in 2015 and as a result of the change in accounting principle, recorded a restatement of 2014 net position.
(3) MORPC implemented the provisions of GASB Statement No. 75 in 2018 and as a result of the change in accounting principle, recorded a restatement of 2017 net position.

62



Revenue

Federal grants and contracts
Members' per capita fees

State grants and contracts

Local contracts and other
Foundations/corporate contributions
Utility company contracts

Total Operating Revenues

Expenses
Transportation (1)
Transportation Infrastructure & Development,

Planning & Sustainability, Data & Mapping (1)

RideSolutions *
Center for Energy and Environment (1)
Energy & Air Quality (1)
Air Quality Awareness/Greenways™**
Residential Energy Conservation**
Residential Services-Weatherization (1)
Residential Services-Housing Rehabilitation (1)
All Other

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

Interest Income

Interest exepnse on leases

Federal SBA Paycheck Protection Program Loan
Capital Contributions

Gain on Sale of Building

Increase (Decrease) in net position
Net Postion - beginning of year

Change in Accounting Principle

Net Postion - end of year

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission
Changes in Net Position - Revenue by Source, Expense by Program

Last Ten Years
(accrual basis of accounting)

Table 3

2014 (2) 2015 2016 2017 (3) 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

$ 6,607,866 $ 5943391 $ 5352234 $ 6134429 $ 6550872 $ 6,561,391 $ 5579546 $ 6,561,472 $ 8,590,996 $ 9,062,346
839,887 895,596 935,719 1,010,708 1,098,711 1,205,596 1,302,023 1,305,458 1,400,304 1,492,125
646,189 404,367 426,498 560,566 560,408 613,564 414,798 506,793 746,617 985,476
1,277,348 634,199 571,356 1,720,386 2,203,898 1,923,491 2,259834 4,694,505 2,182,228 1,709,190
341,525 208,055 584,907 347,729 222,088 179,236 41,572 76,237 116,135 158,396
2,136,759 2,814,512 2,418,784 2,792,618 3,321,185 2,671,605 5,543 2,248,145 1,810,054 1,722,742

$ 11,849,574 $ 10,900,120 $ 10,289,498 $ 12,566,436 $ 13,958,062 $ 13,1540 1,774,316 $ 15,392,610 $ 14,846,335 $ 15,130,276

$ -9 - $ - $ -5 -5 -9 -9 - $ - % -
5,179,295 5,116,383 5,582,701 6,479,282 6,866,640 97,208 6,606,739 7,324,918 8,451,417 8,613,838
3,230,208 3,877,695 3,795,914 4,141,726 4 7%\ ; ; ; . ;

- ; - 4,069,916 3,000,858 3,237,358 3,171,856 3,482,299
2,493,046 1,655,871 1,070,943 762, 173,160 909,615 457,523 644,925 1,626,418 1,783,249
1,079,474 708,157 329,781 1,072£50 2,070,727 4,066,779 2,459,177 (2,490,085) (413,419) 2,158,856
$ 11,982,023 $ 11,358,106 $ 10,779,339 $ 1 14,878,889 $ 16,443,518 $ 12524297 $ 8,717,116 $ 12,836,273 $ 16,038,242
$  (132,449) $  (457,986) $  (489,841) 045) $  (920,827) $ (3,288,635) $  (749,981) $ 6675494 $ 2,010,062 $ (907,966)
1,859 2,419 13,810 5,011 60,068 74,284 20,942 23,610 20,014 93,710

. ; i i i - - ] (117,632)  (116,400)

; ; Q~ ; ; ; ; 461,686 i ;

$ (130,590) $  (455567) Qosn $  (754,034) $  (860,759) $ (3,214,351) $  (729,039) $ 7,160,790 $ 1,912,444 $ (930,665)

$ 4,891,541 1,127,299 671,732 $ 195701 $ (3,757,107) $ (4,617,866) $ (7,832,217) $ (8,561,256) $ (1,400,466) $ 511,978
(3,633,652) ; (3,198,774) ; ; . ; ; ;

$ 1,127,299 32 $ 195701 $ (3,757,107) $ (4,617,866) $ (7,832,217) $ (8,561,256) $ (1,400,466) $ 511,978 $ (418,687)

(1) MORPC reorganized several departments in 2014 and 2019 as

(2) MORPC implemented the provisions of GASB Statement
(3) MORPC implemented the provisions of GASB Statement

N 0
0

iln the table.

15 and as a result of the change in accounting principle, recorded a restatement of 2014 net position.
18 and as a result of the change in accounting principle, recorded a restatement of 2017 net position.

63



MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
Revenue Base and Revenue Rates

Table 4

Estimated Population by Member Jurisdiction Used for Per Capita Membership Fees

Governmental Unit 2014 2015 2016 2017 (2) 2018 2019 2020 2021 (3) 2022 2023 (6)
Cities

*  Bellefontaine - - - - - - 13,174 13,174 14,025 13,996
Bexley 13,070 13,074 13,074 13,233 13,278 13,386 13,370 13,370 13,862 13,517
Canal Winchester 7,326 7,385 7,750 7,919 8,679 8,828 9,093 9,093 9,469 9,604

*  Chillicothe - - - - - - 21,342 21,342 21,940 21,811

*  Circleville - - - - - - 13,610 13,610 13,873 13,862
Columbus 802,912 810,200 818,912 861,141 881,859 902,674 914,450 914,450 909,686 912,274
Delaware 35,469 35,885 36,263 37,853 39,214 39,937 41,407 41,407 42,252 44,122
Dublin 43,648 44,375 44,641 47,325 48,550 49,905 50,593 50,593 49,221 48,807
Gahanna 33,323 33,359 33,382 33,984 34,194 36,075 36,018 36,018 35,746 34,778
Grandview Heights 6,840 6,845 6,859 7,284 7,860 8,483 8,559 8,559 8,078 8,370
Grove City 36,079 36,459 36,720 37,138 41,546 42,400 42,766 42,766 41,323 42,757
Groveport 5,540 5,597 5,604 5,638 5,801 5,867 5,860 5,860 5,981 6,127

*  Heath - - - - - - - - 10,430 10,402
Hilliard 28,723 28,952 29,331 30,694 37,109 38,106 38,244 38,244 37,094 37,639

*  Johnstown 4,922 4,944 4,944 4,973 5,340 5,390 5,491 5,491 5,315 5,868

*  Lancaster - - - - 40,391 40,888 40,561 40,561 40,813 41,219

*  London - - - - - - - - 10,424 10,112

*  Marysville 22,534 22,765 23,023 23,286 23,559 24,224 24,505 24,505 25,873 28,081

*  Mount Vernon - - - - - - - - 16,991 17,028
New Albany 8,391 8,953 9,101 9,457 10,717 10,897 10,980 10,980 10,863 11,188

*  Newark - - - - - - - - - 49,842
Obetz 4,564 4,591 4,591 4,665 5,069 5,226 5,339 5,339 5,632 5,324
Pataskala 15,281 15,392 15,508 15,611 17,175 17,565 18,426 18,426 18,079 18,634
Pickerington 18,938 19,316 19,508 19,718 21,219 22,443 23,096 23,096 23,395 24,923
Powell 12,429 12,660 12,983 13,153 14,238 14,464 14,613 14,613 14,192 14,455
Reynoldsburg 36,013 36,102 36,185 36,540 37,168 37,571 37,650 37,650 40,901 40,548
Sunbury - 4,928 5,022 5,085 5,219 5,457 6,028 6,028 6,955 6,846
Upper Arlington 33,895 33,964 33,976 34,562 35,207 35,555 35,542 35,542 36,618 35,694
Westerville 36,876 36,918 37,272 37,895 38,623 39,955 40,656 40,656 39,163 38,498
Whitehall 18,084 18,091 18,091 18,433 18,388 18,531 19,406 19,406 20,254 19,968
Worthington 13,581 13,596 13,596 13,650 14,303 14,440 14,509 14,509 14,709 14,359

Total Cities 1,238,438 1,254,351 1,266,336 1,319,237 1,404,706 1,438,267 1,505,288 1,505,288 1,543,157 1,600,653
Villages

*  Ashville 4,097 4,104 4,104 4,104 4,133 4,088 4,104 4,104 4,518 4,488
Brice 114 114 114 114 - - - - - -

*  Buckeye Lake - - - - - - - - 2,559 2,568
Crooksville - - - 2,478 2,499 - - - - -
Galena - 747 763 781 799 823 865 865 1,014 1,916

*  Gambier - - - - - - 2,414 2,414 2,212 2,222

*  Granville - - - - - - 6,292 6,292 5,942 6,057
Harrisburg 320 320 320 320 325 - - - - -

*  Hebron - - - - - - 2,449 2,345 2,518
Lithopolis 1,206 1,250 1,250 1,399 1,492 1,545 1,668 1,668 2,223 2,388
Lockbourne 237 237 237 237 241 276 276 276 235 234
Marble Cliff 573 573 573 573 583 587 586 586 630 622
Minerva Park 1,272 1,272 1,272 1,272 1,359 1,557 1,554 1,554 2,069 2,034

*  New Lexington - 4,768 4,768 - - - - - 4,407 4,405

*  Plain City - - - - - 4,460 4,623 4,623 4,208 4,487
Riverlea 548 548 548 548 564 569 568 568 596 581
Shawnee Hills 729 745 765 776 800 805 808 808 831 832

*  Somerset - 1,466 1,466 1,466 1,547 1,517 1,514 1,514 1,472 1,471

*  South Bloomfield - - - - - - - - - 3,119
Urbancrest 960 960 960 967 981 991 989 989 1,025 1,022
West Jefferson 4,222 4,226 - - - - - - - -

Total Villages 14,278 21,330 17,140 15,035 15,293 17,218 26,261 28,710 36,286 40,964
Townships
Bloom 7,085 7,124 7,136 7218 7,494 7,623 7,601 7,601 7,677 7,592
Blendon 7,808 7,808 7,808 7,866 7,978 8,054 8,055 8,055 8,105 7,922
Clinton 4,109 4,109 4409 4,130 4,193 4,226 4,221 4,221 4,476 4,374
Etna 8,657 8,723 8,841 8,928 9,538 9,801 9,942 9,942 9,882 9,991
Franklin - - - - 9,813 9,905 9,887 9,887 10,445 10,200

*  Granville 4,187 4,190 4,225 4,259 4,322 4,375 4,432 4,432 4,319 4,317
Jackson - - - - - - - - 4,235 4,154
Jefferson - - - - 12,124 12,612 13,281 13,281 13,830 14,211
Jerome - 5,407 5,844 6,210 6,309 6,970 8,173 8,173 9,048 11,270
Liberty - 16,000 16,212 16,525 16,894 17,338 17,677 17,677 17,677 -
Madison 10,800 10,800 10,807 10,814 11,008 11,101 11,087 11,087 11,041 10,780
Mifflin 2,462 2,462 2,466 2,470 2,513 2,533 2,531 2,531 2,625 2,600
Perry 3,637 3,641 3,641 3,661 3,717 3,749 3,745 3,745 4,210 4,420
Plain 2,142 2,142 2,142 2,149 2,236 2,256 2,267 2,267 1,977 1,943
Prairie 16,498 16,498 16,505 16,681 16,790 16,946 16,931 16,931 17,406 17,041
Truro - - - - - - 1,334 1,334 1,414 1,379
Violet - - - - 20,240 20,540 20,429 20,429 20,432 21,360
Washington 19,249 19,349 19,420 19,602 - - 1,018 1,018 1,002 981

Total Townships 86,634 108,253 109,162 110,513 135,169 138,029 142,611 142,611 149,801 134,535
Counties (1)
Delaware County 116,777 118,659 120,224 122,210 124,763 127,294 124,541 124,541 124,789 132,436

**  Fairfield County - - - - - - 81,399 81,399 82,098 82,692
Franklin County 102,230 102,468 102,664 103,598 106,217 108,030 103,478 103,478 105,285 104,163

*  Hocking County - - - - 21,544 21,544 21,146 21,146 20,637 20,531

**  Knox County - - - - - 45,347 43,670 43,670 45,790 46,096
Licking County - - - - - - - - 85,860 86,144

*  Logan County - - - - - 32,802 31,485 31,485 31,872 32,014

**  Madison County (5) - - - - - - - - 33,850 33,420

**  Marion County - - - - - - - - - 29,095

** Morrow County - - - - - 35,192 35,193 35,193 34,960 35,313

*  Perry County - - - 35,945 36,182 36,172 36,103 36,103 35,460 35,441
Ross County 56,163 56,335 56,392 56,571 58,266 - - - - -

** Union County 29,190 29,802 30,364 31,364 29,446 30,331 31,349 31,349 33,198 34,555
Total County 304,360 307,264 309,644 349,688 376,418 436,712 508,363 508,363 633,799 671,900
Total full member population (4) 1,643,710 1,691,198 1,702,282 1,794,473 1,931,586 2,030,226 2,182,523 2,184,972 2,363,043 2,448,052
MPQO member per capita rate $ 0490 $ 0505 $ 0520 $ 0.5375 $ 0555 §$ 0.565 $ 0.575 $ 0575 $ 0.600 $ 0.615
Non-MPO per capita rate $ 0310 $ 0310 $ 0325 $§ 03425 $ 0.360 $ 0.370 $ 0.380 $ 0.380 $ 0.400 $ 0.410
CORPO per capita rate $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 0470 $ 0.480 $ 0.480 $ 0.500 $ 0.515

Notes

(1) Above county populations exclude city populations. Beginning in 2014, the counties' members dues calculations used the non-city
population plus an additional 10% of the populations of cities located within the county.
(2) Beginning in 2017, net international migration population from U.S. Census estimates is included in all jurisdictions.
(3) Population estimates were not updated for purposes of charging membership fees in 2021 so as to provide members with
financial relief during the COVID pandemic.
(4) The total full member population amounts will double count the populations for villages and townships that are members because they are
also included in the population figures for counties that are members.
(5) Full member in 2022. Previously, it was a limited member only involved in CORPO.

*

2023 Non-MPO members - These members are outside the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPQO) area and pay the Non-MPO rate.

** 2023 CORPO members - Non-MPO member is in the Central Ohio Rural Planning Organization, with CORPO rates beginning in 2022.
(6) Populations estimates were prepared with an updated methodology for 2023 that included other year-over-year changes such as household size,

housing occupancy, migration estimates, and housing construction permits which contributed to the decreased overall amounts in member population
from prior year's estimates



Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission
Benefits of Membership - Flow of Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2023

Table 5

Member Dues Billed &

Return Flow of Funds from Federal, State and Utility Companies

Infrastructure &

Residential

Members/Governmental Unit Investments TOTAL Transportation Conservation Housing Rehabilitation Weatherization*
Dues

The City of Bellefontaine $5,754 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
The City of Bexley $8,462 $28,145 $0 $0 $28,145 $0
The City of Canal Winchester $5,821 $6,990 $0 $0 $0 $6,990
The City of Chillicothe $8,993 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
The City of Circleville $5,783 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
The City of Columbus $558,657 $29,229,397 $20,299,138 $7,816,435 $32,800 $1,081,024
The City of Delaware $26,321 $18,609,158 $18,609,158 $0 $0 $0
The City of Dublin $30,129 $100,686 $100,000 $0 $0 $686
The City of Gahanna $21,729 $999,999 $0 $999,999 $0 $0
The City of Grandview Heights $5,398 $2,729,696 $0 $2,725,993 $0 $3,703
The City of Grove City $25,556 $3,534,555 $0 $3,499,999 $0 $34,556
The City of Groveport $3,675 $71,918 $68,318 $0 $0 $3,600
The City of Heath $4,972 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
The City of Hilliard $22,744 $118,492 $72,000 $0 $29,174 $17,318
The City of Johnstown $2,225 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
The City of Lancaster $16,852 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
The City of London $4,274 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
The City of Marysville $11,450 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
The City of Mount Vernon $6,966 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
The City of New Albany $6,716 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
The City of Newark $15,390 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
The City of Obetz $3,333 $220,511 $90,986 $0 $129,525 $0
The City of Pataskala $11,240 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
The City of Pickerington $14,732 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
The City of Powell $8,781 $414,697 $414,697 $0 $0 $0
The City of Reynoldsburg $25,280 $26,398 $0 $0 $0 $26,398
The City of Sunbury $4,132 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
The City of Upper Arlington $22,346 $5,459,918 $5,453,209 $0 $0 $6,709
The City of Westerville $23,933 $64,478 $48,800 $0 $0 $15,678
The City of Whitehall $12,325 $4,118,350 $0 $3,793,085 $325,265 0
The City of Worthington $8,985 $19,325 $0 $0 $0 $19

The Village of Ashville $1,879 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
The Village of Buckeye Lake $1,049 $0 $0 $0 $0 VO
The Village of Galena $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
The Village of Gambier $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 O $0
The Village of Granville $2,502 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
The Village of Hebron $1,000 $0 $0 $0 0 $0
The Village of Lithopolis $1,314 $0 $0 $0 $0
The Village of Lockbourne $1,000 $0 $0 $0 @ $0
The Village of Marble Cliff $1,000 $0 $0 $0 \ $0
The Village of Minerva Park $1,220 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
The Village of New Lexington $1,802 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
The Village of Plain City $1,702 $0 $0 $0 % $0 $0
The Village of Riverlea $1,000 $0 $0 $0. $0 $0
Village of Shawnee Hills $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $0
The Village of Somerset $1,000 $0 $0 <$O ’ $0 $0
The Village of South Bloomfield $750 $0 $0 $0 $0
The Village of Urbancrest $1,000 $39,875 $0 0 $39,875 $0
Blendon Township $4,950 $0 \ $0 $0 $0
Bloom Township $4,688 $0 Q $0 $0 $0
Clinton Township $2,734 $99,750 $0 $99,750 $0
Etna Township $6,123 $0 $0 $0 $0
Franklin Township $6,380 $250,925 $0 $250,925 $0
Granville Township $1,772 $0 $0 $0 $0
Jackson Township $2,587 $122,175 $0 $122,175 $0
Jefferson Township $8,662 $0 $0 $0 $0
Jerome Township $5,665 $0 $0 $0 $0
Madison Township $6,746 $104,923 $0 $104,923 $0
Mifflin Township $1,617 $131,557 $0 $131,557 $0
Perry Township $2,571 0 $0 $0 $0
Plain Township $1,204 $0 $0 $0
Prairie Township $10,645 4 $0 $87,045 $0
Truro Township $1,000 ,9 $0 $86,903 $0
Violet Township $8,264 $0 $0 $0 $0
Washington Township $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $0
Unincorporated Franklin County $139,571 $6,808,957 $6,808,957 $0 $0
Delaware County $85,019 $0 $0 $0 $0
Fairfield County *** $4,442 $0 $0 $0 $0
Fairfield County $49,703 $750,000 $750,000 $0 $0 $0
Hocking County $8,788 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Knox County $24,524 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Licking County $41,698 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Logan County $13,702 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Madison County $17,970 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Marion County $15,630 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Morrow County $18,097 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Perry County $14,502 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Union County $19,492 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Associate Members $8,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Subtotal $1,492,202 $74,234,823 $45,906,306 $25,644,468 $1,468,062 $1,215,987
Returns-not broken out by community

COTA and DCT na $40,106,430 $40,106,430 na na na
Other/Regional ** na $539,645,887 529,836,930 $9,808,957 na na
Subtotal na $579,752,317 $569,943,360 $9,808,957 $0 $0
Investments

MORPC Transportation Planning $3,931,566 na na na na na
MORPC Housing Admin $552,841 na na na na na
MORPC Infrastructure & Clean Ohio Admin $128,355 na na na na na
MORPC Energy Conservation Admin $1,567,474 na na na na na
Subtotal $6,180,236 na na na na na
GRAND TOTAL $7,672,439 $653,087,140 $615,849,666 $35,453,425 $1,468,062 $1,215,987

na = not applicable

*Residential Weatherization flow of funds by governmental unit are estimated.

**Some activities represented under one governmental unit have benefits regionally that are not included in other governmental unit lines.
This report is compiled from accounting and other financial data and should be considered a non-GAAP report.

65



Table 6
MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION \

Principal Payers - Members' Per Capita Fees V
% of full % of full
Governmental Unit 2013 members' dues Governmental UnQ 2022 members' dues
1. Columbus $ 377,604 51.4% 1. Columbus $ 545,812 42.1%
2. Delaware County excluding cities 54,228 7.4% 2.  Franklin Gg 136,462 10.5%
3. Unincorporated Franklin County 44,344 6.0% 3. Delayere 80,395 6.2%
4. Dublin 20,474 2.8% 4. Fajrfi @. 48,355 3.7%
5.  Westerville 17,502 2.4% 5. x 29,533 2.3%
6. Ross County excluding 6. %N re City 25,351 2.0%
City of Chillicothe 17,411 2.4% e City 24,794 1.9%
7.  Reynoldsburg 17,066 2.4% eynoldsburg 24,541 1.9%
8. Grove City 17,013 2.3% QQ. Knox County 23,742 1.8%
9. Delaware City 16,673 2.3% 0. Westerville 23,498 1.8%
10. Upper Arlington 16,089 2.3%

Source: MORPC Finance Department Q

66



Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission Table 7
MORPC Membership Population
Columbus M.S.A. Estimated Civilian Labor Force

(Labor Force in Thousands)

and Annual Average Unemployment Rates
2014-2023

Columbus M.S.A. (1) Ohio U.S
MORPC Unem- Unem- Unem
Membership Labor ployment Labor  ployment pI

Year Population (4) force (2) rate (3) force (2) rate (3) ra
2014 1,608,742 1,034.1 3.9 5,725.8 5.6
2015 1,629,159 1,044.8 3.9 5,694.0 5.0
2016 1,639,446 1,049.1 3.9 5,686.7 4.7
2017 1,730,525 1,080.0 3.7 5,782.0 4.1
2018 1,779,073 1,087.9 4.1 5,757.5 \ 3.9
2019 1,922,494 1,105.9 3.2 5 811 8 % 3.5
2020 2,048,895 1,105.5 4.4 6.7
2021 2,278,446 1,121.1 29 3.9
2022 2,363,043 1,118.6 3.1 5,4 4.1 3.5
2023 2,482,305 1,119.4 2.7

(1) The Columbus M.S.A. includes Delaware,
Morrow, Perry, Pickaway and Union ¢

(2) Civilian labor force is the estimated n
are working or seeking work.

(3) The unemployment rate is equal to t
estimated civilian labor fq

current member jurisdig

74 3.6 3.7
g)anklln Hocking, Licking, Madison,

@sons 16 years of age and over, who are

imate of unemployed persons divided by the

(4) The MORPC membershii i is the unduplicated population of MORPC's

Sources: Membership
Labor stayﬁcs, U. S. Bureau of Labor Statistics

<<&

v
&

ulation, MORPC

67



Table 8
Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission abie

Per Capita Income and Total Personal Income

2014-2023
Columbus M.S.A. (1) Ohio
Per Total Per Total
Capita Personal Capita Personal
Income Income Income Income
Year (Millions) (Millions) V
2014 $45,181 $90,513.7 $42,278 $496,069.1
2015 $46,931 $95,257.0 $43,801 $515,871.4
2016 $47,740 $98,107.1 $44,576 $526,177.2
2017 $49,080 $102,377.8 $46,116 $546,006.0
2018 $50,564 $106,583.8 $47,822 $569,184.
2019 $52,018 $110,697.6 $49,404 $586,7 4.0
2020 $55,902 $119,727.8 $52,879 $623 X
2021 $60,579 $130,059.5 $57,026 $6
2022 $61,228 $132,344.1 $57,777 0,4354
2023 N/A N/A $60,402 %94.8

Madison, Morrow, Perry, Pickaway and Union count

(1) The Columbus M.S.A. includes Delaware, Fairfield, Fr@@ing, Licking,
ies.

(2) Information updated: new statistics for 2022; rev %stics for 2014-2021

Source: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bure nomic Analysis,
City of Columbus ACFR, Table 25, pageg#”
& ’

68



MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
Principal Employers in the Greater Columbus Area

Number of

Table 9

Number of

Employees % V Employees %

(FTE's) to (FTE's) to
Name of Employer 2014 Total Name of Employer 2023 Total
1. Ohio State University 28,710 2.97% Ohio State University 34,661 3.20%
2. State of Ohio 23,692 2.45% State of Ohio 23,410 2.16%
3.  JPMorgan Chase & Co. 20,475 2.12% OhioHealth Corp. 21,950 2.02%
4. OhioHealth Corp. 19,652 2.03% JPMorgan Chase 18,600 1.71%
5. Nationwide Mutual Insurance Co. 12,433 1.29% Nationwide ChiIdr@» 14,242 1.31%
6. Kroger Co. 11,068 1.15% Nationwide N ance Co. 11,000 1.01%
7. Mount Carmel Health System 8,362 0.87% Kroger Co 10,925 1.01%
8. Nationwide Children's Hospital 8,243 0.85% Amazg 9,262 0.85%
9. Columbus City Schools 8,195 0.85% City o@bus 8,855 0.82%
10. Honda North America, Inc 7,900 0.82% C@ ity Schools 8,235 0.76%

Source: City of Columbus 2023 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report, Pa 1G§’e 22
b

Source of FTE's and Rank: "Largest Central Ohio Employers Ranked by Nx
Business First of Columbus Inc. All right c

combined labor force of Hocking,

. Reprinted with permission.

Central Ohio Employees", Business First of Columbus. © Copyright 2023,

nd Perry Counties, which is included in Columbus MSA but not in Business First data.

Source of 2023 "% to Total": Percentage calculated using COI@S labor force number of 1,129,200 provided by the City of Columbus, minus 44,500

<<O

&

v
&

69



MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION Table 10
Area in Square Miles by Member Jurisdiction

As of December 31, 2022 and 2013

2013 2022

Area In Area In
Governmental Unit Square Miles Square Miles
Licking County 674.50
Knox County 529.60
Fairfield County, less City of Lancaster 508.44
Logan County, less City of Bellefontaine 467.00
Delaware County less Cities of Columbus, Delaware,

Dublin, Powell, Sunbury, Westerville; Villages of Galena, Shawnee Hills 423.38 457.40
Hocking County 423.40
Perry County 412.70
Morrow County 407.50
Madison County 404.10
Union County, less Cities of Marysville and Dublin, and Township of Jerome 416.00 383.84
City of Columbus 233.77 226.47
Unincorporated Franklin County

Madison Township 23.06
Prairie Township 18.69
Jefferson Township 14.25
Plain Township 8.93
Franklin Township 6.70
Blendon Township 5.74
Washington Township 2.67
Perry Township 2.24
Mifflin Township
Clinton Township
Truro Township .
ALL OTHER TOWNSHIPS .82
Total Unincorporated Franklin County 183.14 78.91
Bloom Township 61 35.36
Jerome Township 34.30
City of Pataskala .85 29.04
Violet Township .53 28.85
City of Dublin 25.78 24.90
Village of New Lexington 21.32
Granville Township, less Cities of Heath, Newark; Village of Granvi 21.09 21.06
Etna Township 20.76 20.55

City of Delaware 19.12 20.12
City of Lancaster 19.10
City of Grove City Q 16.68 18.78

City of New Albany 10.93 16.95
City of Marysuville 16.22 16.85
Jackson Township % 16.72
City of Hilliard \ 15.53 14.39
City of Westerville 12.50 12.75
City of Gahanna 11.54 12.60
City of Reynoldsburg 11.92 11.57
City of Heath 11.50
City of Chillicothe 10.64
City of Pickerington 9.68 10.14
City of Bellefontaine 10.02
City of Mt. Vernon 9.86
City of Upper Arlington 9.91 9.77
City of Groveport 9.32 8.89
City of Lorﬁ 8.41
City of @anal hester 7.46 8.19
City of' GigCleville 7.31
Ci 6.62 6.05
i%en 5.19 5.81
i Worthington 6.40 5.55
City of Whitehall 5.34 5.34
illage of Granville 4.86
City of Sunbury 4.82
City of Johnstown 3.01
Village of Hebron 2.96
Village of Plain City 2.49 2.78
City of Bexley 2.45 2.44
Village of Ashville 2.21 2.38
Village of Lithopolis 2.91 2.28
Village of Buckeye Lake 1.99
Village of Galena 1.82
City of Grandview Heights 1.35 1.32
Village of Somerset 1.15
Village of Gambier 0.93
Village of Lockbourne 0.74 0.75
Village of Minerva Park 0.49 0.65
Village of Urbancrest 0.49 0.57
Village of Shawnee Hills 0.44 0.44
Village of Marble Cliff 0.31 0.28
Village of Riverlea 0.20 0.15
Ross County, less City of Chillicothe 682.32 -
Village of West Jefferson 7.02 -
City of Baltimore 2.14 -
Village of Harrisburg 0.14 -
Village of Brice 0.1 -
Total area in square miles 2,298.08 5,509.31

Source: County Engineers, MORPC and Member Communities
Certain 2013 estimates have been revised to correspond with current measurement methodology.

70



Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission

Transportation Infrastructure & Development
Data & Mapping

Planning & Sustainability

Residental Services

Member Services and Administrative

4

Total

Source: Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission, Operation
Method: Percentage of time generally worked in area.

&,
Q

Employees by Function/Activity V Table 11
Last Ten Years
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2020 2021 2022 2023
16.75 14.50 17.50 18.00 18.0 .00 16.30 16.50 20.00 19.00
7.00 7.00 6.50 6.25 7.50 7.00 6.00 13.50 11.50
7.75 8.50 9.50 9.25 12.55 11.25 10.50 10.75 10.50
23.50 21.00 150 16.10 17.10 15.75 16.75 16.50
16.00 17.00 .50 21.50 22.80 20.50 23.00 25.25
71.00 68.00 75.75 72.65 74.45 69.25 84.00 82.75

19.75 20.5
18.25 1645
71.50 0

%C)

ent
Q.
(<O

7



Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission

Operating Indicators
Last Ten Years

Table 12

Federal transportation projects completed
Cost of Fed transportation projects completed

Housing Repair Programs

Franklin County Single Family Rehab units completed
Franklin County Urgent Repair Program

COCIC Exterior Home Repair

ODH Lead Remediation

Healthy Homes Production Program
PACT/Homeport Home Repair Program

United Way Home Repair Program

Weinland Park Home Repair Program

Homeport/Milo Grogan Home Repair Program

Home Weatherization Programs
Home Weatherization Assistance Program (HWAP)
completed weatherizations

WarmChoice Program inspections
WarmChoice Program completions

AEP Community Assistance Program (Households) (1)
Electric Partnership Program (Households) (2)

Notes:
(1) Program was discontinued during 2020
(2) Program was discontinued in 2019, and closed in 2020

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 !2020 2021 2022 2023
5 9 6 6 8 9 8 7 6
$ 4,325383 $5,062,584 $4,378,713  $4,628796  $5277,238  $5,386, ngz,om $4,572,774  $4,789,750 $4,731,613
16 7 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
62 63 41 42 43 0 15 17 61 67
N/A N/A N/A N/A 8 2 5 9 9
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 13
0 0 0 O 0 0 0 0 17
N/A 4 4 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
15 7 11 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
9 10 5 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A &% N IA 14 N/A N/A N/A N/A
70 78 49 053 52 47 30 49 59 88
485 502 3 % 427 519 465 502 546 393 302
351 505 402 506 415 325 538 419 378
358 311 3 397 426 339 125 N/A N/A N/A
63 229 231 409 N/A N/A N/A N/A

Source: Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission Residential Serviges deglartment

Q&

v
&

Q_ 328 104

72



Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission

Capital Assets
Last Ten Years

2014 2015(1) 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021(4) 2022(5) 2023(6)
Planning & Sustainability, Data & Mapping, and Transportation & Infrastructue Development (2)
Computers 37 15 15 15 15 15 15 - - 1
SBITAs - - - - - - - - - 2
Vehicle Lease - - - - - - - - - 1
Vehicles 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 - - -
Eco-counter - - - - - - - 2 2 3
Residential Services - Weatherization (3) V
Computers 23 2 2 2 2 2 2 - -
Vehicles 13 13 13 13 11 9 11 3 7
Blower Door 13 - - - - - - - O
Computer Analyzer 7 - - - - - - - - -
Infrared Cameras 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 - -
Residential Services - Housing O
Computers 15 2 2 2 \ - - -
XRF Spectrum Analyzer 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 - 1 1
Vehicles ; ; ; ; ; % - 1 2 2
All Other 0
Computers 64 19 19 20 CZ) 26 26 5 5 5
EV Charging Stations - - - 3 3 3 3 3
Building Lease - - - - - - - 1 1
Copier Leases - - \ - - - - 2 2
- - - 13 15 17

Leasehold Improvements - - Q -

Notes:

(1) In 2015, the expenditure threshhold wag increased from $1,000 to $5,000 for an item to be recorded as a capital asset.
As a result, all previously-c italiyd assets with both an acquisition cost of <$5,000 and a net book value of $-0- at
January 1, 2015 were w&/ﬁofﬁ Capital assets remaining on the books and included herein either have an

0

acquisition cost of >$

(2) The name for thi up\was changed to Planning & Sustainability, Data & Mapping, and Transportation & Infrastructure

Developmentgdn 2 refelect organiztional changes.

(3) The na is group was changed to Residential Services - Weatherization in 2019 to reflect organizational changes.

ere still being depreciated as of January 1, 2015.

(4) In 2021, uilding and contents were renovated and fully depreciated equipment was disposed.

(5) In 2022, MORPC implemented GASB Statement No. 87, Leases.

According to this Statement, the lessee should recognize an intangible Right-to-Use lease asset as a capital lease.

As a result, certain leases for buildings and equipment are now included as part of capital assets.

(6) In 2023, MORPC implemented GASB Statement No.96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements.

Table 13

According to this Statement, the lessee should recognize an intangible Right-to-Use asset for certain software subscriptions.
As a result, certain software subscriptions are now included as part of capital assets.

Source: Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission capital asset records.

73



Table 14

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission
Schedule of Insurance Coverage
December 31, 2023

Existing coverage - policies in force (1) Limits of liability
Type Commercial Umbrella
Each Occurrence $&000,000
General Aggregate 0
Type Commercial iabili
General Aggregate (Other than Products-Completed Operations) GG $3,000,000
Products-Completed Operations Aggregate Limit $3,000,000
Personal and Advertising Injury $1,000,000
Each Occurrence $1,000,000
Fire Damage Limit (Any One Fire) $1,000,000
Deductible $0
Type Public Officials
Limit of Liability $2,000,000
Deductible % $10,000
Insurance Company Darwin Select Insurance Company
Expires Q October 31, 2024
Type Employer's Liability
Employer's Liability Stop Gap $1,000,000
Deductible $0
Type Employee Benefits Liability
Aggregate Limit $3,000,000
Each Claim Limit $1,000,000
Deductible $1,000
Type Crime Coverage
Limit of Liability $250,000
Faithful Performance of Du $25,000
Finance Director / $75,000 (excess)
ExecutivgfDirector $75,000 (excess)
Acco &) $25,000 (excess)
[ $5,000
Cyber Liability
ate Limit $2,000,000
[ $1,000,000
$10,000
Miscellaneous
Computer Coverage $475,000
Camera Equipment $73,758
Valuable Papers and Records - Cost of Research $500,000
Fine Arts $25,000
Miscellaneous Equipment $6,000
Contractors' Equipment Coverage $72,147
Deductible $500

(continued)

74



Table 14

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission
Schedule of Insurance Coverage (continued)
December 31, 2023

Existing coverage - policies in force (1) Limits of liability

9. Type Commercial Property Cov
Blanket Buildings and Business Personal Property $4,505,220
Personal Property - 111 Liberty Street Wd
Deductible ;000

10. Type Lead Abate @ overage
General Aggregate
General Aggregate Limit (Other than Products-Completed Operations) $1,000,000
Products-Completed Operations Aggregate Limit $1,000,000
Personal and Advertising Injury $1,000,000
Each Occurrence $1,000,000
Fire Damage Limit $50,000
Medical Expense Limit $5,000
Bodily Injury & Property Damage Deductible % $5,000
Insurance Company %Mmiral Insurance Company
Expires 0 October 31, 2024

11. Type Automobile
Limit of Liability $1,000,000
Auto Medical Payments (Each Person) $5,000
Deductible - Comprehensive Coverage $500
Deductible - Collision Coverage $500

Architects & Engineers

12. Type Errors & Omissions Insurance
Each Claim $1,000,000
Annual Aggregate $1,000,000
Deductible $10,000
Insurance Company The Hanover Insurance Group

Expires October 31, 2024

Notes: (1) Un&cated otherwise, all policies are carried by the Selective Insurance Company and all coverage
pires

November 1, 2024. MORPC does not engage in risk financing activities where it retains the
(i.e., self-insurance).

Source: V%insurance policies.

75


















MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year-to-Date as of December 31, 2023

Federal Grantor's Program or Passed
ALN Pass-through award Federal Through to
Federal grantor / pass-through grantor / program title Number Number amount Expenditures Subrecipients
Federal Highway Administration:
Passed through Ohio Department of Transportation:
Highway Planning and Construction Cluster
Highway Planning & Construction -
Rideshare Program FY 2023 20.205 105638 700,000 317,318 -
Rideshare Program FY 2024 20.205 110232 750,000 374,667 -
Supplemental Planning FY 2023 20.205 105645 350,000 185,594 -
Supplemental Planning FY 2024 20.205 110234 400,000 207,096 -
Air Quality Awareness FY 2023 20.205 105649 550,000 273,430 -
Air Quality Awareness FY 2024 20.205 110225 575,000 274,163 -
Consolidated Planning Grant FY 2023 20.205 116044 2,703,004 1,589,373 -
Consolidated Planning Grant FY 2024 20.205 118130 3,305,447 1,360,002 -
Central Ohio Regional Planning Organization FY 2023 20.205 114263 178,609 83,758 -
Central Ohio Regional Planning Organization FY 2024 20.205 118375 178,609 90,352 -
inSight2050 Technical Assistance 2023 20.205 110240 250,000 128,872 -
inSight2050 Technical Assistance 2024 20.205 110241 275,000 138,401 -
Central Ohio Greenways Wayfinding Strategy 20.205 117035 290,000 194,562 -
Linkus Regional Corridors Planning 20.205 115208 500,000 131,955 -
Total Highway Planning and Construction Cluster 5,349,542 -
U.S. Department of Transportation Federal Highway Administration
CORPO Safe Streets For All 20.939 (1) 200,000 41,858 -
Total U.S. Department of Transportation Federal Highway ALN No.20.939
4 41,858 -
Federal Transit Administration: V
Transit Services Programs Cluster
Enhanced Mobility for Seniors and Individuals With Disabilities FY 2022 - 2028  20.513 1) O 516,806 132,567 -
Enhanced Mobility for Seniors and Individuals With Disabilities FY 2022 - 2028  20.513 ( 2,031,581 418,978 394,690
Enhanced Mobility for Seniors and Individuals With Disabilities FY 2019-2023 20.513 1,155,277 41,307 41,307
Total Transit Services Programs Cluster O 592,852 435,997
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development: %\
Passed through Franklin County:
CDBG - Entitlement Grants Cluster
Community Development Block Grant/Entitlement Grants -
Home Repair 2020 Q 14.211 (2) 800,000 150,579 -
Home Repair 2021 14.211 (2) 925,000 559,810 -
Home Repair 2019 \ 14.211 (2) 800,000 10,945 -
Home Repair 2023 Q 14.211 (2) 940,000 387,730 -
Total CDBG - Entitlement Grants Cluster 1,109,064 -

&,Q
Q
v

80

(continued)



MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (continued)
Year-to-Date as of December 31, 2023

Federal Grantor's Program or Passed
ALN Pass-through award Federal Through to
Federal grantor / pass-through grantor / program title Number Number amount Expenditures Subrecipients
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Healthy Homes Production 14.913 (1) 2,000,000 214,812 -
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development - ALN No. 14.913 214,812 -
U.S. Department of Energy:
Passed through Ohio Department of Development:
Weatherization Assistance for Low-Income Persons FY 2022 81.042 D22-140 249,128 73,187 -
Weatherization Assistance for Low-Income Persons FY 2023 81.042 D23-140 265,771 248,555 -
Weatherization Assistance for Low-Income Persons GLS FY 2023 81.042 D23-240 386,963 165,455 -
Total U.S. Department of Energy - ALN No. 81.042 487,197 -
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Passed through Ohio Department of Development:
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance -
Weatherization Assistance for Low-Income Persons FY 2022 93.568 H22-140 367,974 328,191 -
Weatherization Assistance for Low-Income Persons FY 2023 93.568 H22-140 620,962 202,898 -
Weatherization Assistance for Low-Income Persons GLS FY 2023 93.568 H23-240 949,727 98,809 -
Weatherization Assistance for Low-Income Persons - Enhancement FY 2022 93.568 HE22-140 254,432 168,966 -
Weatherization Assistance for Low-Income Persons - Enhancement FY 2023 93.568 HE22-140 42&0{ 87,817 -
Weatherization Assistance for Low-Income Persons - Enhancement GLS FY
2023 93.568 HE23-240 4,643 79,702 -
Weatherization Assistance for Low-Income Persons - WRF 22 93.568 HR22-140 525 12,525 -
Weatherization Assistance for Low-Income Persons - WRF 23 93.568 HR23-140 7,620 - -
Weatherization Assistance for Low-Income Persons GLS - WRF 93.568 HR23-24O 42,243 - -
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services - ALN No. 93.568 978,909 -

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency \O
Ambient Air Monitoring in Underserved Communities 2023-26 %% (1) 600,000 7,682 -

0 7,682 i
C) 66.475 @ 75,000 23,728 .

Total U.S. Environmental Protection Agency - ALN No. 66.034

American Farmland Trust %

Total U.S. Environmental Protection Agency - ALN No. 6 23,728 -

Brownfields Assesment and Cleanup Cooperative Ag @ ents 66.818 (1) 600,000 33,139 -

Total U.S. Environmental Protection Agenc @40. 66.818 33,139 -

Climate Pollution Reduction Grant 66.046 (2) 19,850 -

T4

Total U.S. Environmental Prot&Agency - ALN No.66.046 19,850 -
U.S. Department of Commerce

Economic Adjust pment Assistance 11.307 (1) 400,000 156,948 -

Total U.S. Department of Commerce - ALN No. 11.307 156,948 -
U.S. Department of the Treasury:

COVID-19 - Coronovirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds ARPA 21.027 (3) 44,510 -

Total U.S. Department of Treasury - ALN No. 21.027 - 44,510 -

Total Federal Financial Assistance 9,060,091 435,997

Notes:
(1) Program funds are not passed through, but provided directly from the federal agency.
(2) Not applicable - none assigned by pass-through agency.

(3) Non applicable - none assigned by pass-through agency, cash not received by MORPC, but instead received and
disbursed by Franklin County.

81



MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2023

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

prepared in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Require
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a select i

operations of MORPC it is not intended to, and does not, present the fi sition, changes
in net position, or cash flows of MORPC for the year ended Decembe

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Expenditures shown on the accompanying Schedule are sing the accrual basis of

accounting, which is described in note 1 to MORPC's fj tements. Such expenditures
are recognized according to the cost principles containegi niform Guidance, wherein
r may be limited as to

certain types of expenditures may or may not be all§yab

reimbursement. Pass-through grant identifyin b e presented when available. MORPC
has elected not to use the ten percent de minifiis indfiect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform

Guidance.
3. MATCHING REQUIREMENTS \6

Certain federal programs require to contribute non-federal matching funds to support the
federally funded programs. MOR 5 met its matching requirements for the year ended
December 31, 2023. The panying Schedule does not include the expenditure of non-
federal matching funds.

82



MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
FRANKLIN COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
2 CFR § 200.515
DECEMBER 31, 2023

1. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

(d)(1)(i) Type of Financial Statement Opinion Unmodified
(d)(1)(ii) Were there any material weaknesses in No

internal control reported at the financial

statement level (GAGAS)?
(d)(1)(ii) Were there any significant deficiencies in No

internal control reported at the financial

statement level (GAGAS)?
(d)(1)(iii) Was there any reported material No

noncompliance at the financial statement

level (GAGAS)?
(d)(1)(iv) Were there any material weaknesses in No

internal control reported for' major federal

programs?
(d)(1)(iv) Were there any significant deficiencies in No

internal control reported for major federal

programs?
(d)(1)(v) Type of Major Programs’ Compliance,Opinion. | Wnmodified
(d)(1)(vi) Are there any reportable findings under 2 CFR | No

§ 200.516(a)?
(d)(1)(vii) Major Programs (list): Highway Planning and

Construction Cluster
(d)(1)(viii) Dollar Threshold: Type A\B Programs Type A: > $ 750,000
Type B: all others
(d)(1)(ix) Low Risk Auditee under 2 CFR § 200.5207 Yes
2. FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS
None.

3. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS

None.




MID-OHIO REGIONAL

N MORPC %\’

PLANNING COMMISSION

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning C %ssmn
111 Liberty St. Suit ’r@
Columbus, Ohlo@

P. 614.228.2663 | R 228.1904
info@morpc. o .morpc.org




Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission

M 0 R PC Executive Committee Meeting Minutes

‘ Date: May 2, 2024
Time: 1:30 p.m.

7‘

Location: MORPC Board Room

Members Attending in Person
LaGrieta Acheampong Kris Long Joe Stefanov
Chris Amorose Groomes Hayley Lupton

Members Attending Remotely
Laurie Jadwin

MORPC Staff Attending in Person

Parag Agrawal Eileen Leuby Jack Wagoner
Steve Armstrong Kelsey Matson Brandi Whetstone
Dave Dixon William Murdock Robert Williams
Joe Garrity Alisa Obukhova

Niel Jurist Shari Saunders

Welcome — Chris Amorose Groomes
MORPC Chair Chris Amorose Groomes called the meeting to order at 1:30 p.m.

Consent Agenda
Chris Amorose Groomes made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, second by LaGrieta
Acheampong; motion passed.

Executive Director’s Report — William Murdock

William Murdock congratulated MORPC Team Member Jack Wagoner who is retiring at the end of May
after 34 years of service in residential services. Robert Williams commented that Mr. Wagoner is a
steadying force in the department. He has worked the second most years at MORPC behind Bill Habig.
Chair Amorose Groomes thanked Mr. Wagoner for his service.

Mr. Murdock welcomed and introduced MORPC’s new Finance Director, Steve Armstrong. Mr.
Armstrong started almost two weeks ago and comes to us from Lutheran Social Services as Director of
Finance and Accounting. He also worked at AAA and spent the bulk of his career at JP Morgan Chase.
Mr. Armstrong is happy to be at MORPC.

Mr. Murdock announced that Brandi Whetstone and Dave Dixon are the Interim Co-Leads of the
Planning Department in Kerstin Carr’s absence.

Mr. Murdock attended the American Planning Conference in Minneapolis two weeks ago. Minneapolis
is a colder, larger version of Columbus. They are growing steadily and a little further ahead. You can
see what LinkUs might be able to do because of what Minneapolis is doing with bus rapid transit and
bike/pedestrian investments. Mr. Murdock was able to see in person what we are working towards.

MORPC helped initiate a national housing conversation through the National Association of Regional
Councils (NARC). The second convening was last week with over 40 regional councils virtually around
the country learning best practices.

NARC invited Mr. Murdock to Infrastructure Week in the middle of May to talk about MORPC’s
experience with the onslaught of federal funds for transportation. He will also have the opportunity to
represent MORPC before the House Transportation & Infrastructure Committee.



Executive Committee Minutes
May 2, 2024
Page 2

Mr. Murdock shared engagements in the last month included a mobility forum, a diversity forum,
member visits, and regional sessions.

MORPC is in the middle of the annual audit. This year the Auditor of State switched auditors, so it has
been an enormous learning process for the auditors and MORPC. We are confident about the process,
but it is a lot of extra work.

The Regional Water Study kicked off in April. Over 150 participants were on the first informational
webinar session last week. MORPC is hosting webinars on a regular basis with updates from the study.
MORPC is supporting the Ohio EPA and the consultant team lead by Hazen and Sawyer on the
engagement piece. We are also providing data support by working to model water quantity and quality
— where assets are now and, in the future, plans for future use, etc. Slides and the webinar recording
are available.

MORPC provided a draft 208 sewer district dispute resolution process to Ohio EPA. We will convene a
committee at MORPC to review the process once we hear back from Ohio EPA.

Terry Emery, City of Marysville City Manager, is chairing the passenger rail committee. We identified
and invited communities along the route as well as other organizations to participate.

Mr. Murdock shared the deadline for the RFQ that was issued last month for the Midwest Connect route
is tomorrow. We are working with the City of Fort Wayne. The project selection committee is
established and is meeting the third week of May with the project kick-off in June. We are hoping for a
six-month study so we can start phase two early next year. Ohio is publishing their RFQ for the 3C+D
route this month.

COTA’s Board is moving forward with ballot language for LinkUS at their May meeting. The Transit
Supportive Infrastructure (TSI) Committees continue to meet on program prioritization and adopting
Program Policies. The policies will help develop the regional capital improvement plan for the projects.
The working groups are looking at 125 projects across four quadrants. Community and public
engagement includes a virtual open house in early June, an interactive map with project profiles, public
comment periods, updated website, and working with COTA on an immersive experience for leaders.
The updated bus rapid transit corridors map shows the planned corridors. The darker colored routes
are well into design. The routes in lighter blue are the next wave of corridors to be studied. The green
corridors are identified through the Metropolitan Transportation Plan for future study. Engagement
efforts are ramping up. Partners met last Friday with the Columbus Dispatch Editorial Board.

Upcoming Events:
e Supplier Diversity & Procurement Summit — May 15, 9 a.m., Columbus Metropolitan Library
e Transportation Innovation Forum — May 16, 2 p.m., MORPC

Quarterly Financial Statements — Steve Armstrong
Steve Armstrong presented the Quarterly Financial Report 2024 Q1 highlighting:
e Budget vs. Expenses - underspent
Operating Reserve — 57 days
Net loss year-to-date — programs funded in prior years, expenses recognized this year
Fringe and indirect rates — on target
Accounts Receivable — large volume of unpaid invoices from funders, expect to be caught up
next month



https://www.morpc.org/2023/wp-content/uploads/2024/05/05-02-2024-Fin-Report.pdf

Executive Committee Minutes
May 2, 2024
Page 3

¢ Impact of Government Account Standards Board mandates on financial statements
e Member dues

The full March 2024 Financial Report is available here.

Regional Data Advisory Committee — Dave Dixon

Dave Dixon reported a significant change in the number of resources and engagement going toward
housing questions. The Data Team, with support from Jonathan Miller, is fielding member requests,
media requests, speaking engagements, and supporting other departments. Conversations with
stakeholders include the possibility of retaining a housing researcher at MORPC, looking at what data
MORPC has that can help with site selection, and focusing on walkable communities. The Leaders
Listen Survey Report comes out in about a month. Mr. Dixon reminded members MORPC is a resource
available for them. We might already have the data analysis they need.

Regional Policy Roundtable — Joe Garrity
Joe Garrity gave the legislative update highlighting:
o Select Committee on Housing — language for housing technical assistance grant included in HB
315
e Capital Budget — could be something before July 4 break
One Time Strategic Community Investment Fund — expect legislation by end of June
o Congressional Directed Spending — Columbus Region Coalition endorsed 19 community
projects
¢ Defense — met with Lt. General of the Army who oversees the Defense Logistics Agency
regarding intergovernmental support agreements
e DC Fly-In June 11-12

The next Regional Policy Roundtable meeting is May 23. It includes the kick-start of the Public Policy
Agenda Working Group led by New Albany Mayor Sloan Spalding.

Sustainability Advisory Committee — Brandi Whetstone

Brandi Whetstone reported the next Sustainability Advisory Committee meeting is June 5. The Summit
on Sustainability is October 29. Later this summer, the Sustainability Advisory Committee will kick-off
the subcommittee to update the Regional Sustainability Agenda.

Central Ohio Rural Planning Organization — Parag Agrawal
Parag Agrawal reported the Central Ohio Rural Planning Organization (CORPO) meets twice a year
and is chaired by Madison County Commissioner Mark Forrest. The next meeting is May 6 and
includes the proposed adoption of the following:
e CORPO 2024 Safety Action Plan
e CORPO-Dedicated Funds Commitments — $1.1 million helping fund five projects from five
different sponsoring organizations
e CORPO FY 2025 Planning Work Program — identifies projects CORPO staff are working on
next year

While CORPO items are not brought before the Transportation Committees for vote, Team Members
do provide an update at the committee meetings.


https://www.morpc.org/2023/wp-content/uploads/2024/05/01-Memo-with-Report.pdf

Executive Committee Minutes
May 2, 2024
Page 4

Transportation Policy Committee — Parag Agrawal

Parag Agrawal announced the Community Advisory Committee’s (CAC) new chair is Helen Rollins and
the new vice chair is Erin Synk. We will give Ms. Rollins an opportunity to speak at a future
Transportation Policy Committee meeting. William Murdock thanked former CAC Chair LaGrieta
Acheampong for her service in that role.

Mr. Agrawal reported the following items will be presented at the Transportation Policy Committee
Meeting for adoption:

e 2024-2050 Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) — This is the 25-year vision of transportation
investments in the region. The Community Advisory Committee wants more funding for transit
operations. Looking at comparable regions, we spend the highest percentage (30 percent of
total transportation investments in the region) on transit. CAC adopted the MTP with a split vote,
7-4. Transit will improve as LinkUS moves forward.

¢ MORPC Complete Streets Policy — Trying to make our roads safer not only for cars but for all
road users.

¢ Policies for Managing MORPC-Attributable Funds
MORPC Fiscal Year 2025 Planning Work Program — Mr. Parag gave a presentation at last
month’s Commission meeting.

The deadline for responses to the passenger rail RFQ released last month is tomorrow. We are moving
along, but it is a long process.

Proposed Resolution 07-24: “Authorizing the executive director to file applications with, execute
agreements with, and receive funds from the U.S. Department of Transportation and the Ohio
Department of Transportation” — Parag Agrawal

Joe Stefanov made a motion to approve Resolution 07-24, second by Kris Long; motion passed.

Quarterly Membership Update — Eileen Leuby

Eileen Leuby presented the Member Services Report highlighting:
e Member Benefit of the Month

Member Services Summary

Upcoming Events

MORPC Night at the Clippers

Membership Newsletter

Summer Intern Program

Draft Commission Agenda
The Executive Committee reviewed the draft May 9, 2024 Commission Meeting Agenda.

MORPC Chair Chris Amorose Groomes thanked the members for attending today.

The meeting adjourned at 2:36 p.m.

Ben Kessler, Secretary
Executive Committee


https://www.morpc.org/2023/wp-content/uploads/2024/05/05-02-2024-Mem-Report.pdf

B MORPC

111 Liberty St., Suite 100
Columbus, Ohio 43215
WWW.MOorpc.org

Memorandum

TO: Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission
Executive Committee
Officers and Board Members

FROM: Shawn Hufstedler
Chief Operating Officer

DATE: May 31, 2024

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 08-24: “Adopting a fee schedule for use in assessing
members in 2025”

This resolution adopts the 2025 membership fee schedule. Regularly increasing the dues by
relatively small amounts in order to carry on the efforts of the Commission has been preferred over
more infrequent but larger increases. This year’s resolution follows this past practice. Additionally,
the proposed rates for 2025 are consistent with the 2025 planned rates presented in the planned
five-year dues rates schedule presented a year ago in June.

The current (2024) rate of $0.64 includes $0.07 restricted to building costs, $0.21 for Metropolitan
Planning Organization (MPO) federal matching fund and reserve needs, and $0.36 for MORPC
services to members, development, and other local activities of the agency. Members located
outside the MPO boundaries pay dues at the reduced rate of $0.43, which excludes the MPO
portion of the dues.

The current (2024) Central Ohio Rural Planning Organization (CORPO) rate totals $0.535 per
capita, including $0.07 restricted to building costs, $0.105 for CORPO matching fund requirements,
and $0.36 for MORPC services to members, development, and other local activities of the agency.
This CORPO rate applies only to member counties in areas that are outside the MPO and in the 7-
County CORPO area.

The 2025 rate recommendation is $0.665 including $0.07 restricted to building costs, $0.215 for
Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) federal matching fund and reserve needs, and $0.38 for
MORPC services to members, development, and other local activities of the agency. Members
located outside of the MPO boundaries would pay dues at the reduced rate of $0.45, which
excludes the MPO portion of the dues.

The 2025 Central Ohio Rural Planning Organization (CORPO) rate recommendation totals $0.56
per capita, including $0.07 restricted to building costs, $0.11 for CORPO matching fund
requirements, and $0.38 for MORPC services to members, development, and other local activities

William Murdock, AICP Chris Amorose Groomes Michelle Crandall Ben Kessler
Executive Director Chair Vice Chair Secretary

e



Proposed Resolution 08-24
Memo
Page 2

of the agency. This total CORPO rate applies only to member counties in areas that are outside the
MPO and in the 7-County CORPO area.

Per MORPC'’s Bylaws:
Each year the COMMISSION shall adopt a fee schedule by July 31 to be used in assessing
members for the upcoming calendar year.

* Every five years the COMMISSION shall establish a five-year fee schedule which it shall not
exceed when adopting fees for each upcoming year (i.e. maximum dues schedule).

* Each year the Commission shall provide a non-binding estimate of fees for the next five (5)
years for members to use in their financial planning.

This last bullet indicating an estimated or planned dues schedule will be presented with the annual
fee schedule each year, with any updated planned rates if applicable. Note that the planned rates
are not approved via resolution each year, but instead included via memo only for reference and
planning purposes.

The planned five-year dues rates schedule for 2025-2029 is presented below, represented in cents
per capita.

Planned MPO Area CORPO Area RPC-Only Area
Rates Planned Rate [Planned Rate Planned Rate

2025 66.50 56.00 45.00
2026 69.00 58.00 47.00
2027 71.50 60.50 49.00
2028 74.00 62.50 51.00
2029 76.50 65.00 53.00

The above is further detailed as follows to show the expected increase area in each year with actual
2023 rates included for comparison purposes:

_ 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

Building 7 cents 7 cents 7 cents 7 cents 7 cents 7 cents
RPC 36 cents 38 cents 40 cents 42 cents 44 cents 46 cents
Total RPC 43 cents 45 cents 47 cents 49 cents 51 cents 53 cents
CORPO 10.5 cents 11 cents 11 cents 11.5 cents 11.5 cents 12 cents
Total CORPO 53.5 cents 56 cents 58 cents 60.5 cents  62.5 cents 65 cents
MPO 21 cents 21.5 cents 22 cents 22.5 cents 23 cents 23.5 cents
Total MPO 64 cents 66.5 cents 69 cents 71.5 cents 74 cents 76.5 cents

NOTE: The Total CORPO amount equals the Total RPC plus the CORPO rates for each year. The
Total MPO amount equals to the Total RPC plus the MPO rates for each year. The Total MPO
amounts exclude the CORPO amounts.




Proposed Resolution 08-24
Memo
Page 3

The population estimates for members will be completed in Autumn 2024 and will show each
members’ dues amount for 2025. The 2025 projection will be presented as part of the process to

establish and adopt the 2025 budget and will be presented for formal adoption by the Commission
by December of this year.

Attachment: Resolution 08-24




RESOLUTION 08-24
“Adopting a fee schedule for use in assessing members in 2025”

WHEREAS, the financial provisions of the MORPC Bylaws require that the Commission adopt a
fee schedule by July of each year to be used in assessing members for the upcoming calendar
year; and

WHEREAS, the below rates include are below the “maximum per-capita membership fee”
approved by the Commission in Resolution 09-21 on June 10, 2021; and

WHEREAS, a planned dues schedule has been established that shows the expected rates for
2025 through 2029 to help with long-term planning for both MORPC members and MORPC
staff; and

WHEREAS, a 2025 projection for member dues and related uses will be presented as part of
the process to establish and adopt the 2025 budget and will be presented for formal adoption by
the Commission by December; now therefore

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION:

Section 1. That a 2025 per-capita fee of $0.665 with a minimum of $1,250 is hereby
adopted for members of the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for areas
in the MPO boundaries, a 2025 per-capita fee of $0.56 is hereby adopted for
county members of the Central Ohio Rural Planning Organization (CORPO) for
areas within the CORPO boundaries, and a reduced 2025 per-capita fee of $0.45
with a minimum of $1,250 is hereby adopted for members of the Regional
Planning Commission that are not in the MPO or CORPO.

Section 2. The $0.07 per-capita portion (included within the $0.665, $0.56, and $0.45 rates)
of the dues for the building for 2025 is included to pay a portion of building lease
payments and improvements is hereby adopted.

Section 3. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute
and deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he
shall deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution.

Section 4. That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and ac-
tions of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolu-
tion were taken in open meetings of this Commission.

Chris Amorose Groomes, Chair
MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION

Effective date: June 13, 2024

Submitted by: Shawn Hufstedler, Chief Operating Officer
Prepared by: Shawn Hufstedler, Chief Operating Officer
Authority: Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21

For action date: June 13, 2024

Attachment: Commission Membership as of June 2024



Resolution 08-24 Attachment

Commission Membership as of June 2024
MPO vs CORPO vs RPC

Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) & Regional Planning Commission (RPC)
Members
2025 dues rate per-capita: $0.665
County Members:

Delaware County | Franklin County

Municipal Members (Cities):
Bexley Grove City Powell
Canal Winchester Groveport Reynoldsburg
Columbus Hilliard Sunbury
Delaware New Albany Upper Arlington
Dublin Obetz Westerville
Gahanna Pataskala Whitehall
Grandview Heights Pickerington Worthington

Municipal Members (Villages):
Galena Marble Cliff Shawnee Hills
Lithopolis Minerva Park Urbancrest
Lockbourne Riverlea

Township Members:
Blendon Township (Franklin) Madison Township (Franklin)
Bloom Township (Fairfield) Mifflin Township (Franklin)
Brown Township (Franklin) Perry Township (Franklin)
Clinton Township (Franklin) Plain Township (Franklin)
Etna Township (Licking) Prairie Township (Franklin)
Franklin Township (Franklin) Truro Township (Franklin)
Jackson Township (Franklin) Violet Township (Fairfield)
Jefferson Township (Franklin) Washington Township (Delaware,
Jerome Township (Union) Franklin, Union)

Central Ohio Rural Planning Organization (CORPO) & Regional Planning Commission
(RPC) Members
2025 dues rate per-capita: $0.56
County Members:

Fairfield County* Marion County
Knox County Morrow County
Licking County Union County*

Madison County
Regional Planning Commission (RPC) Only Members
2025 dues rate per-capita: $0.45
County Members:
Hocking County Perry County
Logan County
Municipal Members (Cities):

Bellefontaine Johnstown Mount Vernon
Chillicothe Lancaster Newark
Circleville London
Heath Marysville

Municipal Members (Villages):
Ashville Hebron Somerset
Buckeye Lake Mount Sterling South Bloomfield
Gambier New Lexington West Jefferson
Granville Plain City

Township Members:
Granville Township (Licking) |

*For Fairfield and Union Counties, a small portion of the County is in the MPO and therefore the
County pays the MPO rate for that portion. Fairfield and Union Counties pay the CORPO rate for
the remainder of the County.




N MORPC

111 Liberty St., Suite 100
Columbus, Ohio 43215
WWW.morpc.org

Memorandum

TO: Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission
Executive Committee
Officers and Board Members

FROM: Brandi Whetstone, Interim Sr. Director of Planning
Planning Department

DATE: May 31, 2024

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 09-24: “Authorizing the executive director to accept
funding to launch the Greenways Planning Studio and to perform technical
support services”

The purpose of resolution 09-24 is to authorize the executive director to enter into an agreement
with Rapid 5 to provide technical support services from July 1 — December 31, 2024. RAPID 5 will
pay MORPC $50,000 for six months of services. Included in the agreement is an option to renew for
a full one-year term in January 2025 at a rate of $100,000.

MORPC is a trusted regional leader known in Central Ohio for developing lasting partnerships
across all sectors and levels of government. MORPC’s successful Central Ohio Greenways (COG)
program has substantially advanced outdoor recreation, active transportation, and sustainability
initiatives in the region. Standing on the foundation established by COG and other regional
partners, RAPID 5 is well positioned to develop the “largest interconnected greenspace system in
the country” accessible by every Central Ohioan. MORPC is prepared to expand the region’s long-
standing COG program into a comprehensive Greenways Planning Studio (GPS) to serve as the
technical support center for RAPID 5. GPS will provide expertise, guidance, and advocacy to
RAPID 5 with the following services: GIS Database Host, Technical Assistance, and Regional
Coordination.

Attachment: Resolution 09-24

William Murdock, AICP Chris Amorose Groomes Michelle Crandall Ben Kessler
Executive Director Chair Vice Chair Secretary

e



RESOLUTION 09-24

“Authorizing the executive director to accept funding to launch the Greenways Planning
Studio and to perform technical support services”

WHEREAS, MORPC is a trusted regional leader known in Central Ohio for developing lasting
partnerships across all sectors and levels of government; and

WHEREAS, MORPC'’s successful Central Ohio Greenways (COG) program has substantially
advanced outdoor recreation, active transportation, and sustainability initiatives in the region;
and

WHEREAS, RAPID 5, with support from the foundation established by COG and its partners, is
well positioned to develop the “largest interconnected greenspace system in the country”
accessible by every Central Ohioan; and

WHEREAS, MORPC is prepared to expand the region’s long-standing COG program into a
comprehensive Greenways Planning Studio (GPS) to serve as the technical support center for
RAPID 5; now therefore

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION:

Section 1. That the executive director is hereby authorized to enter into an agreement with
RAPID 5 to offer technical support services anticipated to begin July 1, 2024, for
a fee of approximately $50,000, for six months of services. With an option to
renew for a full one-year term for 2025 at a rate of approximately $100,000.

Section 2. That the executive director is authorized to approve one or more extensions for
performance of services under the foregoing agreements and change orders for
amounts up to the financial authorization levels in the MORPC bylaws without
further authorization from this Commission.

Section 3. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute
and deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he
shall deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution.

Section 4. That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and
actions of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this
resolution were taken in open meetings of this Commission.

Chris Amorose Groomes, Chair
MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION

Effective date: June 13, 2024

Submitted by: Brandi Whetstone, Interim Sr. Director of Planning

Prepared by: Melinda Vonstein, Central Ohio Greenways Program Manager
Authority: Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21

For action date: June 13, 2024



N MORPC

111 Liberty St., Suite 100
Columbus, Ohio 43215
WWW.MOorpc.org

Memorandum

TO: Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission
Executive Committee
Officers and Board Members

FROM: Brandi Whetstone, Interim Sr. Director of Planning
DATE: May 31, 2024

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 10-24: “Authorizing the executive director to enter into
an agreement with a contractor to provide air quality modeling and technical
services”

The purpose of resolution 10-24 is to authorize the executive director to enter into an agreement
with a contractor to assist with data collection, monitoring, and modeling of PM. s air quality data.
MORPC aims to leverage and expand on the previous low-cost air quality monitoring work with
additional technical support and modeling with funding from U.S. EPA.

MORPC'’s neighborhood air quality monitoring project, titled the Community Led Enhanced Air
Quiality Network (CLEAN), in partnership with Franklin County Public Health (FCPH), measures air
pollution across neighborhoods in Franklin County. By gathering more data at the local level, this
project will help provide a baseline understanding of pollution concentrations comparing across a
variety of locations and with regulatory monitors, increase awareness about local air quality and the
potential health impacts, and guide the strategies that go into making the region’s air healthier and
easier to breathe.

The consultant will provide technical services including data collection and analysis, photochemical
air modeling, development of a public-facing dashboard, and reporting. The consultant will attend
quarterly Project Advisory Committee (PAC) meetings, and with input from the PAC, advise on
sensor siting using a data driven approach primarily focused on disadvantaged populations with
elevated health risks from pollution exposure. The data generated by the sensors and
photochemical model will be used to compare pollution levels at established time increments
between sensor locations and with Ohio EPA’s continuously reporting PM2s monitors, and provide
data on pollution patterns and potential sources (such as vehicles, industry, or wildfires).

Attachment: Resolution 10-24

William Murdock, AICP Chris Amorose Groomes Michelle Crandall Ben Kessler
Executive Director Chair Vice Chair Secretary

e



RESOLUTION 10-24

“Authorizing the executive director to enter into an agreement with a contractor to
provide air quality modeling and technical services”

WHEREAS, MORPC secured funding through the EPA’s Enhanced Air Monitoring for
Communities competitive grant program to enhance ambient air quality monitoring in and near
underserved communities; and

WHEREAS, MORPC'’s neighborhood air quality monitoring project, titled the Community Led
Enhanced Air Quality Network (CLEAN), in partnership with Franklin County Public Health
(FCPH), measures particulate matter pollution (PM2.5) across several neighborhoods in Franklin
County; and

WHEREAS, MORPC and FCPH seek to leverage and expand the impact of previous low-cost
air monitoring with technical support from a contractor to assist with data collection, monitoring,
and modeling of PM25 air quality data; and

WHEREAS, by gathering more data at the local level, this project will help provide a baseline
understanding of pollution concentrations comparing across a variety of locations, increase
awareness about local air quality and the health effects, and guide the strategies that go into
making the region’s air healthier and easier to breathe; now therefore

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION:

Section 1. That the executive director is hereby authorized to enter into an agreement with a
contractor to offer technical support services for up to $221,000 for services
beginning July 2024 through June 30, 2026.

Section 2. That the executive director is authorized to approve one or more extensions for
performance of services under the foregoing agreements and change orders for
amounts up to the financial authorization levels in the MORPC bylaws without
further authorization from this Commission.

Section 3. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute
and deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he
shall deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution.

Section 4. That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and
actions of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this
resolution were taken in open meetings of this Commission.

Chris Amorose Groomes, Chair
MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION

Effective date: June 13, 2024

Submitted by: Brandi Whetstone, Interim Sr. Director of Planning
Prepared by: Brandi Whetstone

Authority: Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21

For action date: June 13, 2024



N MORPC

111 Liberty St., Suite 100
Columbus, Ohio 43215
WWW.morpc.org

Memorandum

TO: Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission
Executive Committee
Officers and Board Members

FROM: Nick Gill, Transportation Study Director
DATE: May 31, 2024

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 11-24: “Authorizing the executive director to enter into
agreements with, and receive funds from the U.S. Department of
Transportation, Ohio Department of Transportation, and local jurisdictions
and procure consulting services to execute the 2023 Safe Streets and Roads
for All (SS4A) Funding Award”

In December 2023, MORPC was awarded a federal discretionary Safe Streets and Roads for All
(SS4A) planning and demonstration project award in the amount of $1,032,000. MORPC, ODOT,
and local jurisdictions are providing $258,000 in matching funds or in-kind services for the award.
The activity is included in the MORPC Metropolitan Planning Organization State Fiscal Year 2025
Planning Work Program adopted in May. The work element for the activity is included as an
attachment to the resolution.

Resolution 11-24 authorizes the executive director to enter into agreement with the U.S.
Department of Transportation to receive the funds and enter into necessary agreements with local
jurisdictions for their contributions and implementation of demonstration projects. A portion of the

work will also include consulting services and Resolution 11-24 authorizes the executive director to
enter into agreement(s) with consultant(s).

NTG

Attachment: Resolution 11-24

William Murdock, AICP Chris Amorose Groomes Michelle Crandall Ben Kessler
Executive Director Chair Vice Chair Secretary

e



RESOLUTION 11-24

“Authorizing the executive director to enter into agreements with, and receive funds from
the U.S. Department of Transportation, Ohio Department of Transportation, and local
jurisdictions and procure consulting services to execute the 2023 Safe Streets and
Roads for All (SS4A) Funding Award”

WHEREAS, the Secretary of the U.S. Department of Transportation (U.S. DOT) is authorized to
make grants for transportation planning funds consistent with the Infrastructure Investment and
Jobs Act (IIJA), also known as the “Bipartisan Infrastructure Law”; and

WHEREAS, in 2023 MORPC applied for Safe Streets and Roads for All (SS4A) Planning and
Demonstration funding; and

WHEREAS, in December 2023 U.S. DOT announced an award of $1,032,000 in federal funds
with $258,000 in matching funds or in-kind services for the award provided by MORPC, ODOT,
and local jurisdictions; and

WHEREAS, the MORPC Metropolitan Planning Organization State Fiscal Year 2025 Planning
Work Program (PWP) includes the Safe Streets and Roads for All (SS4A) Action Plan and
Demonstration Activities as shown in the attached work element; and

WHEREAS, a portion of the activity will utilize consultant activities; now therefore
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION:

Section 1. That the executive director is authorized to accept funding and execute the grant
agreement with the U.S. DOT for the 2023 Safe Streets and Roads for All (SS4A)
funding award.

Section 2. That the executive director is authorized to accept funding from the Ohio
Department of Transportation and local jurisdictions for their matching
contributions to the federal funds.

Section 3. That the executive director is hereby authorized to enter into any agreements
with the funding agencies and with any consultants, subcontractors, or vendors
necessary to undertake the activities in connection with the Safe Streets and
Roads for All (SS4A) funding award.

Section 4. That the executive director is authorized to furnish such additional information as
U.S. DOT or ODOT may require in connection with the Safe Streets and Roads
for All (SS4A) funding award.

Section 5. That the executive director is authorized to approve one or more extensions for
performance of services under the foregoing agreements and change orders for
amounts up to the financial authorization levels in the MORPC bylaws without
further authorization from this Commission.

Section 6. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute
and deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he
shall deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution.



Resolution 11-24

Page 2
Section 7. That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and
actions of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this
resolution were taken in open meetings of this Commission.
Chris Amorose Groomes, Chair
MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
Effective date: June 13, 2024
Submitted by: Nick Gill, Transportation Study Director
Prepared by: Nick Gill, Transportation Study Director
Authority: Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21
For action date: June 13, 2024
Attachment: Safe Streets and Road for All (SS4A) Action Plan and Demonstration

Activities Work Element



Resolution 11-24 Attachment

665-Special Studies PID: 121060

66584-3000 - Safe Streets For All Action Plan and Demonstration
Activities
Primary Contact: Lauren Cardoni

In 2023, MORPC applied to USDOT's Safe Streets and Roads for All (SS4A) discretionary grant program for
safety planning funds. In December 2023, MORPC received notification of the award. These funds will be
used to update the Central Ohio Transportation Safety Plan and conduct the following supplemental planning
activities:

+ Advance MORPC's Regional Non-Motorized Volume Data Program

+ Develop a regional Complete Streets Safety Audit Program

« Conduct Pedestrian Safety Improvement demonstration projects

Product/Method Agencies Schedule

Safety Plan Update Local Governments, MORPC, Spring 2025
ODOT

Complete an update to Central Ohio Transportation
Safety Plan in accordance with the funding program
guidelines and requirements.

Non-Motorized Volume Data Program MORPC, ODOT 2026

Collaborate with local and state partners to enhance
MORPC's existing non-motorized volume data
program.

Complete Streets Safety Audit Program MORPC, Public Health 2026

Collaborate with local partners to enhance existing
initiatives focused on conducting walk audits and
identifying proven safety countermeasures for
implementation.

Pedestrian Safety Demonstration Projects Local Agencies, MORPC 2026

Collaborate with local partners to install quick-build,
low-cost, high-impact pedestrian safety
countermeasures at 20 priority locations throughout
the region.

Related Activities
60135-3000 - Safety Planning

49



Budget

Total Work Element Budget: $1,290,000
Spent Previous Year: $0
Remaining Work Element Budget: $1,290,000

Funding Sources: FHWA: $1,032,000, ODOT: $90,300, MORPC: $70,705, Local: $96,995
Budget Note: N/A

50



N MORPC

Columbus, Ohio 43215
WWW.morpc.org

Memorandum

TO: Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission
Executive Committee
Officers and Board Members

FROM: Robert Williams, Senior Director
Residential Services

DATE: May 31, 2024

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 12-24: “Authorizing the executive director to enter into
agreements with the Ohio Department of Development (ODOD) for the 2024
Home Weatherization Assistance Program (HWAP) and to enter into related
subcontracts”

For many years MORPC has contracted with the Ohio Department of Development (ODOD) to
implement the Home Weatherization Assistance Program (HWAP) in portions of Franklin County.
The source of funds is federal from the U.S. Department of Energy and the U.S. Department of
Health and Human Services including the Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program
(LIHEAP).

The program includes work by MORPC to provide client intake, home inspections, installation of
energy efficiency measures such as heating and weatherization materials, and quality control over
all client cases. MORPC will provide inspection services and quality control to verify work performed
adheres to industry and program standards. The installation of weatherization materials, heating
and electrical work will be subcontracted to businesses in MORPC’s service area.

The grant agreement for PY2024, effective July 1, 2024, is estimated to be up to $4,203,000 for
work performed through June 30, 2025. These funds represent a combined amount that includes

funds for territories previously serviced by the provider GLS. MORPC intends to apply for and
become the permanent provider of HWAP services in the territories previously served by GLS.

Attachment: Resolution 12-24

William Murdock, AICP Chris Amorose Groomes Michelle Crandall Ben Kessler
Executive Director Chair Vice Chair Secretary

e



RESOLUTION 12-24

“Authorizing the executive director to enter into agreements with the Ohio Department of
Development (ODOD) for the 2024 Home Weatherization Assistance Program (HWAP)
and to enter into related subcontracts”

WHEREAS, ODOD implements the federal Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program,
pursuant to the U.S. Department of Energy (DOE) Title 1V, Part A (P.L. 94-385); and

WHEREAS, ODOD seeks to contract with the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission
(MORPC) to implement this program inside portions of Franklin County for eligible low-income
customers and improve the energy efficiency of their household; and

WHEREAS, the contract for the 2024 program year is estimated to be up to $4,203,000 and will
be leveraged with other funds from local utilities and other non-federal sources; and that these
funds represent a combined amount that includes funds for traditional MORPC HWAP territories
as well as territories previously serviced by the provider GLS; and

WHEREAS, the services performed pursuant to this contract will be under the oversight of
MORPC and be implemented through a combination of MORPC staff and local businesses that
are subcontracted in MORPC’s service area; now therefore

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION:

Section 1. That the executive director is authorized to enter into an agreement(s) with
ODOD for the PY2024 Home Weatherization Assistance Program in the amount
up to $4,203,000 and enter into related subcontracts.

Section 2. That the executive director is hereby authorized to approve one or more
extensions of time not to exceed 180 days in the aggregate for performance of
services under the foregoing agreements and contract changes not to exceed 20
percent of the total agreement price without further authorization from this
Commission.

Section 3. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute
and deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he
shall deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution.

Section 4. That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and
actions of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this
resolution were taken in open meetings of this Commission.

Chris Amorose Groomes, Chair
MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION

Effective date: June 13, 2024

Submitted by: Robert Williams, Senior Director, Residential Services
Prepared by: Robert Williams, Senior Director, Residential Services
Authority: Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21

For action date: June 13, 2024



	ACFR 2023 DRAFT for discussion only__06.03.24.pdf
	Binder1.pdf
	04 - ACFR Transmittal Letter 2023__05.29.24.pdf
	05 - Certificate.pdf
	06 - Management Staff Org Chart Dec 2023.pdf
	07 - Committee Org Chart 12-31-2023.pdf
	10 - Section Divider-Financial.pdf
	11 - Placeholder for Audit Report.pdf
	12 - 2023 MDA_05.23.24.pdf
	13 - 2023 Financial Statements and Footnotes_ v05.23.24.pdf

	Binder2.pdf
	14 - Section Divider-RSI.pdf
	15 - RSI1- 2023 Net Pension Liability.pdf
	Sheet1

	16 - RSI2 - 2023 Pension Contributions.pdf
	Sheet1

	17 - RSI3- 2023 Net OPEB Liability.pdf
	Sheet1

	18 - RSI4 - 2023 OPEB Contributions.pdf
	Sheet1

	19 - Section Divider-OSI.pdf
	20 - 2023 Rev Exp Budget Actual.pdf
	Sheet1

	21 - Budgetary Accounting-2023.pdf
	22- ICAP 2023.pdf
	2023

	23 - USDOT Rev & Exp 2023.pdf
	TRANSP Completed

	24 - 2023 Trans Costs by Subcategory.pdf
	Sheet 1

	26 - Section Divider-Statistical.pdf
	27 - Statistical Section Description.pdf

	Binder3.pdf
	28 - Table 1 - 2022 Net Position by Component Final.pdf
	Sheet1

	29 -Table 2 - 2023 Revenue&Expense by program - Changes in Net Position.pdf
	Sheet1

	30 - Table 3 - 2023 Changes in Net Position by source - done.pdf
	2023

	31 - Table 4 - 2023 Revenue Base  - done  05.30.24.pdf
	Current

	33 - Table 5 - 2023 RetOnInvest - 04-19-24 review BH.pdf
	FY2023

	33 - Table 6 - 2022 Principal Per Capita Fees  Payers Final.pdf
	Table 6

	34 - Table 7 - 2023 Estimated Civilian Labor Force.pdf
	Table

	35 - Table 8 - 2023 Income Table.pdf
	2023

	36 -Table 9 - 2023 Principal Employers.pdf
	Sheet1

	37 - Table 10 - 2022 Area sq mi Mem Juris FINAL.pdf
	Print Copy

	38 - Table 11 - 2023 Employees by Function Activity.pdf
	Sheet1

	39-Table 12 - 2023 Operating Indicators.pdf
	Table12

	40-Table 13 - 2023 Capital Assets.pdf
	Table13

	41-Table 14 - Schedule of Insurance 2023.pdf
	Sheet1


	Binder4.pdf
	43 - Section Divider-Single Audit.pdf
	44 - Placeholder for Audit Report on Internal Control.pdf
	45 - Placeholder for Audit Report on Compliance.pdf
	46 - Schedule of Expenditure of Federal Awards 2023 _05.12.24.pdf
	2023

	47 - Notes to SEFA - 2023.pdf

	00 - Front Cover 2023.pdf
	Slide Number 1

	31 - Table 4 - 2023 Revenue Base  - done  05.30.24.pdf
	Current





